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Chairman’s Statement

ESl 28

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”, each a
“Director”) of Carnival Group International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), I
am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a consolidated
net profit of approximately HK$49.6 million as compared to the net profit of
approximately HK$103.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
change on the results is mainly due to (i) increase in fair value change on investment
properties of approximately HK$106.7 million; (ii) increase in fair value change on
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$29.3
million; (iii) gain on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately HK$254.1 million;
and (iv) decrease in finance cost of approximately HK$39.0 million, which was
offset by (i) increase in selling and marketing expenses of approximately HK$256.0
million and (ii) increase in administrative expenses of approximately HK$213.9

million.
PROSPECTS

The Directors believe that the Company is the only listed company with a diverse
portfolio of theme-based leisure and consumption businesses that include theme
parks, hotels, outlet shopping for international premium brands, dining, conference
and exhibition centres, leisure, entertainment, edutainment and recreational
facilities in China. The Group aims to promote the concept of themed experiential
leisure and travel by providing customers with a one-stop experience encompassing
different distinctive themes to capture the opportunities brought about by the
increasing affluence and spending power unleashed by the fast growing middle
class in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and the rapidly growing tourism
market in PRC and overseas. Meanwhile, the Group has diversified its business into
other sectors, including edutainment and restaurant operation, which the Group
believes complement its existing business, further expand our customer base and

diversify its future sources of revenue.
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Our business model is to attract and retain customers through different themes for
their experiential consumption inside each of our project complexes, including
high-end retail outlet malls, international branded luxurious resort hotels with
wide-ranging amenities and recreational activities, world-class convention centers,
stadiums, theaters, innovative theme parks, varieties of fine restaurants, sports and
entertainment options. We expect that projects designed, developed and managed
by the Group will not only bring new lifestyle concepts to residents and visitors
alike, but will also become the new landmarks in cities where they are located,
due to their superior locations and excellent retail, hospitality, dining, leisure and

entertainment facilities.

The Group is proactively identifying development and acquisition for our core
business as well as other sectors in the PRC and overseas market. Our strategies are
open-minded in respect of different types of development and acquisition which

bring potential growth of the Group.

Looking ahead, the Group’s core business, integrated tourism and leisure projects,
will continue to benefit from the growing tourism market, expanding middle
class and trend towards a consumption-driven economy in the PRC and abroad.
I believe that the Group can fully leverage the uniqueness of our business model
to gain first-mover advantage and seize the opportunities in the industry. We will
strive to become a leading integrated tourism, hospitality and retail services project
developer in PRC and abroad, thereby generating stable, long-term and abundant
investment returns for our shareholders continuously. In closing, I would like to
express my deep appreciation of our shareholders and business partners for their
exceptional support to the Group. I am also grateful for our Directors, senior

management and staff for their dedicated service and contributions in the past years.

King Pak Fu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. King Pak Fu, aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director on 10
September 2012 and was appointed as the chairman of the Board on 22 October
2012. He was also appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 26
May 2016. He is experienced in property development and corporate management.
Mr. King is currently the chairman and director of Fujian Start Group Co. Ltd. (a
company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 600734).

Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng, aged 33, was appointed as an executive Director on 7
March 2012. He is also a member of the nomination committee of the Company.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree of Finance, Accounting and Management from
University of Nottingham in United Kingdom and a Master’s degree of Real Estate
Economics and Finance from London School of Economics and Politics Science.

Mr. Wang Yikun, aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director on 3 February
2017. He obtained a Master’s degree of Business Administration from Antai
College of Economies and Management, Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 2002.
Mr. Wang worked in the National Mold Research Engineering Center ( [8 % # 2
T A2 58 H 0> ) of Shanghai Jiao Tong University from 1996 to 2000. Mr. Wang
has served as the investment manager, vice president and secretary of the board in
Shanghai Mingyuan Group ( | &% ¥ 5 M ) , Xincaifu Industries Investment
Group (B7 B & & ¥ & 4 M) and Sichuan Crun Co., Ltd. respectively
from 2001 to 2007. Mr. Wang has served as the managing director and sponsor
representative of the investment banking division of Minsheng Securities Co.,
Ltd. since October 2007. Mr. Wang has over 15 years of experience in finance,
investment and investment banking.

Mr. Tsai Tson (also known as Steve Tsai), aged 54, was appointed as an executive
Director on 8 February 2017. He holds a Diploma in Hotel Management from
Les Roches International School of Hotel Management Switzerland. Mr. Tsai has
over 30 years of experience in hotel management. Before joining the Group, he
was a general manager of Sherwood Hotel Group from 1990 to 2000 and the chief
executive officer of Golden Jaguar (China) Hotel Restaurant Group ( 4x #8 %) (
) ¥ )5 48 ik 4 [ ) from 2004 to 2012. He has been a director of Nanjing Milo
Star Cultural Development Co., Ltd (stock code: 837674; a company quoted on
National Equities Exchange and Quotations of the PRC) since November 2015. Mr.
Tsai is the president of business management division of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 10 December 2014. He is also the chairman of each of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy from City
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting and auditing field. Mr.
Admiral Chan is an independent non-executive director of Hanbo Enterprises
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1367; a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™)) and a non-
executive director of China Nonferrous Metals Company Limited (stock code:
8306; a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange).
He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Energy International
Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 353; a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange) in March 2012 and was re-designated as an executive
director in November 2013. He was also appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Jia Meng Holdings Limited (stock code: 8101; a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange) from September 2013 to May
2016.

Mr. Lie Chi Wing, aged 39, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 5 February 2015. He is also a member of each of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business Administration (First Class Honors) from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Lie
has extensive experience in auditing and corporate advisory services with major
international accounting firms. He is currently the company secretary of China
Water Affairs Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Ms. Hu Gin Ing, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 16 December 2013. She is also a member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Ms.
Hu holds a master degree in business administration from Florida International
University, United States of America (“U.S.A.”), a master degree in sciences from
Barry University, U.S.A. and a bachelor degree from National Taiwan University,
major in foreign language. Ms. Hu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in U.S.A. Ms. Hu currently holds the position of Corp. CFO,
Global Finance, of Acer Incorporated, a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange. Ms. Hu has been a director of NHL CPA Ltd., Hong Kong since
January 2005. She has been an independent non-executive director of Enterprise
Development Holdings Limited (HK.1808) since March 2011, an independent non-
executive director of United Pacific Industries Limited (HK.176) since November
2013 and an independent non-executive director of LVGEM (China) Real Estate
Investment Company Limited (HK.95) since May 2014. She was a non-executive
director of SMI Culture & Travel Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as
SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited) (HK.2366), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, from 27 August 2013 to 31 October 2014, and an independent director
of Arich Enterprise Co. Ltd. (TW.4173), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange from December 2012 to June 2015. She has over 22 years of experience

in accounting and finance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PUL etk i B2 3 Hr

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the theme-based leisure and consumption
business, focusing on the design, development and operation of integrated large-
scale tourist complex projects in key cities in and outside the PRC that comprise of
theme parks, hotels, shopping and leisure facilities, as well as other theme based

consumption.
BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s flagship project, Rio Carnival (Qingdao) is located in the Phoenix
Island Tourist Resort Zone in Huangdao District, Qingdao city, Shandong province
in the PRC and occupies an aggregate site area of approximately 350,000 square
metres (“sq.m.”) with a total GFA of approximately 800,000 sq.m.. The Group
believes that Rio Carnival (Qingdao) will be one of the first large-scale integrated
commercial, residential and tourism complexes of its kind in China. It will include
indoor and outdoor underwater ocean exploration theme parks, a hotel and a service
apartment, an international premium brand outlet shopping mall, themed-street
restaurant dining, a conference centre, a performance square for performances,
concerts, sports matches and parades, and a world-class entertainment complex
featuring the largest Lego education experience centre in China, one of the newest
and largest DMAX cinema complexes in China (Jackie Chan Cinema), an indoor
ice skating centre and a large sea-view Ferris wheel. It is our aim for Rio Carnival
(Qingdao) to become one of the China’s premier tourist destinations. The hotel
and outlet has commenced operations and other facilities will be opened in phases.
As part of its business model, the Group also develops and sells high-end coastal
residential properties adjacent to its theme park, outlet mall and hotels in Rio
Carnival (Qingdao). These residential properties occupy an aggregate site area of

approximately 126,000 sq.m. with a total GFA of approximately 350,000 sq.m..

During the year, the Group has acquired a property in Hong Kong with the site area
of approximately 50,000 square feet (“‘sq.ft.”). The property is located at Southern
District, one of the most prestigious luxury residential areas in Hong Kong. The
Directors believe that, in view of the demands in luxury residential property market
in Hong Kong, together with the Group’s experience in real estate projects in the
PRC, the acquisition of the property will allow the Group to capture future capital

appreciation.
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The Group also engages in the operation of a diversified full-services modern
restaurant chain under the brand “Golden Jaguar (4 #% %J) ”. It has been in
the process of revamping and improving the operations of the Golden Jaguar

restaurants.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group operated 13 restaurants across 7 tier-1 and tier-
2 cities in 7 provinces in the PRC, with 4 in Beijing and 4 in Shanghai. It had more
than 1,100 employees as of 31 December 2016. With the reputable brand of Golden
Jaguar in the PRC, its nation wide network of restaurants and its experienced
management team, the Group believes that there is growth potential in the catering
sector, and acquisition of Golden Jaguar restaurant chain complements our strategy,
improves the Group’s branding and network coverage in China, and increase the

Group’s cross-selling opportunities among its various businesses.

During the year, the Group derived most of its revenue from the following

segments:
Property Development and Investment

Revenue from the Group’s property development and investment was
approximately HK$1,187.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
compared to HK$643.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. For the
year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue was mostly derived from the sale of

residential units of the completed properties in Qingdao and Chengdu in the PRC.
Catering Business

Revenue from catering business was approximately HK$502.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016, compared to HK$248.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2015. The revenue was derived from the operation of restaurants
providing buffet, banquet, exquisite dining and related service by Golden Jaguar

which was acquired in 2015.
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Trading and Investment business

The Group invested in Hong Kong’s listed securities and financial instruments as

short-term and medium-term investments.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded net realised gains and
unrealised gains on investments of approximately HK$197.6 million, compared
to HK$198.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 and received dividend

income from listed investment of approximately HK$0.3 million, compared to
HK$51.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, securities investments was approximately
HK$274.4 million, compared to HK$409.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, of which each investment is less than 2% of the total assets for both years.

Carnival business

The Group engaged in the business of organising and operating touring carnival and

other related business.

Revenue from the Group’s carnival business was approximately HK$24.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Results

Financial results for the year ended 31 December 2016
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Gross profit BH
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a consolidated
net profit of approximately HK$49.6 million as compared to the net profit of
approximately HK$103.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
change on the results is mainly due to (i) increase in fair value change on investment
properties of approximately HK$106.7 million; (ii) increase in fair value change on
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$29.3
million; (iii) gain on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately HK$254.1 million;
and (iv) decrease in finance cost of approximately HK$39.0 million; which was
offset by (i) increase in selling and marketing expenses of approximately HK$256.0
million and (ii) increase in administrative expenses of approximately HK$213.9
million. The increase in selling and marketing and administrative expenses was
mainly arising from the acquisition of Nice Race Management Limited (“Nice
Race”).

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$5,000.0 million divided into 25,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.2 each and
the issued share capital of the Company was approximately HK$3,375.5 million
divided into 16,877,728,468 shares of HK$0.2 each. As at 31 December 2016, the
current assets and current liabilities of the Group were approximately HK$12,262.1
million (2015: approximately HK$11,438.4 million) and approximately
HK$6,913.1 million (2015: approximately HK$8,234.3 million) respectively.
The liquidity ratio, which is calculated as current assets over current liabilities,
was approximately 1.77 times as at 31 December 2016, as compared to that of
approximately 1.39 times as at 31 December 2015. The increase in liquidity ratio

was mainly due to the decrease in borrowings-current portions.

The Group’s total assets and total liabilities as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$25,147.4 million (2015: approximately HK$23,020.4 million)
and approximately HK$16,395.3 million (2015: approximately HK$15,934.1
million) respectively. The debt ratio, which is calculated based on total liabilities
over total assets, was approximately 0.65 times as at 31 December 2016, as

compared to that of approximately 0.69 times as at 31 December 2015.

The cash and bank deposits (including pledged bank deposits) as at 31 December
2016 were approximately HK$2,307.0 million (2015: approximately HK$3,089.3
million). The decrease was mainly due to the investments in property and financial

assets during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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As at 31 December 2016, the net debt to equity ratio of the Group, expressed as a
percentage of borrowings and long-term debts (including obligation under finance
lease and convertible bonds) net of cash and bank deposits (including pledged
bank deposits) over total equity, was approximately 99.0% (2015: approximately
100.6%).

On 9 December 2015, the Company as issuer and Convoy Investment Services
Limited (“Convoy”) as placing agent entered into the placing agreement pursuant
to which Convoy agreed to act as the placing agent for the purposes of arranging,
on a best efforts basis, the placees to subscribe for the 4-year, 5-year and 7-year
6% unlisted bonds up to an aggregate principal amount of HK$300,000,000. On
2 December 2016, the Company and Convoy agreed to increase the aggregate
principal amount from HK$300,000,000 to HK$500,000,000 and extended the
placing period to 8 June 2017. For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company issued the bonds in an aggregate principal amount of HK$293,000,000.

On 15 March 2016, the Company entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant
to which the Company issued 8% listed senior bonds on 22 March 2016 in a
principal amount of USD180,000,000 (“2016 Senior Bonds™). The 2016 Senior
Bonds will become due on 22 March 2019. The 2016 Senior Bonds was permitted
for listing and dealing on 23 March 2016. The 2016 Senior Bonds bear interest at
a rate of 8% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The 2016 Senior Bonds
are guaranteed by certain non-PRC subsidiaries of the Company and impose certain

covenants on the Group, including maintenance of certain financial ratios.

On 6 April 2016, 30,000,000 share options were granted to an employee of the
Company with the exercise price of HK$1.078 per share under the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 31 May 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
The closing price on 6 April 2016 was HK$1.06 per share.

On 10 May 2016, 50,000,000 share options were granted to Mr. Meng Cai, a then
executive Director with the exercise price of HK$1.022 per share under the Share

Option Scheme. The closing price on 10 May 2016 was HK$1.01 per share.

On 7 June 2016, 40,000,000 share options were granted to an employee of the
Company with the exercise price of HK$1.06 per share under the Share Option
Scheme. The closing price on 7 June 2016 was HK$1.06 per share.
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On 13 June 2016, the Company and Elite Mile Investments Limited (“Elite Mile™)
entered into the placing agreement with Emperor Securities Limited, ABCI
Securities Company Limited and AMTD Asset Management Limited who acted as
the placing agents. The placing agents agreed to procure purchasers of not less than
six independent professional, institutional and/or individual investors who and their
ultimate beneficial owners are or will be third parties independent of the Company
and its connected persons, to purchase up to 725,000,000 existing shares from Elite
Mile at a price of HK$0.95 per share. On the same day, the Company and Elite
Mile entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which Elite Mile agreed to
subscribe for such number of new ordinary shares at a subscription price which is
equivalent to the placing price of HK$0.95 per share. The closing price per share
on 13 June 2016 was HK$1.06. The Company issued 725,000,000 ordinary shares
to Elite Mile on 21 June 2016 and raised net proceeds of approximately HK$674.5
million. The proceeds from such fund raising activities were used (i) for principal
repayments and interest payments of borrowings of approximately HK$528.3
million; (ii) as project investments of HK$138.6 million and (iii) for corporate

operating expenses of approximately HK$7.6 million.

On 29 June 2016, the Company and Haitong International Financial Solutions
Limited, as subscriber, entered into a subscription agreement pursuant to which
the subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total of 440,000,000 subscription shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.88 per subscription share. The closing price
on 29 June 2016 was HK$0.98 per share. The Company issued 440,000,000
shares to the subscriber on 7 July 2016 and raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$379.2 million. The proceeds from such fund raising activities were used (i) for
interest payments of borrowings of approximately HK$89.6 million; (ii) as project
investments of HK$272.2 million and (iii) for corporate operating expenses of

approximately HK$17.4 million.

On 14 December 2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
Emperor Securities Limited, Haitong International Securities Company Limited
and China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited as placing agents, pursuant to which
the placing agents have conditionally agreed with the Company to use their best
efforts, as agent of the Company, to severally place up to 830,350,000 new shares
in total at the placing price of HK$0.873 per placing share. The closing price on
14 December 2016 was HK$0.97 per share. The Company issued 830,350,000
shares on 22 December 2016 and raised net proceeds of approximately HK$702.9
million. The proceeds from such fund raising activities were used (i) for principal
repayments and interest payments of borrowings of approximately HK$300.4

million and (ii) as project investments of HK$240.0 million.

MB—=ANENATZEH > RAFRBBRERRA
A ([MRR]) MR EESF ()G RA F - R R E
B I PR AR T i AR g A A LR PR A R (F A il 51K
B ) 5T S0 i o P AR R AR R A N S
SR EE S B I AN B (I R A T A
BN BSOS A A A A W KB L2 =05)
ML Z B > A R0.95W G Z Mk R AR S
725,000,000/ B B4y o [l H > A< 24 ] BLAR F2 5T 3 2
Bt e > DR UL > 1R FR ) AR R R 0. 95 G Z il B
i A R R B BT A e R N
FARRTZEH R E % 1.069% 50 - AR A R R Z
F—NENH A — B R 847725,000,000/8 ¥
B - 3 S 45 B A5 3K JE IR A £9674,500,0009 78 0 2K B %
FEREGEWBZIRIE RS OEBEEZ RS R
AT FI L #1528,300,0009% IG5 (ii)IH H % % 138,600,000
WEIC I (iii A 3 8 4 BH 32 £97,600,000%5 7T

W F—NENA T IUH A F] B R PR A
Tl R A BR A W) (AR 2 W ) W1 Sn R M k- 98
> R 5 O A ) B R R AR 2 W] O AR
T DL AE JBE 32 0 B 0. 88 6 TT 2 i A P % K B AT A
3£440,000,000 8¢ 32 ik Bt 4 o BBy > —F — NENH
T JuH Z W R s A 0,98 J6 o AR A H Y &
—NF-EH B A R 7 8 17440,000,00008 B4 > i
B R E T H£9379,200,0009 70 2 H % A E 4
A B 2 BT A s () 32 A B R . 489,600,000
#IT 5 (i) AR TE B # %272,200,0009 76 K (iii) 4 2 %
¥ B 3% £117,400,0009 7T

M —NETFZATMEH > KA R HEEEBR (F
WE) A7 R 2 R i A R W R A PR R R
Kk (i) A B R (FF % AR 37 5 e 85 o
o TR B A R AR B A w] e - AR AR
w] Z AR EH I 5 TR A B b B O B B4 0.873 % UG
2 T R i % £6.830,350,000 /8 37 L4y o ey A &%
—ANETZH M H Z W E % R B0.97H I8 0 AR
AR S F N AR U 2 H E817830,350,0008 B
1y > 36 2545 B 45 K JE ¥ 8H £9702,900,0009 It © 2K H %
FELBSWBZARIESOERG AR SRR
A4 FI B £1300,400,000% 7C & (ii)H H 1% 240,000,000
Wt o



F AT R P B TR ] | 20164 3t

Management Discussion and Analysis
B B s e

Certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries entered into financing agreements
including guarantees or security agreements with various PRC banks and financial
institutions. These loans have original terms ranging from 12 months to 36 months

and secured by pledged bank deposits of the Group.

As of 31 December 2016, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries have total external
borrowings of approximately HK$4,999.9 million of which approximately
HK$3,215.2 million are secured by land-use rights, properties and personal
guarantee provided by the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
King Pak Fu.

The principal amounts outstanding under these loans in the PRC generally bear
interest at fixed rates calculated by reference to the relevant bank’s benchmark
interest rate for such loans. Interest payments are payable on either monthly or
quarterly basis and must be made on each payment date as provided in the particular

loan agreement.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Substantially all of the Group’s sales and operating costs are denominated in the
functional currency of each individual group entity i.e. Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollar. As at 31 December 2016, except for the borrowings of principal amount of
USD502.3 million by the Company are denominated in United States Dollar, other
borrowings or share placements denominated in the functional currency of each
individual group entity. Accordingly, the Directors consider that the currency risk
is low to moderate. The Group currently does not have a formal currency hedging
policy in relation to currency risk. The Directors monitor the Group’s exposure on

an on-going basis and will consider hedging the currency risk should the need arise.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.
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CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s certain land-use rights, properties, bank
deposits and deposits of approximately HK$18,246.8 million (2015: approximately
HK$17,064.0 million) were pledged to banks and other financial institutions and

corporations to secure certain loan facilities granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

On 12 December 2016, Leading Express Holdings Group Limited (“Leading
Express”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Netspac Investments
Limited (“Netspac™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leading Express, entered into
a memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with Sino Esteem Investments Limited

(“Sino Esteem”).

Pursuant to the MOU, the parties have agreed to negotiate in good faith to enter into
a shares subscription agreement (“SSA”) for (a) the subscription by Sino Esteem
of ordinary shares in Netspac; and (b) the conversion by Leading Express of all
existing ordinary shares held by it in Netspac into non-voting deferred shares (the

“Proposed Transaction”).

Netspac is an investment holding company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability. It owns 26% equity interests in a property
development project in Beijing City, the PRC.

On 23 December 2016, the definitive SSA has been entered into between
Leading Express, Netspac and Sino Esteem for, among others, the disposal by
Leading Express the entire issued share capital of Netspac at a consideration of
HK$350,000,000. All conditions precedent under the SSA have been satisfied and
completion of the SSA took place on the same day and Netspac ceased to be an

indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or associates or joint ventures during the year ended 31 December
2016.
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 1,891 employees (31 December 2015:
3,013 employees). The employees of the Group are remunerated in accordance
with their work experience, performance and prevailing industry practices. The
remuneration policy and package of the Group are periodically reviewed by the
management. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total staff costs of the
Group were approximately HK$255.8 million (2015: approximately HK$233.6
million), representing an increase of approximately 9.51% over the corresponding

period of 2015. The increase in staff cost was mainly due to the acquisition of Nice
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Equity settled share-based payment DLRE £ 45 S B AD 32 A =2 kB 38,526
Total employee benefits expenses 12 B @A b S A 233,629

DIVIDEND JBe B

The Board resolved not to recommend any dividend for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).
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The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance standard and
procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in order to

enhance the shareholders’ value.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code™) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate

governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company was in compliance with all code provisions set out in the CG Code except
for the deviation of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code that the role of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Following the resignation of Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric, the
former Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 26 May 2016, the Company
appointed Mr. King Pak Fu, the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 26 May 2016.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within
the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the
Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority for the present
arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by current Board which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient number thereof

being independent non-executive Directors.
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, and is
responsible for setting up the overall strategy and policies of the Group, reviewing
the operation and financial performance, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s
financial control and risk management systems. The Board reserved for its decision
or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The management was
delegated the authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of
the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the

Board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board currently consists of seven Directors including four executive Directors

and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

King Pak Fu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Gong Xiao Cheng

‘Wang Yikun

Tsai Tson (also known as Steve Tsai)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Wai Cheung Admiral

Lie Chi Wing

Hu Gin Ing

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition is formed to
ensure strong independence exists across the Board. The composition of the Board
reflects the balanced skills and experience for effective leadership. The biographical
information of the Directors are set out on pages 6 to 8 under the section headed

“Biographies of Directors”.
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Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed

and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided a record of training they received for the financial year ended 31

December 2016 to the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31

December 2016 is summarised below:

#Ag 2 B

ML A ST ¥R <7 I Z SRR SC SR A0 SR BLE - BT fr
5 2 0 R A R R - R R S BT L M Bk
DI BRASE 45 16 3 7 40 L 0 A 2 ERK -

SWEFH 2 MY R WO AL T R4
WERBEZE-AETZH=Z+— 0L BAEE
BRI Z sk

BREZZ-AETA=ZT—HILEENEERE
2 Z A8 N e SR an T

Attending or
participating in
seminars/
reading materials
relevant to the

director’s duties

HE 29§ s
DLl PE iR g

Name of Directors WA R IR
Executive Directors HAraI
Mr. King Pak Fu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) %t A #9564 (£ HATH A ) v
Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng R v
Mr. Meng Cai (resigned on 9 February 2017) wAgAE (R R—LE T HILHEHE) v
Mr. Wang Yikun (appointed on 3 February 2017) ERMEE (RR-LEA=ZHEZIET) N/A A& H
Mr. Tsai Tson (appointed on 8 February 2017) e (RZF—-LEZANHERE) N/A R
Independent Non-executive Directors B AT d I
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral Bl A 2% 2 A v
Mr. Lie Chi Wing R E v
Ms. Hu Gin Ing [ e v
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Up to the date of this report, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were
not separate and Mr. King Pak Fu currently performs these two roles. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the
same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and
enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The
Board believes that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement
will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by current Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient number thereof being

independent non-executive Directors.
Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term and
they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every three years in

accordance with the Bye-Laws.

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber, with
academic and professional qualifications in the fields of accounting and finance.
With their experience gained from various sectors, they provide strong support
towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.
Each independent non-executive Director gives an annual confirmation of his/
her independence to the Company, and the Company considered each of them is

independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 23 August 2013 (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level will support
the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable development.
The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Company will also take into consideration its own business model and
specific needs from time to time in determining the optimal composition of the
Board.
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The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the
necessity to set any measurable objectives for implementing the Policy from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those

objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate,

to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
Board Meetings

The Board has four scheduled meetings a year at approximately quarterly interval
and additional meetings will be held as and when required. The four scheduled
Board meetings for a year are planned in advance. During the regular meetings
of the Board, the Board reviewed the operation and financial performance and

reviewed and approved the annual and interim results.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board held 9 meetings. All Directors
were given an opportunity to include any matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings, and were given sufficient time to review documents and information

relating to matters to be discussed in Board meetings in advance.
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Number of

attendance
Name of Directors WA HOW frl k¥
Executive Directors HAT
Mr. King Pak Fu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) & A 56k (L WATB A ) 3/9
Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric Yo BIK B Stk (WD 2/2
Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng R A 8/9
Mr. Meng Cai Mot i Ao He (W) 4/7
Mr. Wang Yikun e ER g A () N/A 7R3
Mr. Tsai Tson M4 BRF S (Wi N/A A
Independent Non-executive Directors Bk I AT HH
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral B A 2 Sl A 7/9
Mr. Lie Chi Wing FERRRE 8/9
Ms. Hu Gin Ing il S 8/9
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Notes:

1. Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric resigned on 26 May 2016, 2 Board meetings were
held before his resignation.

2. Mr. Meng Cai was appointed as an executive Director on 10 May 2016 and
resigned on 9 February 2017, 7 Board meetings were held during his tenure of
office in year 2016.

3. Mr. Wang Yikun was appointed as an executive Director on 3 February 2017.

4. Mr. Tsai Tson was appointed as an executive Director on 8 February 2017.

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection
by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external professional advice if so
required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in respect of
relevant actions against its Directors.

General Meeting

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 1 general meeting, being the 2016
annual general meeting, was held on 2 June 2016.
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Number of

attendance
Name of Directors WY LE OB f k¥
Executive Directors A7 HH
Mr. King Pak Fu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) & A 562k (L HATB A ) 1/1
Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric ™) Bk B SoHE (WED N/A
Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng R SR 071
Mr. Meng Cai N2 A e A (W) 071
Mr. Wang Yikun e ER I S A (W) N/A ANiE
Mr. Tsai Tson Nt X7 ok (Wi N/A A7
Independent Non-executive Directors By HE AT
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral B A 2 e A 171
Mr. Lie Chi Wing EHRRNE 171
Ms. Hu Gin Ing [ S 171
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Notes:

1. Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric resigned on 26 May 2016, no general meeting was
held before his resignation.

2. Mr. Meng Cai was appointed as an executive Director on 10 May 2016 and
resigned on 9 February 2017, 1 general meeting was held during his tenure of
office in year 2016.

3. Mr. Wang Yikun was appointed as an executive Director on 3 February 2017.

4. Mr. Tsai Tson was appointed as an executive Director on 8 February 2017.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other general meetings to

communicate with them and encourage their participation.
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take into account the
qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and professional ethics of the

candidates.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference on 28 March 2012 and currently consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (as chairman) and
Ms. Hu Gin Ing, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the code

provisions set out in the CG Code.

The function of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
diversity of the Board and made recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Group’s strategy; to identify qualified individuals
to become members of the Board; to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; to review the Board Diversity Policy and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and succession

planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting for assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; considering the re-election of Directors; and reviewing the structure, size

and diversity of the Board.

RBE-Z-ANET A= —HILEE - REZE
R BRAT — ko AR Al S IR AT B R B
P 2 5 R g TR DL ORI
B H % ik -

Number of
attendance
Name of Members BB 4t HO% fraf ik ¥
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (chairman) BRI S () 171
Ms. Hu Gin Ing [ S 111
Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng BB 171

Apart from the meeting held for the above, the Nomination Committee by passing
of written resolutions made recommendation to the Board on the appointment of

Director.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference and currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (as chairman), Mr. Lie Chi Wing and Ms.
Hu Gin Ing. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is currently

made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the code

provisions set out in the CG Code.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure on the
remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy and (ii) to determine the remuneration package of executive

Directors and senior management.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee held 1

meeting for reviewing the remuneration packages of the Directors.

BEEZ-AETA=ZT—HILEE - FWEES
WERAT R > AR A

Number of
attendance
Name of Members BB Y # HO% fra ik ¥
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (chairman) BRfERER S A (F ) 1/1
Mr. Lie Chi Wing BT i 11
Ms. Hu Gin Ing (L S s 1/1

Apart from the meeting held for the above, the Remuneration Committee also by
way of written resolutions made recommendation to the Board on the proposed

remuneration of new Director, and the proposed grant of share options to Director.

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management depend on their
respective contractual terms under the employment agreements, if any, and is
fixed by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, the performance of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out in

notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference on 9
November 1999 which was revised on 29 December 2015 to be in line with the CG
Code and currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (as chairman), Mr. Lie Chi Wing and Ms. Hu Gin
Ing. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made available on

the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code provisions set
out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditors
and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors,
and any questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditors; reviewing the
interim and annual reports and financial statements of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the Company’s financial
reporting function and their training arrangement and budget, and risk management

and internal control systems.
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The Audit Committee meets the external auditors regularly to discuss any area of
concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses not only
on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the
compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements

in the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings.
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Number of
attendance
Name of Members BB 4 % W% fradf ik ¥
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (chairman) BfEE ek (F4E) 2/2
Mr. Lie Chi Wing S i 212
Ms. Hu Gin Ing [ S s 212

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee reviewed, among
others, the annual and interim results of the Group, which were in the opinion of the
Audit Committee that the preparation of such results complied with the applicable

accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same will be carried out

annually.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“2017 AGM”). The Audit
Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at the 2017 AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to comply with the CG Code and
other legal or regulatory requirements, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Board held 1 meeting
for reviewing the training and continuous professional development of Directors,
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and reviewing the

Company’s disclosure in Corporation Governance Report.
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditors are set

out below:—
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Fee paid/payable

Services rendered X315 T, AT &

HK$’000

Tt

Audit services % B 2,180

Non-audit services* F A% M 7+ 430

Total Wt 2,610
£ The non-audit services include services for interim review and issuing g A% R s £ 555 v 300 B R B TR AT v AR AR

arrangement letter and comfort letter in connection with the issue of senior bonds.

I AT LA PR DL e R R o




F AT R P B TR ] | 20164 3t

Corporate Governance Report
e JERTE ey

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-17), to provide compliance and
full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist the Group
to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit different commercial

needs.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-1, was

appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 19 December 2012.

On 1 March 2016, Ms. Li Jing (“Ms. Li”), the general manager of capital markets
of the Company, was appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company. She

is also the primary point of contact at the Company for Ms. Chan.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Ms. Chan
and Ms. Li had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the

financial year ended 31 December 2016.
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. An annual general meeting of the
Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be determined by the
Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called

a special general meeting.
Shareholders to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company according
to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act of Bermuda.
The procedures shareholders can use to convene a special general meeting are set
out in the document entitled “Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for

Election as a Director”, which is currently available on the Company’s website.
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Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the attention of the

Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at
shareholders’ meeting

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a proposal

at a general meeting shall be:

(a)  any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total

voting rights at the date of the requisition; or
(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be deposited, with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving notice of
the proposed resolution or circulating any necessary statement, at the Company’s

principal place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:

(a)  arequisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks before

the meeting; and

(b)  any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the requisition is

proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the necessary procedures.
VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the resolutions to be set out in the notice
of 2017 AGM will be vote by poll.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication and

reasonable disclosure of information to its shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in the following

manner:
. Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all shareholders;
. Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on the Stock

Exchange website, and issue of other announcements and shareholders’
circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure obligations under the

Listing Rules; and

. The general meeting of the Company is also an effective communication

channel between the Board and shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows of
the Group for that year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently; made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair

and reasonable and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other

irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in

preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledge that it is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems, and management has provided a confirmation to the
Audit Committee (and the Board) on the effectiveness of these systems for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems

The risk management framework of the Group and main responsibilities of the

members in the framework are described as follows:
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Member Main Responsibilities B FERB
The Board + Set up goals for risk management strategy, assess and HHEY o T R A SO e R > AN R R E B AR
determine the nature and extent of risk acceptable to SR WG R N T R R A Lk L R
achieve the strategy goals; Ji 5
+ Establish and maintain a proper and effective risk o PR BEOL A R A A R IR A SR
management and internal control systems; SR ECES
+ Review the effectiveness of the risk management and o bR B R R A A R
internal control systems.
Audit Committee * Assist the Board in overseeing the risk level and the ENZEAR o WY EFGEZREKT  REEHEREN

design and performance of the risk management and
internal control systems;

Discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management, ensure the management has fulfilled
its responsibility of establishing effective systems;
Ensure that the internal audit function has sufficient
resources for operation and has a proper position, review
and supervise its performance.

Keep updated of various major risks confronted by the
Group and the risk management status, make decisions
for effective risk control;

Report the risk status of the Group and issues to be
concerned or improved to the Board on a regular basis;
Review the Risk Management Operation Manual and its
amendments;

Facilitate risk management and assessment, regularly
appoint relevant accountable persons to implement risk
assessment;

Organise and promote the establishment of the risk
management system at the group level,

Review material risk assessment report and various risk
management reports.

Review major risk management measures, rectify and
deal with the decisions made or actions adopted by
relevant organizations or individuals beyond the risk

management system;
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Member Main Responsibilities B FER K
* Engage relevant persons to organise and coordinate o ZRMBARATAS SELBMA%
various departments and projects to carry out SEL Y 02 O T K ) A A
identification and assessment of significant risks at the TR - o 5 B HE AT E 48 43 7 4R 28 IR Bt
group level, summarise and analyse such information, Al e 46 T LB B R
submit risk assessment and various risk management
reports;
»  Carry out risk management for other major issues. o REERABEREE-.
The Group’s Headquarter + Design, implement and supervise the risk management FEAE o R M B B R R B R R B R

and internal control systems, maintain and update the risk
management manual;

Oversee the implementation of the risk management
policy and program, develop assessment standards and
organisation for risk management;

Carry out relevant measures for construction of the risk
management and internal control systems, organise the
assessment on the management of subsidiaries and the
building of a risk management team.

Continuously monitor risks to ensure principal risks are
controlled within the tolerance of the Group;

Assess the external circumstance of the Group and
enterprise macro-risk, propose a risk response plan
regarding the risks inherent in the environment, strategy
and operation process of the Company.

Organise and facilitate the construction of the risk
management system at the group level;

Organise and coordinate various functions of the
headquarter and the subsidiary to carry out major
risk identification and assessment at the group level,
summarise and analyze such information to prepare
a material risk assessment report and various risk
management reports at the group level, report to the Audit
Committee the major risks at the group level;

Control the risks at the group level, conduct research to
propose measures and plans for management of major
risks at the group level, provide professional opinions for
major risk decisions;

Supervise the cultivation of the overall risk management

culture of the Group.
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Member Main Responsibilities B FER K
Management of subsidiaries *  Ensure that the subsidiaries carry out the risk assessment P 2 o THEAR BHFJEG 2+ w0 20 R AR L T B T
in compliance with the risk assessment manual gl 1 B L Bt A A
formulated by the Group;
* Review and approve the risk assessment results of the o TR I A O R ) A
subsidiaries in respect of the business; R
+ Ensure that the subsidiaries implement effective risk o TEARBEE A FA B0 SR R
management,
*  Monitor the principal business risks confronted by o B OE DR 2 D T I - S B B
the subsidiaries and the effectiveness of relevant risk JE i LA 0 T e 5
management measures;
* Allocate resources such as fund and workforce to the o T WO 8 ) B AT A B R
subsidiaries for implementation of the risk assessment (BHES NB%) -
projects.
Department managers of +  Regularly update the risk list for its scope of business and PEESARIRRM o A R T A 3 1 I v
subsidiaries carry out risk assessment as required by the Group; e8] S~ TR A 5 R AR
* Formulate and implement a risk response plan for its o i S S AR D Sy %
scope of business, facilitate and implement the specific I 3 7 6 5 L L o
risk management measures. M
* Monitor various risks for its scope of business and report o B A B R R B AT B > S i
risk information to the Risk Management Committee of FEEREEE R GRS RERER
the Group in a timely manner;
¢+ Deal with other works related to risk management. o S A A A B A
Internal audit function * Report directly to the Audit Committee, analyse and W& o HENERZEEREC ATHERE R
conduct independent assessment on the adequacy and TR B R A R 5 R A AT A th 43 A
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control T8 A o
systems.
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The process used to identify, assess and management

principal risks

The risk management process of the Group is described as follows:

Project initiation

Risk identification

Risk analysis

Risk response

Control measures

Risk control

Risk management

report

initiate risk management and prepare for relevant
activities.

identify the current risks confronted.

conduct two-dimension analysis on the risk
including the impact extent and possibility of
occurrence.

choose a proper risk response method and develop a
risk mitigation strategy.

propose up-to-date internal control measures and
policy and process.

continuously monitor the risks identified and
implement relevant internal control measures to
ensure the effective operation of the risk response
strategy.

summarise results of risk assessment and analysis
and internal audit, formulate and report an action

plan.

Internal audit function

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by an internal audit team, which

reports directly to the Audit Committee.

The Board also engaged an external professional firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers

Limited (“PWC”), to conduct the annual review of the effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group has properly followed all recommendations provided by PWC, and

ensures these recommendations will be implemented within a reasonable time.
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Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information
according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by
the Securities and Future Commission in June 2012 to ensure inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently
made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due
compliance with all policies regarding the inside information. Also, the Company
keeps Directors, senior management and employees appraised of the latest
regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or

policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

The Board has conducted a review of the systems of risk management and internal
control for the year ended 31 December 2016 to ensure the effectiveness and
adequacy of the systems. Such review shall be conducted annually. The Board
considered that the risk management and internal systems of Company for the year

ended 31 December 2016 were effective and adequate.
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to

the consolidated financial statements.
BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review, analysis using financial key performance indicators and
future development in the Company’s business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and

Analysis” on pages 9 to 17 of this annual report.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and relationships with employees are also discussed under section

headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 53 to 58.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Property development and investment

Project expansion by commercial brand from home and abroad has resulted in
fierce competition among markets of second and third-tier cities in the PRC.
Coupled with the growing of the existing competitors and the increasing of potential
competitors, the market competition is getting more intensified. Confronted by the
fierce competition from other operators, the Company needs to review its brand
positioning and adopt phased upgrading and adjustment, otherwise, the business,

operating results and the financial position would be materially adversely affected.

The Company will actively collect data to have a better understand of the market
and develop coping strategies. The Company also conducts research in the
properties nearby the project to have a good knowledge of the regional market,
adjust its sales price and set up marketing plans and schedules, with an aim to

maintain the Company’s competitiveness in the industry.
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Catering business

In line with the market trend and customer preferences, Golden Jaguar needs
to transform its business accordingly. As such, the business of Golden Jaguar is
shifting from providing traditional western buffet to providing diversified special
buffet (including seafood buffet), so as to cater to customer tastes. For avoiding
of loss of customer base and market shares, the management and marketing
department of Golden Jaguar is required to formulate a strategic plan for the

implementation of its transformation.
Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year under review, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and

operation of the Group.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets of the Group.
The Group aims to continue establishing a caring environment to employees and

emphasis the personal development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with our customers and suppliers. The
Group aims to continue providing quality services and consumption experiences to

our customers and establishing cooperation strategy with our suppliers.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
67 to 68.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group made HK$213,800 charitable
donations (2015: HK$50,000).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders of the Company
entitled to attend and vote at the 2017 AGM to be held on Tuesday, 9 May 2017, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 2 May 2017 to
Tuesday, 9 May 2017, both days inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares
will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 28 April 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2016 in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2016 in the
investment properties of the Group are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution
to equity holders of the Company was approximately HK$9,404,000 (2015:
approximately HK$9,404,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the year are set out in Note 28

to the consolidated financial statements.
SHARES ISSUED

During the year, the Company has issued shares with details as follows:

1. On 21 June 2016, an aggregate of 725,000,000 new ordinary shares were
allotted and issued at HK$0.95 per share pursuant to the subscription
agreement dated 13 June 2016. The gross proceeds of the subscription was
HK$688,750,000;

2. On 7 July 2016, an aggregate of 440,000,000 new ordinary shares were
allotted and issued at HK$0.88 per share pursuant to the subscription
agreement dated 29 June 2016. The gross proceeds of the subscription was
HK$387,200,000; and

3. On 22 December 2016, an aggregate of 830,350,000 new ordinary shares
were allotted and issued at HK$0.873 per share pursuant to the placing
agreement dated 14 December 2016. The gross proceeds from the placing
was HK$724,895,550.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

On 14 April 2016, a subsidiary of the Company repurchased an aggregate
principal amount of RMB400,000,000 of the RMB500,000,000 11.5% Senior
Bonds due 2016 issued by the Company (stock code: 85707) on the Stock
Exchange. The aggregate price paid for the repurchase (excluding expenses) was
RMB400,000,000.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision
is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when the Report of
the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1) (a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 204 of this report.
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DIRECTORS

The list of Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. King Pak Fu (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric
(former Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng

Mr. Meng Cai

Mr. Wang Yikun

Mr. Tsai Tson
(also known as Steve Tsai)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral
Mr. Lie Chi Wing
Ms. Hu Gin Ing

In accordance with Bye-law 111 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral

shall retire from office as Director by rotation and, being eligible, offer himself for

re-election at the 2017 AGM.

In accordance with Bye-law 115 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Wang Yikun and Mr. Tsai
Tson, being Directors appointed after the 2016 annual general meeting of the

Company, shall be subject to re-election at the 2017 AGM and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

(resigned on 26 May 2016)

(appointed on 10 May 2016 and

resigned on 9 February 2017)

(appointed on 3 February 2017)

(appointed on 8 February 2017)
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. King Pak Fu entered into a service contract with the Company on 4 November
2015 with retrospective effect from 1 August 2015 with no specific term unless

terminated by either party by giving 3 months’ advance notice to the other.

Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng entered in to a service contract with the Company on 7

March 2012 with no fixed term of service.

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral signed an appointment letter issued by the Company
on 10 December 2014 for an initial term of one year commencing on 10 December
2014, which was automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon the
expiry of the said term, and expired on 10 December 2016. Mr. Chan further signed
an appointment letter issued by the Company on 10 December 2016 for a term of
one year commencing on 10 December 2016, which is automatically renewable for

successive term of one year upon expiry of the said term.

Mr. Lie Chi Wing signed an appointment letter issued by the Company on 5
February 2015 for an initial term of one year commencing on 5 February 2015,
which was automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon the
expiry of the said term, and expired on 5 February 2017. Mr. Lie further signed
an appointment letter issued by the Company on 5 February 2017 for a term of
one year commencing on 5 February 2017, which is automatically renewable for

successive term of one year upon expiry of the said term.

Ms. Hu Gin Ing signed an appointment letter issued by the Company on 16
December 2015 for a term of one year commencing on 16 December 2015, which
was automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon the expiry of the

said term.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors,
a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are

independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to

enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above in the sections headed “Connected Transactions” below
and “Significant Related Party Transactions” in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements, no significant transaction, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether

directly or indirectly subsisted at the year-end or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief

executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)

which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are

taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,

pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,

or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below:
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Name of Directors Capacity Short position (no. of shares) (no. of shares) of shares held the Company Note
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Mr. King Pak Fu (“Mr. King”) ~ Interest of controlled Long position 10,694,978,614 - 10,694,978,614 63.37 1
corporations
REFRE ([RELD 2 MR Jig:]
Note: B 55 -

(i) 6,188,026,998 ordinary shares are held through Better Joint Venture Limited
(“Better Joint”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. King; (ii)
1,295,038,846 ordinary shares are held through Glory Merit International
Holdings Limited (“Glory Merit”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability which is beneficially owned as to 99% by Mr. King;
(iii) 2,095,982,970 ordinary shares are held through Elite Mile Investments
Limited (“Elite Mile”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. King; (iv)
1,115,929,800 shares are held through Sino Wealthy Limited (“Sino Wealthy”), a
company which is wholly-owned by Bremwood Holdings Limited (“Bremwood
Holdings”), which is in turn wholly-owned by Gauteng Focus Limited (“Gauteng
Focus”), which is in turn wholly-owned by Rentian Technology Holdings Limited
(“Rentian Technology”), a company which is held as to 51.40% by Mystery Idea
Limited (“Mystery Idea”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. King.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or chief executives of the Company
or their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
defined in Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as at 31 December 2016.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the interests of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, the following shareholders
had notified the Company of relevant interests or short position in shares and

underlying shares of Company as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Long position/ Ordinary shares Derivative shares capital of
Name Capacity short position (no. of shares) (no. of shares) the Company Notes
iR
4 98 B G CAHAT Bk
JBER 4 273 508 3 (B %H) (B ¥H) BE&TE 2 Bk
Better Joint Beneficial owner Long position 6,188,026,998 - 36.66 1
(£ DN WA
Glory Merit Beneficial owner Long position 1,295,038,846 - 7.67 2
KT (£ DN WA
Elite Mile Beneficial owner Long position 2,095,982,970 - 12.42 3
B HaBEA A WA
Haitong International Securities Beneficial owner Long position 736,180,000 - 436 4
Group Limited gt 2PN WA
110 R B % A A R A R Security interest Long position 166,000,000 307,738,095 2.81 4
PRaB S WA
Beneficial owner Short position - 736,180,000 4.36 4
HaHEA A WA
Sino Wealthy Beneficial owner Long position 1,115,929,800 - 6.61 o
[LEE DN WA
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Notes:

Better Joint is the legal and beneficial owner of 6,188,026,998 ordinary shares.
Better Joint is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. King. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. King is deemed to be interested in those shares held by Better Joint.

Glory Merit is the legal and beneficial owner of 1,295,038,846 ordinary shares of
the Company. Glory Merit is beneficially owned as to 99% by Mr. King. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. King is deemed to be interested in those shares held by Glory
Merit.

Elite Mile is the legal and beneficial owner of 2,095,982,970 ordinary shares of
the Company. Elite Mile is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. King. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. King is deemed to be interested in those shares held by Elite Mile.

These include (i) 736,180,000 ordinary shares and 736,180,000 derivative
shares held through Haitong International Financial Solutions Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Haitong International Finance Company Limited, (ii) interest
in the convertible bonds issued by the Company in the principal amount of
USD50,000,000 due 2018 which is convertible into a maximum of 307,738,095
shares upon full conversion at the conversion price of HK$1.26 based on the
exchange rate of USD1 = HK$7.755 held through Haitong International Asset
Management Limited, which is also wholly-owned by Haitong International
Finance Company Limited, and (iii) 166,000,000 ordinary shares held through
Haitong International Finance Company Limited. Haitong International Finance
Company is wholly-owned by Haitong International (BVI) Limited, which is in
turn wholly-owned by Haitong International Securities Group Limited, which
is owned as to 61.00% by Haitong International Holdings Limited, a company
which is wholly-owned by Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. By virtue of the SFO,
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd is deemed to be interested in those interests held by
Haitong International Securities Group Limited.

Sino Wealthy is the legal and beneficial owner of 1,115,929,800 ordinary shares
of the Company, Sino Wealthy is wholly-owned by Bremwood Holdings, which
is in turn wholly-owned by Gauteng Focus, which is in turn wholly-owned by
Rentian Technology, a company which is held as to 51.40% by Mystery Idea,
which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. King. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. King is
deemed to be interested in those shares held by Sino Wealthy.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of the

Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having interests

or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2016.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2016.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Continuing connected transaction — Services Agreement

On 7 December 2015, the Company and Rentian Technology Holdings Limited
(“Rentian”), entered into a services agreement (the “Services Agreement”)
regarding the provision of services by Rentian and its subsidiaries (“Rentian
Group”) to the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for a term of one year

commenced from 1 January 2016 and expired on 31 December 2016.

As at the date of the Services Agreement, Rentian was owned as to 64.87% by
Mr. King Pak Fu, the chairman and an executive Director, and the controlling
shareholder of the Company, and therefore a connected person of the Company

under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the fees payable to Rentian Group under the Services Agreement
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 is HK$20,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no fees payable/paid by the

Group to Rentian Group under the Services Agreement.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2013. Pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its discretion offer options to any eligible
participants including, but not limited to any person being an employee, executive
directors, or non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Group or any invested entity and any supplier, adviser or consultant
to any area of business or business development of any member of the Group or any

invested entity.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme (after considering the share options already granted
under the Share Option Scheme) is 1,291,388,404, representing approximately

7.65% of the shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in Note 38 to the

consolidated financial statements.
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as those disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
Directors’ Report and “Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources” in
the Management Discussion and Analysis and also “Convertible Bonds™ in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements, no other equity-linked agreements were

entered into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2016 are

set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
BORROWINGS

Particulars of loans of the Group as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 30 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Contracts with the Group’s five largest suppliers combined by value, accounted
for 20.9% in value of total purchases during the year ended 31 December 2016,
while contracts with the Group’s largest supplier by value, accounted for 13.3% in
value of total purchases during the year ended 31 December 2016. Contracts with
the Group’s five largest customers aggregated accounted for less than 30% of the

Group’s sales during the year ended 31 December 2016.

None of the Directors, their associates or any other shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics. Details of the
Company’s share option scheme are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the Group’s retirement benefit plans are set out in note 39 to

the consolidated financial statements.
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for year ended 31 December 2016 are

set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as

required under the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 9 November 1999 with written
terms of reference, which was revised on 29 December 2015 to be in compliance
with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting system and to review the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung
Admiral (as chairman), Mr. Lie Chi Wing and Ms. Hu Gin Ing. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the

Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.
AUDITORS

The accounts for the years ended 31 December 2014, 2015 and 2016 were audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the 2017 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited as auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the 2017 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Carnival Group International Holdings Limited
King Pak Fu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRBE L R I,

The Company is pleased to present our first Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) Report. The report summarises our performance in ESG during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

The scope of this report covers our main business operations in property

development and investment as well as catering business.

The report is compiled in accordance with the Environmental, Social and

Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Sustainable development is ingrained in our core value. The Group endeavours to
create long-term value for our stakeholders, including our employees, customers,
shareholders, suppliers and the community as a whole. We engage with our
stakeholders on an on-going basis to collect their views and act on their feedback.
The key interests and concerns of our stakeholders are reflected and prioritised for

disclosure in the report.
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to operating its businesses in an environmentally
responsible manner through improving energy efficiency and minimising its

environmental footprint.

We tackle our greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions by lowering our energy
consumption. Policies and procedures to encourage energy saving have been
incorporated throughout our operations. For our property development and
investment business, motion-activated lighting systems are installed in our
developed properties to reduce electricity consumption. These properties are also
designed to keep warm in winter and insulate heat in summer to reduce electricity

consumption from air conditioning.

To bring down energy consumption caused by lighting in our catering business,
our restaurants rely on natural light to the greatest extent during daytime and
illuminated signs are only switched on at night. Some restaurants have replaced
conventional lighting with LED and this measure is expected to be spread across the

whole catering business of the Group.
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At our offices, double-side printing is expected under most circumstances. We
remind our employees to switch off idle electrical appliances to promote energy
saving. Employees are also encouraged to use alternative measures such as
videoconferencing to avoid unnecessary business travels and reduce our indirect

GHG emissions.

Responsible construction practices are encouraged to mitigate our environmental
impacts. Where earth-moving activities or excavation are carried out, we apply
control measures such as spraying water on those areas to reduce dust emissions
from construction activities. Reuse and recycling of wastes generated from
construction and demolition are encouraged and implemented in the field. Wastes
generated are collected by licensed independent parties for proper disposal. At our
catering business, we have abandoned the use of disposable utensils. Waste cooking
oil is recycled as soap making material by third party. In addition, we engage our

customers in reducing waste by encouraging them to avoid food wastage.

The Group actively seeks ways to conserve water. Rainwater is collected at
our developed properties for plant irrigation. At our catering business, we set
our procedures stringently to prohibit the practice of keeping water running for
defrosting food. Our business is also exploring the use of water-efficient dish

washers given our commitment to resource consciousness.

The Group undertakes rigorous measures to minimise impacts to the environment.
Various factors including those related to the environmental and social issues
are taken into consideration in site selection and development. In particular,
comprehensive investigation, assessment and remediation where needed will be
carried out in line with the applicable regulations for brownfield development. At
our restaurants, menus are designed according to seasonal shifts to prevent over-

reliance on certain food that could affect the ecosystems.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
Employment

The Group aspires to create a caring environment to our people and create an
empowering culture. Policies are in place to stipulate key human resources
management practices in recruitment, promotion, working hours, equal
opportunities and compensation benefits. The Group acknowledges the importance
of attracting more talent to support our business growth. The property development
and investment operation collaborates with top universities in China to organise
recruitment fairs and talks, so as to source high calibre talent for the strategic growth

of our business.

We reward and promote our people based on their capability and performance.
Remuneration packages are benchmarked with the competitive market. Our
employees are provided with other benefits including share options, insurance,
transportation allowance, communication allowance, extended maternity leaves and

retirement benefits.

The Group is committed to constructing an inclusive workplace that embraces
diversity and equal opportunity. The management sets a tone of zero tolerance
to harassment and discrimination of any form. Employees are hired and selected
based on their merits, regardless of their gender, age, nationality, religious belief,
marital status, etc. To foster a harmonious working environment and encourage
collaboration, we organised a series of teambuilding activities, including
excursions, basketball competition, canaling and singing events during the

reporting period.
Health and safety

Protecting the health, safety and wellbeing of our employees is our key priority.
For example, workplace hazards are identified by experienced safety personnel
and mitigation measures are implemented to reduce occupational health and safety
risks at our construction sites. Safety performance is monitored and followed up to
encourage continuous improvement. Our employees are reminded and trained to
apply proper personal protective equipment. Regular safety talks and seminars are
held to increase workplace safety awareness. Annual health checks are conducted
to monitor the health and wellbeing of our workforce. In addition, we also promote

the concept of healthy living by providing employees with a balanced diet.
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At our catering business, we employ the “Six T” Standard, which is a set of
generally accepted guidelines to guide the health and safety management for
the food and beverage industry in China. The Standard aims to prevent potential
workplace hazards such as those related to working in the kitchen. Our restaurant
managers and chefs are required to provide updates on workplace incidents to

management and monitor rectification progress on a regular basis.
Development and Training

The Group believes in empowering its employees through constant development
and training. Training at all levels is available to meet the needs of our business
growth. For instance, training courses are provided through our electronic platform
to enable learning anytime, anywhere. Induction and mentorship are given to new
joiners to help them better understand the corporate culture and settle in their new
positions. At the catering business, our restaurant managers and chefs are required
to attend at least four hours of training per month to keep up with the trend and

development in the industry.
Labour Standards

The Group strives to prohibit the use of child or forced labour in its operations.
Our suppliers and contractors are expected to follow the same standard of labour

practices when working with us.
OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

We are keenly aware of the potential environmental and social risks associated
with our supply chain and are committed to mitigating such risks in collaboration
with our suppliers. For example, at our property development and investment
business, environmental and safety performance is one of the key assessment
criteria when we select contractors and material suppliers. Our catering business has
implemented rigorous assessment and monitoring procedures on suppliers of food

and beverages.
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Product Responsibility

The Group endeavours to deliver quality products and services. At our property
development and investment business, we focus on product quality throughout the
entire life cycle of property development. We engage experienced site supervisors
to conduct quality inspections on construction materials. Quality surveillance
is carried out to identify and address potential defective work in a timely basis.
Furthermore, the environment at our managed residential sites is regularly evaluated

to ensure a clean and healthy environment for residents.

At our catering business, we implement stringent standard operating procedures to
ensure the quality, safety and hygienic conditions of food we prepare and serve. The
procedures cover the entire food production process including storage, preparation,
cooking and serving. Thorough cleaning and sanitation regimes are enforced at the
premises. Our staff are reminded to maintain good personal hygiene and required
to wear sterilised uniforms, disposable gloves, face masks and hair covers in the
kitchen. Sample checking is conducted on a daily basis across our restaurants to

monitor food quality and operating performance.

‘We have various mechanisms in place for receiving customer feedback. Complaints
are recorded and followed up by dedicated well-trained staff in a timely manner to

improve customer experience.

We respect customer data privacy and are committed to preventing customer data
leakage or loss. Collected customer personal data is accessible only by authorised
personnel and handled with care. We also observe the significance of having correct

labeling of our products to protect the interests of our customers.
Anti-corruption

The Group operates with a high standard of integrity and ethics. We implement
policies and procedures to minimise risks of fraud, corruption and bribery. Our
principle on anti-corruption is well conveyed to our employees through daily
communication, training and workshops. The Group has also established whistle-
blowing mechanisms that allow employees and third parties to report suspicious

cases in a confidential manner.
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Community Investment

The Group is dedicated to improve the quality of life for and bring new lifestyles to
the community through both its business operations and community involvement.
Over the years, we supported many charitable events and provided relief to
natural disaster victims through donations. Leveraging our expertise in property
development, we built a park in close proximity of the surrounding neighbourhoods
and provided free entrance to the public. To manifest our efforts in supporting an
inclusive and caring community, we also hire physically challenged people for our

catering business.
REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and regulations that
has a significant impact on the Group relating to emissions, employment, health

and safety, labour standards, product responsibility and anti-corruption during the

reporting period.

Rt R T —

e

id % 3

A SR By 0 SR R T 2 B [ ) >
b Dt A 5 R B > A D A BT P A O R B AR
B — B SCHE R B R E B > 2 U SR AR K o B
38 A B Sy 0 40 8 DA 3R AR o A A R R A R e —
I 2 T - 9 B 1 2 SR B o A Y o AR SR O I
BN - T S A0 A ) 5B B AL IR ) -

A ig)

T3 ST 1A > A G5 SIS 5% B AR T - R AR - A R
S A~ 45 TR S A BUAE MR BT O AR
P A K R R 0 A UL -



F AT R P B TR ] | 20164F 3t

Independent Auditors’ Report
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B st EH A KA
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

To the shareholders of
Carnival Group International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Carnival Group
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 202, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
BASIS FOR OPINION

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Pl 3 7 e

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of 2] S 2 T AR R A1 Bk S ) B > S A [ £
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current BMBERENFF R A EENSEIE S H IR
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated Fhe A" 2 T A A T S R I LR R R AT R B
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not B o AN AN i Lo O AR RO M A o

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

LE S e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FA A sk dun o P B S A 20

Carrying values of properties under development and completed

properties for sale

B 4 36 KRR AR A O R S IR T

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had properties under
development and completed properties for sale (the “Properties
Portfolio”) amounting to approximately HK$2,615,160,000 and
approximately HK$2,392,067,000, respectively, situated in various
locations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The
Properties Portfolio is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Significant management judgement is required in determining
the estimated net realisable values of the Properties Portfolio with
reference to the latest selling prices of the properties and costs to be
incurred until completion and sale and the valuation report performed
by an independent professional valuer engaged by the Group.
BEFR-ANEFZAZ—H o BR8P R R
B CE 3 (TS AL G ) AR 20 31 7 £92,615,160,0008
TG K% #12,392,067,0008 78 - Sl 2 N RICRIE (TP ]) &
A 75 o 490 S AL 102 B AR B v 8 B A G 5 o AR A AR o
TP A W S AL A0 Al T 5 B IR > ZEUAE O B A
B > 3 275 36 0 e A 1 S A DL T L A 3R TR B I
7 A A B DA e A S T IR ) < . S S A O AR e
B 7 o

The accounting policies and disclosures for the impairment of
properties under development and completed properties for sale are
included in notes 3, 4 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.
T Je v 2 T T B L9 D S VA Y T R BOR R B
53 BT A5 6 T 85 LR W a3 ~ 40221 o

Our audit procedures included:

FAM B 7 AR P AL 45

. Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating management’s
procedures on identifying properties for which the net realisable
values may be lower than their carrying amounts, including
the methodologies and inputs used in the estimation of the net
realisable values;

. AR 7k 0 9 5 L g S T 5 B 3 T K L MR o P
FA I R - A I Al T T 8 B R ML N T R A kI A
g

. Comparing to the latest selling prices of the properties;

o HREREWEREOE B

. Testing the calculation for the impairment assessment performed

by management;

o DR L R O AT AL A B BR R B

o Comparing to the latest land auction price of comparable land or

valuation of land;
. BEL] b o Y o 0 b A T RS AT Ll S S AT
T M A A 5

. For properties under development, assessing the construction costs

to be incurred; and

o BRERRER R E > FEANNE A A i A R

. Engaging our valuation specialists on evaluating the methodologies

and assumptions adopted in the valuation.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FA A A sk don o 2 B S A 29

Valuation of completed investment properties and investment

properties under development in the PRC
PLjf I 2 V6 BB W S S B R R W 3 2 A

The Group has various completed investment properties and
investment properties under development in the PRC. Such
properties are measured at fair value and their aggregate carrying
amount was approximately HK$5,431,830,000 as at 31 December
2016.

AR EAE P B N B 2 TH O RIS W R B R bR
o DEW AL A TERHR T E RN R AT
= H AR T A8 A 49 455,431,830,0008 7T ©

Significant estimation and judgement are required by management to
determine the fair value of the completed investment properties and
investment properties under development. To support management’s
determination of the fair value, the Group engaged an independent
professional valuer to perform valuations on the completed
investment properties and investment properties under development
at the end of the reporting period.
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The accounting policies and disclosures for the estimation of fair
value of investment properties are included in notes 3, 4 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Our audit procedures included:

B B 2 AR LA

. Evaluating the objectivity, independence and competency of

management’s valuer;

o A R AL R B ~ S B A

. Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process and
significant assumptions and critical judgement areas to assess if the
approaches are consistent with relevant accounting requirements

and industry norms;
. TR A AR~ B AR R T B ) B R 0 DA T A A 7 3
AT SR B & st T AT SRR R A

. Performing market research and analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment properties resulted from the
valuation was reasonable and consistent with market trends to our
knowledge;

o EATHS BRSNS HT > DAGEAl B 3 TR A R HH B
P ) A B R £ 3R AN T S 0 i 5 e

. Assessing the appropriateness of estimated construction cost
to complete for investment properties under construction and
investment properties pending revitalisation by comparing the costs
incurred to date against the budgets and evaluating whether the
expected developer’s profit margins are comparable to the market;
and

o BB E S BT B R W AR BT AT - BEAN 8 B AE R S
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. Engaging our valuation specialists to assist us to assess the
methodologies and assumptions adopted in the valuation for
estimating the fair value of the investment properties and
performing benchmarking of the market value of investment

properties held by the Group to other comparable properties.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

P 2 s it 2 o5 FRAP A g it S o BT B it
Carrying amount of goodwill and other intangible assets with Our audit procedures included:
indefinite useful lives oA i A FH AR T A

U o 5 vy 152 P390 W R B Al 06 082 e M v

The Group’s goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives, which comprises the trademark, relate to the catering
business and amounted to approximately HK$870,169,000 and
HK$206,931,000, respectively. Goodwill and other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are subject to annual impairment testing
and when there is a trigger for testing in accordance with HKFRSs.

A P EL S e A T D S0 LA ST R (B AR R A
SRR B 5 A B - 43 ) A #9870,169,0009 7T $2206,931,000%
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We focused on this area due to the significance of the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the Group
and the level of subjectivity and uncertainty associated with the
assumptions and inputs used in estimating the recoverable amount,
which is based on a value in use calculation, of the cash generating
units (“CGUs”) to which the goodwill and trademark have been
allocated. These assumptions and inputs include cash flow forecasts,
growth rates used to extrapolate the forecast cash flows and
appropriate pre-tax discount rates reference to the valuation report
performed by an independent professional valuer engaged by the
Group.

FAM A 9 — T T T o R I A B S R R 1 P R A R
SBIC R TR > YL 8 B A w1 v e v B 40 TC i 76 W 3
S B (T84 A B | ) 2 vl o] i gt (5 4
w5 ) AR i i R P A A1 s B i A\ S Y e B A e
KT o AR B A B B T R T - MR B
WEAMHREA R OBRBRA ISR (2% HEM
7215 V080 S S A L R T AR B A (L )

The accounting policies and disclosures for the goodwill and
trademark are included in notes 3, 4, 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

0 R 2 5 v R P B SR e R 4 T AU A o 2 A B
RE3 4~ 18K19 ©

Evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by the Group
in performing the impairment assessment, in particular those
relating cash flow forecasts, the growth rates used to extrapolate the
cash flows and the discount rates applied;

AT S8 A AT AL WA 5 T T AR By 5 - TR
BB B i TR ~ e B U T D A R % i T 4
BRA B

We tested the basis of preparing the cash flow forecasts taking
into account the back testing results on the accuracy of previous
forecasts and the historic evidence supporting underlying
assumptions;

AP 7 25 A S B 4 e TR0 10 A AT 0 S O % DA A
e 0 e e 2 D] S0 A 2R e S e R O A1 % B B R R

We also assessed the appropriateness of the other key assumptions,
such as the growth rates used to extrapolate the cash flows and the
discount rates applied, by comparing against internal information,
and external economic and market data;

T 7 925 308 LU PR 75 R B A1 488 % T 355 SR A D At
BB A B o 91 P A B A T P A R R S
ol WG P B 7 B

Engaging our valuation specialists on evaluating the methodologies

and assumptions adopted in the valuation; and

EQ LGRS YN L) S LY R YR 3 T e

We also reviewed management’s sensitivity and tested
independently those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is most sensitive.

FRAMY 725 34 A 0L A P SRR - N 2 S U (e A R
S 2y SR B A S R
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not

include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

oAb ¥

T ) o I At R £ T o Ut R 6 45 A
J A 2 W AR (O L3 A3 B 5 R R ) R BAM Bt
I % Y P A R A o

B AN B 3 T 2 A Y TR L I A 9 2 LA R > R
1 78 7 36 I At 25 R 3 3 A Ao T2 o 38 Al

2 BAM Tt A £ B 5 R AR IR > AN Y B AT L B L
il R - A2 B0 FR i > 25 R L Al YR A SR A A T
s A s B AM A 7w AR P BT TR A DUA TR
il > B 0L A K R R o R R AN AT Y
A G SRR AN 5 A R K B R O - B
A1) 5 BE R % B T o AR IS T T - FAM WA AT

R A W R AUR I W T AT

T R F A TR A W S A A
S 85 4 v 2 ) 5 A i A6 A9 ¥ 4 8 L AR DT
TG 2 S0 ) A B 785 R A > Sl 3 DR s T 0 R 5 T S
22 1 $58 4 A A A P 7 SR T B8 T 2 B TR
e DR P 0 8 FE P 48 ) B o

TEBER AR & W B B > AT HE M
BB W RE ) > N AR N UL T R B R R A
R % - DA % P R A s SRR - BRI
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement

and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

O Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the

directors.

Kﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁi%ﬁi@ﬁt%%ﬁ
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

‘We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

o HEEIRRSEACE o At AR R AR A 1 A
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent auditors’ report

is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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Ao A A 2 B LAt 2 i d 3

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE ~R—N4ET - H=Z1T—HILEE

2016 2015
TR AN —E T
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bk T#L T#C
Revenue W 28 5 1,146,888
Cost of sales 88 AR (555,786)
Gross profit BF 591,102
Other income oAb e A 7 81,748
Selling and marketing expenses S T S P 3 (256,128)
Administrative expenses AT BB 32 (251,521)
Fair value change on financial liabilities WAFER AR Z
at fair value through profit or loss S B EZ A PEET 32 (17,160)
Fair value change on investment properties ~ & &2 AV {E 5% B 17 19,452
Loss on disposal of available for sale W T B 2
investments (7,061)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary Hh B — [ M 2 W) 2 WA -
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate JEAL — B s AW Z
wiAl, (i) 15 (5.826)
Finance costs W85 A 8 (58,878)
Profit before tax [ At wif ¥z 1) 95,728
Income tax (expense)/credit BBt () Rk 9 8,162
Profit for the year A4 JE i A 10 103,890
Other comprehensive income/(expense) BB 15 BL 4% b 2t Mk 3% (i)
Items that will not be reclassitied HAFA BT F A 27 B2 1R 7
to profit or loss: ZIHH -
Revaluation of property, AR~ WU K
plant and equipment L 16 -
Deferred tax liability on recognition of s 2 ALY~ W R 2
revaluation of property, T S A58 I £ A
plant and equipment =
Items that may be reclassified subsequently — H 1 i R 4 F £ R as Z H H -
to profit or loss:
Share of exchange differences of an associate JRE Ak — [ 25 ) g [ 3 2 S 15 (5,193)
Reclassification adjustment for exchange T B R B A IR AR ok R B fk
reserve release upon disposal of Z EHT 43 S
a subsidiary =
Exchange differences on translating of e T IEAN S T 2 A 2 B 7% L
foreign operations (394,005)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, ek Fr A5 A6 4% 4 R A 2 TG 52
net of income tax (399,198)
Total comprehensive expense for the year  4F J& 4 1fii 3¢ i 44 % (295,308)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E T —N4ETH=1T—HILEE

2016 2015

TR N R —HAE

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
/A T F#L

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: 5 A L HEAG4EBERR A, (G ) -

Owners of the Company VNASEIE. 2PN 120,453
Non-controlling interests EIRCY2 £ (16,563)
103,890
Total comprehensive income/(expense) THALREAS2TRA, () ¢
attributable to:

Owners of the Company PN 2SN (167,172)

Non-controlling interests FIR Y2 £ (128,136)
(295,308)

Earnings per share A 14

— Basic (HK cents per share) — AR (s Al) 0.86

— Diluted (HK cents per share) — B (B s Al) 0.86

i, z:aél;é i
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

TRt E N

At 31 December 2016 R _F—ANE+_H=1+—H

Notes
Kt

Non-current assets Ik 8 B
Property, plant and equipment LE RN & 16
Investment properties Ed-g/ES 17
Interests in an associate i — kg A W] Z HEAS 15
Long-term rental deposit R B4 23
Other intangible assets HoAb TR & 2 18
Goodwill T 19
Deferred tax assets 9 S BRI 31
Current assets TR U< 7
Inventories et 21
Trade receivables JRE W B2 5 MRk 22
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEAY sk ~ 35 45 B -t 8 WOk I 23
Financial assets at fair value through TN RN AIE f 2 4 i E

profit or loss 20
Pledged bank deposits CLHEAH SRAT 77 3K 24
Cash and cash equivalents Bl K B4 ) 24
Total assets ¥
Current liabilities TR R s
Trade payables e B2 5 MRk 25
Deposits from customers %P4 26
Accrued liabilities and other payables JRE R A R A 26
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JRE A S i IR RE 25 3K I 27
Amounts due to related companies JRE A R B 8 ] R OB 27
Obligation under finance lease AE M EIH T2 HAE 29
Current tax liabilities BIVRA B 1 £ A
Borrowings — current portions ¥k — B3R 43 30
Provisions £ 4] S5
Net current assets L )
Total assets less current liabilities B 7 DR 0 £ A6

2016
-
HK$°000
T#x

2015
e
HKS$’000
F#C

5,976,349
4,420,271
86,824
21,045
206,931
870,169
444

11,582,033

4,294,048
85,296
3,230,480

739,238
2,371,305
717,989

11,438,356

23,020,389

1,756,995
1,489,697
563,858
60,076
16,890
323
39,868
4,217,140
89,433

8,234,280

3,204,076

14,786,109
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At 31 December 2016 P _~FE—ANE+_H=1+—H

2016
TR AN
Notes HK$’000
i3 T#xT
Capital and reserves A T il i
Share capital BEAR 28
Share premium and reserves T Ay Yt 1 B £t
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A< 2\ w] # A A HEAG # 25
Non-controlling interests Ik i I HE 25
Total equity HE 2 A
Non-current liabilities I 08 3y £ 4
Deferred income WA 26
Long-term payable 1 301 A sk I 26
Borrowings fi 3k 30
Obligation under finance lease il FHL S IE R 2 BT 29
Deferred tax liabilities A S BEIE £UAK 31
Convertible bonds Ry des 32

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

Board of Directors on 21 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

King Pak Fu

REF
Director

HF

HAMBERECOR -F-LE=ZA S HEESR

2015
e
HKS$’000
F#C

2,976,476
2,215,652

5,192,128
1,894,168

7,086,296

80,786
89,533
3,507,061
681
1,529,191
2,492,561

7,699,813

14,786,109

e R AR B o Sl RS E R E

Wang Yikun
ERH

Director

#HF

I
EEEET ]

HH R
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Er iR S W

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE ~R—N4ET - H=Z1T—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RBRAR T A
Convertible
notes Share Non-
Share Share  Contributed equity options  Translation ~ Revaluation Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium surplus Teserve reserve reserve Teserve losses Total interests equity
WH B
Bk R MOARE  BGEA WRERE  BREE O THEE  RhER TS T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T THx TExE T#x T#X Tk T#Z Ti#x T#x T TEx
Note ()~ Note (b) (c)
Witw Mo
At ] January 2015 REZ—LE—A—H 2755171 4010669 9,404 90,116 27487 125514 - (Q427568) 4391399 202234 6613703
Profit for the year R - - - - - - - 120453 120453 (16,563) 103890
Exchange differences on translating of BHIN R A 2 BN E R
foreign operations - - - - - (287,625) - - (287625)  (111573)  (399,198)
Total comprehensive income for the year EREATRAL - - - - - (287629 - 120453 (6717 (128,136)  (295,308)
Release of deferred tax liabilty upon conversion of ST e B e A R AE L 1 65
convertible bonds - - - 4866 - - - - 4866 - 4866
Conversion of convertble bonds SHTHRB G 14869 116797 - (48 - - - B ST - Il
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments HE DB B8 5 B A 2 k0 - - - - 49359 - - - 49359 - 49359
Share options lapsed during the year N KR N - - - - (10.833) - - - (10.833) - (10.833)
Recognition of equity component of convertible bonds e B B M A - - - $0718 - - - - 83078 - 43078
Deferred tax liability on recognition of equity HEA T e B R 2
component of convertible bonds ZEEREA S - - - (7,108) - - - - (7,108) - (7,108)
Tssue of shares by way of placing BRRERGRG 000 453600 - - - - - - 55600 - 55600
Transaction costs attributable to issue of shares BRI AEN R A - (1575) - - - - - - (1575) - (1575)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 REZ-RHEFAZF-NR
ZF-nE-H - 2976476 4573491 9404 35970 66,013 (162,111) - (2307015 5192128 1894168 7,086,296
Profit for the year R BRI - - - - - - - 123,40 123740 (74,117) 49,623
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment EUTES YL - - - - - - 585,652 - 585,652 - 585,652
Deferred tax liability on recognition of revaluation of Wk s R E i
property, plant and equipment EREB A - - - - - - (Med13) - (M46d13) - (46413
Reclassification adjustment for exchange reserve released TRt A A S 2
upon disposal of a subsidiary EE v bl - - - - - 1677 - - 11,677 - 11677
Exchange differences arising on translation of BB EBRELZ B ER
foreign operations - - - - - (407,226) - - (407,226) (119012) (526,238)
Total comprehensive income for the year LS TION 1] = = = 2 - (35549) 439239 123,40 167430 (193,129)  (256%)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments TR DARERS S SRR S B 2 A - - - - 11407 - - - 11407 - 11407
Share options lapsed/cancelled during the year ENKH /B R - - - - (76,575) - - - (76,575) - (76,575)
Issue of shares by way of placing BRRESTN G 399070 1401776 - - - - - - 1800846 - 1800846
Transaction coss attributable to issue shares BT AENR SARA - (44219) - i 9 = - = (44,219) X (44,219)
At 31 December 2016 REZ-REFZHEE-R 3375546 5,931,048 9404 35970 845 (557,660) 439239 (2,183375) 7051017 1,701,039 8,752,056
— 1 i N\ : =2
T . \\ e
i S i v \ ‘
A:\ L iea Ry - ™ ,
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E T —N4ETH=1T—HILEE

Notes: Mt -

(a)  Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the share premium of the Company can be (@)  MRIBEREN R AR E] Z B p i T 1R A
used in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to members of the A BEAT T A B B A By O R AL Z A A ] 1
Company as fully paid bonus shares. REBEAT AR

(b)  The contributed surplus of the Group represented the net amount arising from the (b)  ARERE Z BONR TR B IR R~
reduction of share premium account, capital reduction and amounts transferred to JBEAAR T i D G 88 008 A 4R B BT 1R R IEH
write off the accumulated losses in prior years. Hio

(©) Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of a company is (c) PR A A W > — M A B Z B BLER IR A 4

available for distribution to shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or IR T BEIH o AR > 2 F AV VLT > — WA " A 2L

pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if: BNFR T IRSIREE B A H 43Uk

(1) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities 1) Ik 2 i) A IR A A% S0 35 BN v AT B 2
as they become due; or 18 5 5

(ii)  the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less than the (i) BB ] Z WA B A AR A A K B
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium AT e A 2 JBe 3 ¥ 1 e 2 AL

account.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE ~R—N4ET - H=Z1T—HILEE

Notes
Operating activities BERE
Profit for the year ARAE JEE 5 A
Adjustments for: FEE RS
Depreciation of property, W W B R 2 R
plant and equipment
Amortisation of other intangible assets Al SR TR B R 4
Fair value change on investment properties % &4 3 2 /A V{58 B
Fair value change on financial liabilities WAFER ARG Z
at fair value through profit or loss SRE 2 AP EE )
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale WAt R E 2 EE
investments
Finance costs 0 AR
Equity-settled share-based payments VAR i 45 53 B AR S A 2 3K0H
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HH B — T A A W) 2 W 2
Income tax expense/(credit) Fifs Rl (HH)
Interest income on bank and other deposits $R 17 5 H: Al 77 3k F 8 A
Dividend income from listed investments 2 H L & 2 BB WA
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE- B LEHEZ
plant and equipment K (Kas)
Written-off on property, plant and LB Y& 4R ]
equipment
Impairment losses on property, plant and 43 ~ Wt 5 M 5% 5 Z W46 0 1H
equipment
Recognition in non-cash item of e o2 8 B AR 2 FE B4 T H
cost of sales
Share of (profit)/loss of an associate JEAL — T A R B (BF) 1R
Loss on repurchase of senior bonds i I A 2 1R
Impairment losses on other receivables At JRE R Aok 2 A s 4
Operating cash flows before movements BEE LSBT Z
in working capital BEB 4
Movements in working capital: BEE L
Inventories ety
Trade receivables JRE WL B 5 MRk
Prepayments, deposits and TEATFRIE ~ 354 B i WOk E
other receivables
Financial instruments at fair value A PR AR 2
through profit or loss TR
Trade payables JEAS B2 5 MRk
Deposits from customers ®PRE
Accrued liabilities and other payables JRE it i 5 ML A JE A R I
Deferred income JEEWA
Cash (used in)/generated from operations mEEE (R EhZB4E
Tax paid e BT
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities — Z& %% (i) @bz
Bl 4 A

2016 2015
- —E TR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T#T

103,890

14,861
(19,452)
17,160

7,061
58,878
38,526

(8,162)
(24,842)
(51,386)

(703)

(30,616)
5,826

111,041

447,674
(23,259)

(599,845)

(690,133)
222,103
810,765
(25,157)

(3,367)

249,822
(3,332)

246,490
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE ~R—N4ET - H=Z1T—HILEE

2016 2015
RN “R—TAE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
W 0 Ti0
Investing activities B BB
Interest received TR B 6,181
Dividend received from listed investments Cl L& KB 2,281
Purchase of available-for-sale investment e R (7,756)
Disposal of available-for-sale investment 8 T B B B 695
Additions to property, plant and equipment B 3 - Wi Kkt (1,256,498)
Additions to investment properties WEBEEYE (272,800)
Additions to other intangible assets Bt R ¥ -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash WSS Y ) (0 B i M 2
and cash equivalents acquired) Bl& KB4 S8 ) 34 13,668
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary Hh B — [ O 2 W] 22 P Ak 35 -
Placement of pledged bank deposits BT AT SRAT K (2,359,831)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits TR CHE AR ST A7 K -
Proceeds from disposal of property, W& BE LRz
plant and equipment Bk 961
Net cash used in investing activities B EH T 2 BT (3,873,099)
Financing activities AR
Repayment from/(to) related companies o8 H B2 W Z KT
(1) ) IR 228 A ) i R 0E (48,159)
Interest paid SRR (784,730)
New bank and other borrowings 4G SRAT B A A K 3,006,151
Repayment from/(to) non-controlling HH () FEdE B 2
interests B R AR (360,317)
Repayment of bank and other borrowings P TR SRAT B Al 3K (1,826,717)
Repayment of obligation under finance lease 18 #2 il & fL & I T Z HAE: (353)
Proceeds on issue of ordinary shares BT BT A3 K E 525,600
Proceeds on issue of bonds BATE S Z Ak 0E 414,000
Proceeds on issue of convertible bonds BEAT R W A 5 B A5 K 0H 2,223,261
Share issue expenses BAT IR X (S15)
Bonds issue expenses BT S (22,182)
Convertible bonds issue expenses AT AR S X (46,193)
Repurchase of senior bonds i T 5 A A =
Net cash from financing activities A G ER 2 B A R 3,072,786
Net decrease in cash and BRERBESFEM2Z
cash equivalents WA B (553,823)
Cash and cash equivalents at the ERI 2B BB %W
beginning of the year 1,310,561
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes o 23 it A 5 28 (38,749)
Cash and cash equivalents at the AR BLA B BL A S
end of the year 24 717,989

4
a8 7 R
: : P 7

£
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao 3 5 WA Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

Carnival Group International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). The Company’s registered office is
situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong is situated at Units

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in theme based leisure and consumption business,
focusing on the design, development and operation of integrated large-scale
tourist complex projects in key cities in and outside the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) that comprise of theme parks, hotels, shopping and

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
2003 & 2005, 20/F, AIA Central, 1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
leisure facilities as well as other theme based consumption.

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) for the first time in current year:

— &R

HEERBEERARAE (TARAHE])RE
FEGEM oL B R A E R EMLE A
HBEHRBFEHE SRS HARAR ([HR
B 1) EAR b7 o A B Z Gk R a R
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HMI 1, Bermuda o AX 2 ®] 2 75 ¥ 32 B2/ 3 3 16
B v R BR T R P LSRR A Al b b 20
2003 }%2005% ©

A T B I e A R (AR A [ AR ] ) %
6 =% 2 A DA e o S > R PR P IR
oA (T ) Z 584 R B 7 5
l o B R AR — ML R R AR A H >
LA R R - A B A D i A
e b 3 R IEH -

R TR ) B A6 T 7 8 5 i o
S (T 7 08 30 0 ak o 1 10 1)

AC SR i ACAR BE T U DA o A v s R
A (T W a2 & ) A 0T RAg T
A

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKEFRS 14

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in
Joint Operations
Regulatory Deferral Accounts

& s Al P 7 Bk
R 2 s
BB OFHEAE 6 B2 iE Rk
KA g sk WS BT
B3 AT
HWEsHEAEI6YE BE - EEEED
B A s 5 e Al
WA BT
HWe st A7 HREMBEREZ
P H) 25 9
AW BN BREEE
H10%E 7 s I JRE L & DR 3 S
7 4 5B 1258 e
¥ g 5 HE Al
S8R Z B HT
FMBERERIZ 5905 H AR
C5) B—_EF
SR -NERMZ
4F B W
Tr s I 7 i e 1) W &8 E B R
BIEZ BT & 5l E o v
HWB B REREN EEEERE
1458

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

TP A 4 J5E M 7 5 o o B 2 T R 1B
H S A 5 I A A B RO A 4 B 2 B 5 R B
Btk Pt B, A A 46 ) 4 5 B 26 i i i 91
Z 4 R S JE TR Y B
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture*

Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue from

Contracts with Customers?

Financial Instruments®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Leases?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

R R ) A6 il 7 9 B 5 8
eI (17 B it vl )

(#)

O A A VL 0 A 2 22 T e AT A

& 1A 0 4 v
A A [ Sl S 4 L RE )T B O R4 AE R A2 3K
ZBRT BAE T A v B R R R
FWGE R Pl % w5 #)!
TR Z BT
WG E R T A B B 48 e 5 R
H12SEZ AT T G
FW B DLB Oy R BB A AR
SNk 2 BT RG24 8 R a2
AWM EHREERN  RASFBYERE
AR Z BT i B S AR R By
1 #g— OF HE
v B Rk v
oYk 4 gk T A2
HWMEREELN BEHRILBEAA
IO EFWEF HEBEAEMZE
AR Z BT A MBS ARE
e
BB B I e R
ERL A H) FISEEFGHK
5 9 2
BWMERERN S@TH
9%
FWMERERN P AHKR
159
WM ERERELN M
H165%

: B R LR — ] — B SO AR B R AR

H0 ) A 38 o

z BF— )E— A — H SR BIR 4R

%ﬁﬁﬂi%{"

: BF IR A BB AR BRI AR

1R A2 3o

2 TEREAE H 9 SO AR B 4ty A0 45 5 200 ) A2 28 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction

Contracts” and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a

5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in

the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

R R ) A6 il 7 9 B 5 8
‘ﬁgﬂ) (T 75 98 3o 25 it 5 ¥ 0 )

MR RBISE [H P &8
Wit |

e LA FF) A 48 B ot o U 5 15 9% o B —
S LIRS AR P & AT E L
1 Wi 2 AR o 7 A B A o 5 15 9 AR A
> JLHG R it R S 18 9% [ea | - 7
WA S R [ A A | B B R B
IRFE T SR L 2 A R A 5

A 0 T s At o U5 1S R A B0 R U A
R 16 % o R i L R T e R
Wi 4T > MR B I W % T 8 TR A 2R 40 5
£ b SR AT R A A - RN -
S 51 A e w8 WA i Y A 2 B

B WA -RERELZAH
BB WBERhZEAESE

BEp 0 MERSM

B WRHESTERF P Z B EAE

P L R (BOH) T8 58 BB A BT R
L&
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to
deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 15.

The Directors of the Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of the application of HKFRS 15 and it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group

performs a detailed review.
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations

when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of

low value assets.

2.

R R ) A6 il 7 9 B 5 8
*ﬁgﬂ) (T 75 98 3o 25 it 5 ¥ 0 )

MW RBISE [ H P &8
gl (40)

R 7 s B S B 5 1S 9% > TR S BB
) TEAT R (OBt b ) e R WA > B 4 S B A4
T AR B 2 7 il sl R85 o T e M BGR T R
JF IR o 5 5 B 2 o 1 S % L A A L 2
Ji& BILJ5 5 Im N W e Z 4 5 o BT > 7 o B B
it 3 B 5 1 SR SR B R PR o

A 4 ] S o OE A A o S A o TSR
IS9RZ VEAL R B - 1 58 )R 2 o B il 3 DL AR
SV 5 o T 5 15 9% 2 5 AR A B R

7 v I 0 it o i T S5 16%0% [ 42

A v T it o )5 1 690k A AN B R
RN B0 LB 4 9k % o it O B 5| O\ — I A A
2 o 7 8 S0 785 i+t 2 U 2 1 6 B I A B RN
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75 B % 7 58 0 L 2 AL B B RS 4 o BRI
LB AR AA 2 W AH B Ah > A8 A % il i AL
Ty 28 5 A ARAH N & S e B b 08 - 3 b 2R AR
N ZECR P A L i D R S D M AR
e KA o



F AT R P B TR ] | 20164F 3t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR B
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing and financing/operating cash flows

respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a related
finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets

would be presented if they were owned.
In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward

the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a

lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

2.

R R ) A6 il 7 9 B 5 8
ﬁgj) (T 75 98 3o 25 it 5 ¥ 0 )
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of approximately HK$543,435,000 as disclosed in note 36.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the

financial effect until the directors complete a detailed review.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of other new
and amendments of HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and position and/or the disclosures to the consolidated

financial statements.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given

in exchange for goods and services.

2.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would

use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to

the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee,
it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give

it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and

dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or others

parties;
. rights arising from other contractual agreements; and
. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group

has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities
at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at

previous shareholders’ meetings.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until

the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of

the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or

a joint venture.
Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of

financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss.
Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale,
in which case it is or the portion so classified is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. Any retained portion of an investment in an associate that has
not been classified as held for sale shall be accounted for arising the equity
method. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate or exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period

in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that

the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same basis
as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)

when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment in a joint
venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement

to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

‘When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if
that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the

related assets or liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in

the associate that are not related to the Group.
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19

“Employee Benefits” respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquire are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment” at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy

below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance with that

standard.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the net
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of relevant subsidiary’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling

interests are measured at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest

were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period
(see above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management

purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of

each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of

goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is

described above.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
Group and when specific critieria have been met for each of the Group’s

activities as described below.

Sale of properties is recognised as revenue when all of the following criteria

are met:

. the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the properties are

transferred to buyers;

. neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually

associated with ownership nor effective control over the properties are

retained;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Deposits received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for

revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of financial

position under current liabilities.
|| |

3.

EEEHHEOR (4)

wE (4

ot A R B A AT > B B A
TP A IR A 4 A

7K 5% R D O W A Z TR BUR
WA L3

W g e

Wik 75 4 OO sl MR AR B 2 AP B R -

BN TR ST A > WA 4 AR AR R SE M ET R - TR

2% 48 % ) 2 A T RE U N AR 4 I 4% TE AR 4

M 3 % 2 4 R A A5 DLJE BRCIRE > 5 R R R MK

50

F B A A DL T e R R R A WA

. S P A RE 2 TR B % el i T
X

. ANFA 3 07 B 2 A PR
TR B 38 2 BB B 5

. W £ 4 HE R T S8 b o

. 25 KB 2 B8R g e A ARG 5 R

. 22 Gy A T T A it A A R T S R
BREHER o

A W 2% e R A A b AR R A T B R D7 MORZ AT
4 T3k A\ T B IR U R = i ) £ A



F AT R P B TR ] | 20164 3t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Property management service income is recognised over the period in which

the services are rendered.

Other property related service income is recognised when the services are

rendered.

Revenue from restaurant operations is recognised when catering services

have been provided to customers.

Revenue from the sale of foods is recognised when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually

associated with ownership, nor effective control over the foods sold.

Revenue from admission tickets sold is recognised when tickets are accepted
and surrendered by the customers. Revenue from tickets sold for use at a

future date is deferred until the tickets are surrendered or have expired.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income

can be measure reliably).

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating

leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of services or for administrative
purposes (other than construction-in-progress as described below) are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress less their residual
value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property
carried at fair value

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant prepaid lease payments) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the

relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

3.

EE A BOR (4)

Yok ~ W5 B e M

Wo3E ~ WD B i A 455 45 A 2 s s A3 Ml
8 S AR AT B e 2 FLEE e i (R
TEREWISEBRAN) TG 45 A A% Rt T B
BB FHRE AR (WA ) R AR 6 B AR DL 51
HE o

JAAE 2~ 3% B AT B I 2 AE S S A AR
VAT ] O 20 0 AL M 1 B0 M o IR A
T B B M A T 0 65 MR A 4R o s
B AL Z A R RAR o 3% 5 S ¥R K AT
M8 52 P38 WR 43 S5 R 0 3 ~ R o i Al 2 00
JUM o b A5 B P T R A T AR i S T A I B 4
e SRt 3 A IF) 2 e B B AT S

Pt T3 4% EAREAE Y 3 ~ Wb B e i H (FE
) SR RO ) Al st B AF S0 1 R L AR
Tl % AT o il v P40 0 ~ 0 £ J 7
T7 BT A Wk R AR Hh dg - AR £ S B 2
WA AR

A PR Z Y w5 2 B &

ik 490 3 ~ W55 e A6 T L PRI R LA B
(B i€ B W) T 22 2 BB 38 > W%
2 0 T B A O P (B S R
T AL B K ) 2 AT A 2 A L 2 i e 2
TR > SR M AN G4 b Rt e R E R E
7 e I - AR A LR
PR B i ) o



F AT R P IR TR ] | 20164F 3t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is no
reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful

lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments
provided during the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the location
and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner

intended by management).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation (including properties under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for undetermined future use, which

is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or

loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction are
capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties under

construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the

profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
Properties for sale

Properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs include leasehold land cost, development cost, borrowing costs and
other direct costs attributable to such properties, until the relevant properties

reach a marketable state.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties for sale (Continued)

Net realisable value is determined by reference to management estimates of
the selling price based on prevailing market conditions, less all estimated

costs to completion and costs to be incurred in marketing and selling.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses/revalued amounts, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses

on tangible and intangible assets below).

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period

in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and

only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it

will be available for use or sale;
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure (Continued)

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to

complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset
is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired

separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial
recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses/revalued amounts, being their fair value at
the date of the revaluation less subsequent accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in

profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating

units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever

there is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated

as a revaluation increase under that standard.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated

costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables
at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the

leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than investment properties
measured under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a

finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy
below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in

which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held under
operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised

as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis except where another systematic basis is more representative of the

time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise except for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s interests.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be

paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in

exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected
to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees up to

the reporting date.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

3.

EE A BOR (4)

BLu
P78 B 9 5 I B0 A2 B S A o

BB I AR T 4 A A B B R A B o R
At i 1) S AR Fr 4R 25 B b 4 1 WA A v BT i
"B B i i ) | AS [7] > o 7 3G ft 4 B2 SR A
AT B A BB 32 2 T H R S At A B R B
MBLZ I H o AR Z U B SR #0h
WK ORI sk B L Ol 2 BERF

I 0B 50 JEUA A A A O T MR
SHLEH B M SR B i R BT P A B B (] B 2
I R o 08 S B T A0 0 T A R B
W R 25 e 0 S v L 7 U9 R BT A T
FBE 2 i g 2 U VT B8 Hh B ME B i A DL 4K
B AT A1 B 2 B R 2 I T S o R — A 5
H o R R e PR SR O DA A R e AL
i ¥ 7 R £ i A B IR 25 A BE A o 5
JRE R A i ) 5 A 5 B A > U AS e R
A B B E MR AR

% S0 Bt I £ A 77 R B Y O 2 A B 2 B T
51 B2 HE R I 2 T W > M AR I T
A ] B e 2 B8 T R G O 2 R 0 T T S
288 el 2 1 DL I BR Ak o PR BLAT B B S e AR A
IR VT 115 B 2 T 2 A 2 90 A I
7 T R S A R 40 R SR B ¥ R € 1T BBh Y B g
ZE W M 25 3 EL YRS L S 5H oA 488 Il g A

2

2y

Ao

A S0E A MR T R R AR AR Y
3 AE A T RE AR 40 R v A WA [ 2 9
g1 ¥ AL IR A1

A% 72E B V£ A % B U AR R i U1K B
M SR B E T 2 BLR (KB - %
ST £ A0 o e 5 A0 [ ) 2 A R
&



F AT R P IR TR ] | 20164F 3t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets
for investment properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through
sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), available for
sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of

which interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is (i) held
for trading, (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL, or (iii) contingent consideration
that may be received by an acquirer as part of a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or
o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading or contingent
consideration that may be received by an acquirer as part of a business

combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or

recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the

grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the “other income” line item. Fair value is

determined in the manner described in note 20 and 41(c).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-

to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
AFS financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, and changes in foreign exchange rates,
if applicable are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying amount
of AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below). Dividends on AFS equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and deposits) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment

losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and

principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of

impairment.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.

Eftective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than those financial liabilities classified as at FEVTPL, of which the interest

expense is included in net gains or losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability
is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL or (iii) contingent
consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in
the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or
contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

. the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on the financial
liabilities and is included in the ‘fair value changes on financial liabilities’
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 32 and
41(c).

Senior bonds

Senior bonds issued by the Company that contain both liability and early
redemption option (which is not closely related to the host contract) are
classified separately into respective items on initial recognition. At the date
of issue, both the liability and early redemption option components are
recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the senior bonds is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The early redemption
option is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in

profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior bonds are allocated to
the liability and early redemption option components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the early redemption option
are charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the senior bonds using the effective
interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both the liability and
conversion option components are classified separately into respective items
on initial recognition in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the

Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds
and the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the notes into equity, is included

in equity (convertible bonds equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert the liability component into
ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be released to the
retained profits/(accumulated losses). No gain or loss is recognised in profit

or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the

effective interest method.

Convertible loan notes contain liability component and conversion option

derivative

The component parts of the convertible loan notes issued by the Company
are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will
be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments

is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the liability component and conversion option
derivative are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible loan notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The conversion option derivative is measured at

fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan notes are
allocated to the liability and derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the derivative components
are charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using the

effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings, trade
payables, accrued liabilities and other payable, amounts due to non-
controlling interests, amount due to a related company and obligation
under finance lease are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as
a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit
or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debt or fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated as at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation
under the contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policy.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of

those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units

for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Share-based payment transactions of the Company

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-

settled share-based transactions are set out in note 38.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with

a corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding

adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of

the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to

retained earnings.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that
person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
(1)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charges where useful lives are less than previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down obsolete assets that have been abandoned or
sold.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is rebutted.

Other intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related amortisation
for the Group’s other intangible assets. The useful lives of other intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite, based on the expected
usage and technical obsolescence from the changes in the market demands
or services output from the assets. Other intangible assets with finite useful
lives are amortised over the expected useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for the
intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed by the management at

least at the end of each reporting period.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties under construction

As described in Note 17, investment properties under construction are stated
at fair value based on the valuation performed by independent professional

valuers.

Investment properties under construction are valued by estimating the fair
value of such properties as if they were completed in accordance with
the relevant development plan and then deducting from that amount the

estimated costs to complete the construction and a reasonable profit margin.

Estimated impairment of intangible asset with indefinite useful life

Determining whether the intangible asset is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash generating unit to which intangible asset has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may

arise.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of future cash, a material
impairment loss/further impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2016,
the carrying amount of goodwill is approximately HK$870,169,000 (net of

accumulated impairment loss of HKS$ Nil).

4.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst different tax
jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and certain projects of the Group
have not finalised their land appreciation tax calculations and payments
with any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant estimate
is required in determining the amount of land appreciation and its related
income tax provisions. The Group recognised the land appreciation tax based
on management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these differences will
impact the income tax expense and the related income tax provisions in the

periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

Impairment loss of trade and other receivables

The Group’s policy for doubtful receivables is based on the on-going
evaluation of the collectability and ageing analysis of the trade and other
receivables and on management’s judgements. Considerable judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor,
and the present values of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rates. If the financial conditions of the Group’s debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,

additional impairment loss of trade and other receivables may be required.

Construction costs estimation for revenue recognition

Certain projects of the Group are divided into several phases according
to the development and delivery plans. The Group recognises sales upon
delivery of properties. Cost of sales including construction costs specific to
the phases and common costs allocable to the phases are calculated based on
management’s best estimation of the total development costs for the whole
project and the allocation to each phase at the time when the properties are

delivered.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Income taxes

There are transactions and calculations relating to the Group’s ordinary
business activities for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain and
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred

tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

Write-down of properties for sale under development

Management performs a regular review on the carrying amounts of
properties for sale under development. Based on management’s review,
write-down of properties for sale under development will be made when the

estimated net realisable value has declined below the carrying amount.

These estimates require judgement as to the anticipated sale prices by
reference to recent sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of new
properties sales, marketing costs (including price discounts required to
stimulate sales) and the estimated costs to completion of properties, the legal

and regulatory framework and general market conditions.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for

financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages independent qualified professional valuers to

perform the valuation of the Group’s investment properties.

ol S22 7 il A i e At A e Pk T
R ERW (H])

it A W R 2 RO (4)

P 13 BE

SA SR ] 1 W SR A B 2 38 5 B R R RE e
E dor A BUIE > L RESE FT e B 488 A6 2R I
1M 2% 45 o L 2 5 A% 0 JEL ARG R B UK i R
ANTAL > BT B 25 I o A S A AR R B T

A3 v % il 5 S it oo

LI A 9 et A b o A S R
fi o B BRI Z Mt > FERE R B R AT
N Al R T B R A B AU MR T L R
o

WA EOR 2B M BOE W 2 SR 5
T 3 B bR T HE AR (4 R 2
B Z T ) T 5 B 3 Al R ROAS ~ ik
B3 AME DA B — Bt i 36 Jo 5 AR 40 o 10y -

OV it A e A 18

A 35 T 43 Y7 T A5 7% 9 B A 2
e A SF AT o

A5 [ R FH AT R A T 5 T 9B 4% R Al
B SR o P o B SRR A SR — BRI
A 55 T 7 2% S 08 S A S A L R R AR
R B EY -




Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ST R Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE ~R—N4ET - H=Z1T—HILEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the management of the Group works

closely with the independent qualified professional valuers to establish and

determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and

Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt

Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the

active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt

valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material

change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the board of directors of the Company. Information about the

valuation technique and inputs used in determining the fair value of the

Group’s investment properties are disclosed in Note 17.
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5. REVENUE 5. Wea

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows: AR S ) 2 A RS A AT T
2016 2015
RN R4
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x RRC
Sale of properties ERLYE S 637,269
Rental income from investment properties REREMEZMEWA 6,132
Restaurant operations of catering business BOKE 2 BRI 248,200

Realised and unrealised gains on financial WA PG ARG SEMEREZ

assets at fair value through profit or loss CAEBL R B Bl AR 198,802
Dividend income from listed investments KHE EHREZ B EBWA 51,386
Revenue from admission tickets RKE AL M EZ W =
Others Sl 5,099

1,146,888
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HEFR

The management has determined the operating segments based on the B LG AR PR A 2 W) g (B o S e R
reports reviewed by the Directors of the Company, being the chief operating ) BTG B R 43 T VR B 2 R
decision maker (the “CODM?”) that are used to assess performance and E 8 S 43 T o B B RTAL TR B AT e i 43 0 4
allocate resources. The management assesses the performance of reporting 0

segments as below:

(i)  Property development and investment — Developing residential and commercial properties in PRC for sales and leasing;

LIES IRV TS — R A B R B A R S
(ii)  Catering business — Operating restaurants in different provinces in PRC;

BYET; — R A A AR
(iii)  Trading and investment business — Investing on securities and financial investments;

YT &S — R IR R A TR A
(iv)  Carnival — Operating carnival; and

e — AR K
(v)  Others — Providing retail-related consultancy and management services and operating kids

edutainment centre.

At —RUEREG BB R AR - DR B R EmRE BT o
Following the changes of reporting segment from four to five during the year, A T A R A D DY A IR AR o LB
the comparative segment information have been reclassified. 430 B R TR 4 o

y | T:» ‘; J -
1 e i Y ——
= T - \ e
LA Lo g A M \ 8
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by reportable

and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Property Trading and
development Catering investment
and investment business business
segment segment segment
WERRR )1
BUMF  BEEEAR  RWRHAR
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000

Tt T T

REVENUE e
External sales SR
Inter-segment sales SR B
RESULTS Ed
Segment results VEIES
Finance costs A A

Unallocated income RERTUA
Unallocated expenses RAAE I

Profit before tax BBt i

|

|
|

vigidgide )
Vg L eV ESF

B T 2 AT R R ) S A AR 4 I 2R
ES T

HEZZ—ANET ZH=1T—HILEE

Carnival Other  Inter-segment

segment segments elimination Total
WA %S s L] W

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000

Tt Tt Tt T
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. iR (&)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) Via L€ Y ES AE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HME_-F—HFETZH=1—HILFEE
Property Trading and
development Catering investment
and investment business business Carnival Other
segment segment segment segment segments Total
MR R "k
REHH  REEHLE  REEBAE  REEGHE A2 Ek
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
T T Ti#x T T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(& HE5)) (BEF)
REVENUE Bz
External sales Bhm g B 643,401 248,200 250,188 - 5,099 1,146,888
RESULTS Xt
Segment results ViR e 87,675 (51,706) 246,109 (9,604) (10,091) 262,383
Finance costs P AR (58,878)
Unallocated income REHEBA 68,889
Unallocated expenses A< &84} it 3¢ (176,666)
Profit before tax Bt i ik A1 95,728
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external DL b 2 4 B WS 2 2R HAMER % P 2 WA o
customers. Inter-segment sales charged at prevailing market rates during the REE_F—-AE T A= —HIL4)E
year ended 31 December 2016. There were no inter-segment sales during the Sy ER I Z BB R B 5 R R A o MR E
year ended 31 December 2015. F—HETH=1—H IR - 53
Z 8t
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as P o W R N Y Ll - g &
the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit/(loss) represents the [l o 43 #B 2 A, (M 18 $8 & op B R 43 e e
profit earned by/(loss from) each segment without allocation of central A PR AR (55 3 o B S W AR ) 2 4% 43
administration costs including directors’ emoluments and finance costs. eI Z A (EAZIEHE) o By R
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of performance B R A 2 DL T A R BL % 4 T B IR Z Rt
assessment and resources allocation. Bjike
¥ Al Ll AR ]
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

4y B B ()

Segment assets and liabilities 23 B i K B
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by T B Ry e T R Ry T gy 2 AR
reportable and operating segment: 7 B £ 5 43 #r
Segment assets Vg 303
2016 2015
ZRANAE R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T RRC
(Restated)
(#E5)
Property development and investment segment 4 35 %% J& M $¢ & 433 17,896,098
Catering business segment BAR B 1,547,913
Trading and investment business segment B 5 B 4% S 43 739,273
Carnival segment AR IEE A 183,832
Other segments Al 4y ¥ 24,220
Total segment assets 4338 B R HA 20,391,336
Unallocated corporate assets AR 43 L A S 2,629,053
Consolidated assets AR 23,020,389

Note: All assets are allocated to operating segments other than certain bank

balances and deposits and other unallocated assets.

Mk e AR AR WO AR E A - M TR

A7 A5 B B A ok B L AR 28 4 L S S B D o

& |
A B 5 s

V1L
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. e (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) o kA (51
Segment liabilities Vg 3L}

2016 2015
TR N B = T3
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T#xT Tt
(Restated)
(E5])
Property development and investment segment 4% 3£ 5§ J& & & 43 8,941,817
Catering business segment BAKEET 5 HB 1,324,303
Trading and investment business segment B 5 B B S5 4 8 102,134
Carnival segment FAEREE 6,583
Other segments Fo A 43 5 21,138
Total segment liabilities 43R A 10,395,975
Unallocated corporate liabilities RE A AR 5,538,118
Consolidated liabilities A 15,934,093

Note: All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain
borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, obligation under finance lease,

convertible bonds and other unallocated liabilities.

Mfak s AR B B B A - M T A
AR BRI E AT WA I T 2 BT

T 458 i o B A R A8 43 TS £ A B A
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6.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Amounts included in the measure

of segment profit or loss or

segment assefs:
Capital expenditure (Note)
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
Impairment losses on property,

plant and equipment
Written-off on property,

plant and equipment

Amortisation of other intangible assets
Impairment losses on other receivables
Net foreign exchange differences

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Fair value change on investment
properties

Fair value change on financial

liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss
Share of profit of an associate

A IR A
YR 2 A

EABE (k)
EN YT R

EN YT F
WiEH
EN YT

bR K

FE MR ok 2 W e

HE 52

B B
[l Fd 3

k&R N THES

AP AR
SRMARLATEEH

e — TR 4 7 2 i

Amounts regularly provided to
the CODM but not included in
the measure of segment profit or

loss or segment assets:

MR L R
DA BRAR
EHRA B

3k

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Property
development
and
investment
segment

LES 1Y
B¥EA
HK$'000

TH#x

Catering
business
segment

RIERH
]
HKS$'000
T

6.

4y B B ()

A 23 388 26 B

BEZF-ANFTZH=ZF—HILFRE

Trading and
investment
business
segment
SR
idie 3
Vit
HK$’000
Ti#x

Carnival

segment

PREA IR
HKS000
T

Other
segments

el
HK$'000
T

Unallocated Total
KB Hm
HK$'000 HK$'000

T T




131

F AT R P IR TR ] | 20164F 3t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE ~R—N4ET - H=Z1T—HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. rHpER (&)
Other segment information (Continued) oAb 2 &K (51)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HME_-F—HFETZH=1—HILFEE

Property
development Trading and
and Catering investment
investment business business Carnival Other
segment segment segment segment segments  Unallocated Total
Ak
WERRER  REEH  BEEH
G s AW EEREGAN A REAR ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T Ti#x T T T Titx Titx
(Restated) (Restated)
B Y]
Amounts included in the measure 44 A 7% i R B0l $i 5
of segment profit or loss or Vi3 Cain vk
segment assets:
Capital expenditure (Note) BAWE (M) 2,164,562 22321 - 83,669 2,623 47,534 2,521,609
Depreciation of property, VEN T PAIY
plant and equipment 2,005 6,107 - 21 30 6,944 15,307
Net foreign exchange differences FE i 7 T (827) (9,260) (335) 1 68 (37,192) (47,545)
Gain on disposal of property, ¥ BR Rz
plant and equipment e (652) (51) - - - - (703)
Fair value change on investment BEMEZNFHED
properties (19,452 - - - - - (19,452
Fair value change on financial BT AREZ
liabilities at fair value through SRARZATHED
profit or loss - 17,160 - - - - 17,160
Share of loss of an associate TEA— & A F Z B 17 5,826 - - - - - 5,826
Loss on disposal of available for o gt e o 2
sales investments - - - - - 7,061 7,061
Amounts regularly provided to SR BB AR
the CODM but not includedin MR HAAHRA B
the measure of segment profitor  JEHKAHEEZ
loss or segment assets: At AR
Interest income on bank and other BT BRI R B
deposits (1,321) - @ - (11) (23,506) (24.842)
Income tax (credit)/expense FrBe (HE%) /3 H (2,564) - - - 34 (5,632) (8,162)

Mtk : BASEA ST R B - WO RS AR E
LB SN

Note: Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment
and investment properties.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Geographic information

No geographic information has been presented as the Group’s operating

activities are mostly carried out in the PRC.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there was no revenue

from transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10% or more

of the Group’s total revenue.

7. OTHER INCOME

7.

4y B B ()
o i 2

FH A A48 ) 2 260830 ) 2 B vp B AT > Wk
JE 2 3] Hb [ R

EREPZEHR

BEZ-NEXB-HET+_H=+—
H R4 > BEfE sk B BB — MR P #EIT R 5
2 W5 AN A 4R I i 25 B AR 2 10% 8k DA L -

%A

2016 2015
— ZR TR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T

Interest income on bank and other deposits
Gain on disposal on property,
plant and equipment
Net foreign exchange differences
Reversal of deferred income
Others

SRAT B e A A7 5 A A
B - W KB
Z ez
M 0, 2 5 15
188 10 8 HE WL A\
F At

24,842

703
47,545

8,658

81,748

7=

i, z:aé;;:“:vA /4
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8. FINANCE COSTS

S5 A

2016 2015
— e S K
HK$°000 HK$’000
T# TH#T

Interest on bank and other borrowings: SRAT B H Al A SRR B,

— wholly repayable within five years — JE LA N B R 710,780

Interest on obligation under finance lease BB EIEH T EEZA L 43

Effective interest expense on BEBA BB X

— senior bonds —E 104,760

—bonds — i 424

— convertible bonds — ] e B 119,754

Total finance costs T 75 B AR B 935,761

Less: amounts capitalised (Note) W B A SR (M) (876,883)
58,878

The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed generally is

8.91% (2015: 11.15%) per annum.

Note: Certain finance costs had been capitalised to property development

projects in the PRC and Hong Kong included in construction-in-progress

of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and properties

under development for sale.

O & 4 2 A 7 35 8 AR AE R KB 58.91%
(ZF—HHE11.15%) °

BaE: TR A T o B e S g R
HHzZE & W ast ATEdY 3% - B &
B REYERBER DA EME-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E T —N4ETH=1T—HILEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

9.

P iy ()
2016 2015
— e S K
HK$°000 HK$000
T# TH#T

Current tax:
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)

Deferred tax: (Note 31)

W LB -
o - 3 A
AP B

WEREREH 2 (H7E31)

3,269
5,850

(17,281)

Income tax expense/(credit)

Frfami i (HE4)

(8,162)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable

profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both years. No provision for

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Company and its subsidiaries

had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the

appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less

deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property

development expenditures.

A W R 45 B T A1 4 B A W A A R A
A Al w1 B RR B A 2 16.5% 2 B AR GHEE -
FH P A 2 ) e B A ) A 47 E 34 3 4
TP o A MR R i A > S S A W R 15
B H 458 i -

Mg EAER AR (TRERARE]) R
REFABLERGEN > B ZFF)\FE—H—
H > o [ i A Bl Z B R A525% o

- B4 B o b A 2 B AR 23090
60% 2 B3 Bl R A > 4 H 08 M > B4 A R K
B E5 W 2 T A5k TE T A1 R B 52 (B
FHRE LA S B S g R B %) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 9.
(Continued)

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

Pif Bt (%) (%)

AL B S 7 (6 %) B A% A R 28 )
At 2 T W 25 R 2 BB A R AR

2016 2015
TRNAE TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT T#x
Profit before tax Wi A i i 1l 95,728
Tax at PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of e v B £ 3 P A BB %8 259%
25% (Note) AHSEZ B (HaE) 23,932
Tax effect of share of results of an associate A I A B TEAN S A 2
B R 1,457
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 78 B A 2 Bl 75 5 2 (71,277)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A ] A BH 3 2 % R
for tax purpose 23,691
Tax effect of temporary difference not R A TR B R A B R
recognised (39,027)
LAT d I E A 3,269
Tax effect of LAT TR B 17
Utilisation of tax losses previously not i FH S AR AR e 7R 2 B2 i 18
recognised -
Tax losses not recognised R e 2 A T s 4 40,283
Effect of different tax rates of group entities A H B DA S B R R 2
operating in jurisdiction other than PRC AR E A R B R 2 5B 10,322
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year AERERRARABE S (HEsR) (8,162)

Note: Majority of the assessable profits of the Group were derived from
subsidiaries situated in the PRC and the applicable enterprise income tax
rate of those subsidiaries is 25%

ﬁ
s
-

H

S £ [ R ER 0 E SRBE VR 21 1 e R 1
USRS R DA K il e A
R5%wRM

&\(1:
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

10. ACAE B %t B

A TR GiEA) DUF 43 :

Net foreign exchange differences

Auditors’ remuneration
— audit services

— non-audit services

Rental income from investment properties
Less:
direct operating expenses incurred for
investment properties that generated rental
income during the year
direct operating expenses incurred for
investment properties that did not generate

rental income during the year

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense:
— cash expenses item

— non-cash item

Total cost of sales

Rental expenses in respect of rented premises

under operating leases

2016 2015
RN R A
HKS$°000 HK$’ 000
Tt T
i 3, 2 L (47,545)
1% S5 i 557 1
— % B 2,180
— AL OB 200
2,380
REBRGEMEZHEWA (6,132)
W
ENEEHSRAZREYE
P RS W
4,590
SRR E A S WA Z
WG ERT R RS T
242
(1,300)
THE w8 B 32 2 18 8 A -
—Bl&HXIEH 586,402
—-JEBl4&EH (30,616)
48 B B AR 555,786
REMBEHTARMEDEZ
&P 82,030
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 10. ASAEER A (%)

2016 2015
RN e S T S
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#xT T#x
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ H T F B 52 (L5 # S 4 )
emoluments)
— salaries and other benefits —Hr 4 e Ho A AE A 179,335
— contributions to retirement benefits schemes — SRR AR ek 15,768
— equity settled share-based payment — DARE#5 55 5Ly 32 4% 2 k0 38,526
233,629
Less: amounts capitalised (Note) W B AR (HAE) (25,051)
Total employee benefits expenses 1 B A B 32 4 208,578
Amortisation of other intangible assets At JR6 T B -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 43 ~ g5 S 5% 5 97 85 15,307
Less: amounts capitalised (Note) W BEARACEH (M) (446)
14,861
Impairment losses on other receivables JFC At MR ik =2 DAL 4 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, hEmE - BE &2
plant and equipment iR, (lzk) (703)
Weritten-off on property, plant and equipment W3 ~ B B % A e -y
Impairment losses on property, W3~ B B A 2 A 1R
plant and equipment -
Note: Certain employee benefits expense, contributions to retirement benefits i - 35T ELRR R B S~ SR AR 3 Bk K

schemes and depreciation of property, plant and equipment had been
capitalised to property development projects in the PRC. JR Y H A -

W ~ W B sl = 1T 8 ELTA v B A S %
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and the chief executive of

the Company were as follows:

11. EFRFEELFBABZME

O3 AT B S A P A A S R R EATBA

HB2ZM&WmTF:

Salaries, Contributions Equity settled

allowances and to retirement share-based
Fees  benefitsinkind  benefits schemes payment Total

DB ST

L AR BIRHR BB 34
e BE A & atH % ZHH it
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T#L T T#% T# T#

For the year ended 31 December 2016  #%E % — A4

Executive directors
Mr. King Pak Fu (Note (¢))

Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric (Note () kB %k (M7 @)

Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng
Mr. Meng Cai (Note (c)

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Hu Gin Ing

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral

Mr. Lie Chi Wing (Note (b))

IV ES il X T4

Pt
RATFRE (Wite)

BRI
BARE (Hite)

Bk AT
HHE L L

Bfiea e
BRI (Hitn)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Executive directors
Mr. King Pak Fu (Note (e))

Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric (Note (d)) RKERE (Hita) -

M:r. Gong Xiao Cheng

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Hu Gin Ing

M. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral

Mr. Lie Chi Wing (Note (b))

RE-Z-NE
FZAZF AR

Ptr
RAFRE (Wite) -

7,933 18 -

7,951
28,728
1,518

6,189 18 22,521

LEvts -

1,500 18 =

[L R Ky e

WLt

i
(Witw))

(Mit@)

’J‘ I ': ; -
SRS LA i
i Jig L%
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric was also the chief executive officer of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. After his
resignation on his positions on 26 May 2016, the Chairman, Mr. King Pak
Fu take over the position as chief executive officer on the same date. Both of
their emoluments disclosure above included those for services rendered by

them as Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

for their services as directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, neither the chief

executive officer nor any of the directors waived any emoluments.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or chief executive as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Notes:

(a)  Ms. Pan Wei-Kang was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 10 December 2014 and resigned on 5 February 2015.

(b)  Mr. Lie Chi Wing was appointed as an independent non-executive

director on 5 February 2015.

(¢)  Mr. Meng Cai was appointed as an executive director on 10 May 2016

and resigned on 9 February 2017.

(d)  Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric resigned as an executive director and chief

executive officer on 26 May 2016.

(e)  Mr. King Pak Fu was appointed as chief executive officer on 26 May
2016.

11. ﬁ%&i%ﬁﬂtAﬁZEﬂﬁ:

»

RAKBEERKE-Z -AER_F—LF
TZAZEt B RSB EAR AR Z 478
R R R —ANEIH AN HBHER
T FE R AR H AT R Z WA
bSO B B A 2 T 3 B A S A A AT
TR 3 B R T

e AT T A A B AR A R R
A 4R L 5 ) A3 R 5 2 T 4 o

e 8 S AT 2 e e A R AR A
Al E R AR Z 4

NRE B —-ANER-F—HEFH=Z+—
H Ik 45 5 - HBEJE AT B AR AT o] 28 2 g SE AT o]
4 -

T T 4 JEE - A 48 O 0 1k A o 5 o o 2 84T
BN B ST 4 > A 7 47 50 im A A 48 1
TR T A 5 1B Ry 2 58 i s e A 5

(a) WEHEMLZLR -F-HEFATAIER
FERE I IEPUTES > Wk =% —TE A
T H B -

(b)) ZEEBEBER_-F—AFEHAHERE
BB IR AT E

(© BARERZZ-ANFLATHERES
PUTES R R -EEZAJUARHE-

@  RKBRER-F-ANERLHA ZFNHE
FEBUAT 1 45 AT LA

() REFRERF-AFHH_TANHME
RAL T AT B -
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12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12. g H 4
Five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three (2015: AREEE IR EMSEAN L P =6 (2F
three) were directors and the chief executive officer of the Company — A ZL) B AR A E 2 S RAT R
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note 11 above. The WHEZ M EFHBOR LMt dE - T
emoluments of the remaining two (2015: two) individuals were as follows: WAL (22— 4 W) A Z B4 5
T
2016 2015
TRNAE TR A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT BRI
Salaries and other benefits 4 M HAb R 3,738
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes R ) S 4 K 18
3,756
Their emoluments were within the followings bands: e %5 Z T 4 A F- DL T #i B
2016 2015
TR N e S K03
No. of employees No. of employees
i B ¥ H R B ¥ H
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 ¥ 7T %2,000,000% G 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 %7€ $2,500,000% JC 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 %5 7€ %3,000,000% 7T =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 %5 7C %3,500,000% G =
13. DIVIDENDS 13. BB
No dividend was paid or proposed in respect of the year ended 31 December BEZR—ANETH=E+—HIMEER R
2016 (2015: Nil), nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the £ glogdt JIR AR BB (ZF—H A ) >
reporting period. R 35 30 R DL 2 8 0 3 5 R A+ A 4T i S o
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

14. B8 A

A4S T A N REAY 4 B B AR K B 5 28 ) TG AR
RO T IR E A

2016 2015
RN R4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#0 T#0
Earnings #wA
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings FVL G S R AR B Z #F -
per share:

Profit for the year attributable to owners of A2 V] B N M AN AR BE i A

the Company 120,453
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: TBAE RS R

Fair value change on financial liabilities WAPF ARG Z EMARZ

at fair value through profit or loss AP AH S ) -

Earning for the purpose of VLG R A A 2

diluted earnings per share Rl 120,453
Number of shares Iy B H
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AL SR AR Z

for the purposes of basic earnings per share 38 B IR - 25 B 14,034,101,442
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: TR B 0 A B S
Issuance of shares for conversion of Tt VT A 5 5 T B AT 2

convertible bonds (note 32) ety (BEEE32) -

Weight average number of ordinary shares for JH DA R R R 2
the purpose of diluted earnings per share W 48 JE o A - 4 8

14,034,101,442

For the year ended 31 December 2015, convertible bonds of the Company
are not dilutive as the exercise price of the convertible bonds exceeds the
average market price of ordinary shares during the year ended 31 December
2015.

Share option of the Company are not dilutive as no contingently issuable
shares would be issuable as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

BREZ-HFET_A=Z+—HILEE - KA
R Z AT BB A A L AR > DB PR T B
RFZATHERB T ER R RE T —LF
TZA=Zt+—HIFEZFYTHHE-

HRZF-AERSEHETL_H=9—
H 3 88 o 0] 7 B AT Z ey I B AT - AR A
A 2 T B N A Ll 3 28
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15. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

15. JR&— G B A\ 2 HE 4

2016 2015
ZR—NE TR
HK$’000 HKS$°000
T#T F#
Cost of investment, unlisted BNtk '4 295 %N 100,000
Bargain purchase e T WA 4,407
Share of post-acquisition results and JREA WA % S 4
other comprehensive income, LAt 2 i W 25 > I SRR
net of dividends received (17,583)
Disposal during the year (Note 35) AR (M FE3S) -
86,824
Proportion
Place of of ownership Proportion of
establishment/  Class of interests held voting rights held
Name of associate operations share held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
4R 1 P 4 7 45 I B 5
Bior., Pids ] B
BB AT A B JBe 4 3500 T Al B ol BiAh e Bl
e H R E AR AR PRC Ordinary - — Property development in
(“Beijing BSD”) (2015: 26% (2015: 26%) the PRC
(Indirect))
AR HIEE G BRI AW PR WiE - - TEPEREYE
(e EzE]) (ZF—H4E: (ZF A4 BT
26% ([H#2) ) 26% )

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no associate is individually

material to the Group.

Aggregate information of associate that is not individually material:

HEREE-

2016
ZF AR
HK$°000
T#x

The Group’s share of profit/(loss)
The Group’s share of other comprehensive

expense

The Group’s share of total comprehensive

expense :

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s

ACHE T EAG A, (1R

7% 45 R A b 2 T B S22
245 ) JRE A 2 TH B S A8 A

AR i W O ) 2 i 2 MR TR

A T R - A I A ) AR

FHREERBEZBEAFAZAIFER:

2015
ZF T
HK$°000
T

(5,826)

(5,193)

(11,019)
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Yy ~ W3 B B M

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Construction-
improvements equipment Machinery Vehicles in-progress Total
&
MENEEE  RERRH S RBLR TR At
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Tibn Tibx Tk T T Tibn
CoST WA
At 1 January 2015 REF—HE—~H—H - 7,047 - 9,085 4,170,036 4,186,168
Additions wE 484 6935 81,541 41531 1713461 1,854,316
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary W — T O 2w A A 145,013 73,144 - 1,136 47 219,720
Disposals & - (115) - (913) - (1,028)
Exchange adjustments JEE 56 4 (5.999) (3,629) - (483) (190,918) (201,029)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 REZ—HEFTZAZT—HE
ZR-NE-A-H 143,836 83382 81,541 56,362 5,693,006 6,058,147
Additions wE 18,308 1283 27,685 372,835 1,599,191 2,030,302
Revaluation gain [ - - - - 585,652 585,652
Transfer to investment properties HEEREME - - - - (1,111,090) (1,111,090)
Reclassified as held for sale BB RIS - - - - (571.245) (571245
Disposals i - (1374) - (223) - (1597)
Written-off Hilsh (1,176) - - - - (1,176)
Exchange adjustments JEE 54 4 (10,021) (5.434) (13) (496) (380,994) (396,958)
At 31 December 2016 REF-NEFZAZ—R 150967 88,857 109213 428478 5,814,520 6,592,035
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT i B
At 1 January 2015 WZF—HE—~—H 2 3,746 = 4044 63,046 70,836
Provided for the year EARE ] 1,946 5,700 179 7482 = 15,307
Eliminated on disposals HE R A T = = (770) = (770)
Exchange adjustments JFE 3.7 7 (174) = (351) (3,122) (3.575)
At31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 REB-LEFZA=Z—HE
ZF-NE-H—H 2018 907 179 10405 59,924 81,798
Provided for the year EARE ] 44003 26,038 10,685 11,992 L 92,938
Impairment losses W EH 59,087 - 30,000 - = 89,087
Eliminated on disposals H & R A - (509) 1 (178) - (687)
Written-off 8 (424) - - c = (424)
Exchange adjustments 5 (4,726) (1,427) ) (365) (3,446) (9965)
At 31 December 2016 REZB-AEFZAZET—H 100,178 33374 40,863 21,854 56478 250,747
CARRYING AMOUNTS I i
At 31 December 2016 REF-NEFZAZ—R 50,789 55,483 68,350 406,624 5,758,042 6,339,288
At31 December 2015 REZF-5%+-A=+—H 141,838 74,110 81362 45957 5,633,082 5976,349
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. P93 ~ W5 B el (40)
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for construction- VW B3t W B ik il (e TREBRAM) Z 3
in-progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per H¥ DL TR DL B AR LR -
annum:
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of BRI MABE10%2

the lease or 10% W

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6.66%-33.33% AR ~ 368 Bk 6.66%%33.33%
Machinery 10% B2 10%
Vehicles 5%-33.33% TR 5%%33.33%
At 31 December 2016, motor vehicles amounting to approximately W oFE—ANE+H=+—H % %821,000
HK$821,000 (2015: approximately HK$1,150,000) is held under finance WIULZRHE M EMERA (ZF—HE:
lease. #1751,150,000858) °
The Group’s construction-in-progress are situated in the PRC. A [ 2 AE i TR AL ] o
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledged construction-in-progress MNEF—NEFTZH=Z+—H > AREE T
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$5,757,656,000 (2015: W Vi {44 %55,757,656,0008 06 ( =& — HA4E
approximately HK$5,632,673,000) to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note #1%55,632,673,000% 5C ) Z 76 & T.7% - 1 % 1K
30). BAEE Z fi a3k (HRE30) Z 4R -

E

8
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BeEWR
HK$°000
T#C
FAIR VALUE AP
At 1 January 2015 R-FE—THHE—~H—H 4,203,210
Additions NE 447,573
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss AR A P R 2 2 T E B 19,452
Exchange adjustments FEE 52, 79 % (249,964)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R _F—HHETHA=1—H R 4,420,271
“E-ANE-A—H
Additions R 114,804
Transfer from construction-in-progress under BB WG RGBT Z 1,111,090
property, plant and equipment fEfE TR
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss AR 25 o AR 2 AT (8 B i 126,172
Exchange adjustments FEE B2, 5% 2% (340,507)
At 31 December 2016 R _2—-NEFTFZH=1—H 5,431,830
2016 2015
RN R TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT RRC
Fair value change on investment properties AR Z R E Y
revaluation included in profit or loss A A B 19,452
0 Bt 2
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2016
and 2015 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
that date by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited (“APAC”), a
firm of independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group. APAC had appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuations which

conformed to International Valuation Standards.

The valuation of investment properties have been arrived at adopting direct
comparison approach with reference to comparable transactions in the
locality as also the income approach and assuming that the investment
properties will be completed in accordance with the development proposals
and the relevant approvals for the proposals have been obtained. For
properties which are under construction, APAC has taken into account the

cost that will be expanded to complete the development.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in prior year.
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the

properties is their current use.

All of the Group’s properties interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value

model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

17. Be&EW¥E (4)

AELEER-F-ANFERZF-HFETZA
St HZBREMRZ AV 5k EAREE
ABE S8 AT o 6] L 2 0 S Y M S SR A A B )
i K A S B A PR R (TR ) 7 %
H AT 2 Al 2 R ¥ D A o K LA 0
% > BB HOS A B AL B 5 B SR AT
il L 2 AL = R UK Al LR £ R Al 4 )

BOE W S AN TR T B2 LBk 2 IR
Z T B A2 By DA B WO\ ;- S AL 1% B 0 SR
5% B8 i R 58 0 K © gt A1 8 28 45 R B At S
T 3 2 o AR 2 A 36T > SR B R B e i B
B Z T BAS

T A i T 2 A 0 D7 3 30 S0 52 3 o A A A
ZAFARIR > W36 2 g w5 B dmcHE I8 JL B kg
& e

A S AL 4 A6 L B A DA IDUREL 4 B
BESEAE T #5412 2 Ty S 2 > 390 A P A
GEWin SR Auis- VYTl (Era<E/E YN X

R-B—ANERF-HETHA=1T—H>
AR AR B W 3 2w A T AR
T

Fair value as at
Level 3 31 December 2016

R BN
SPELE L P ]
W= Z AP
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T

RETA H B 2 B 3

Investment properties located in PRC
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. Be&EW¥E (4)

Fair value as at

Level 3 31 December 2015

/S S TG S

+ZH=+—H

W Z A

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T#T F#

Investment properties located in PRC AL o B 2 B B 2 4,420,271 4,420,271

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s investment properties with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$5,431,830,000 (2015: approximately
HK$4,420,271,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings
(Note 30).

TR ACAE BE Y > WO S 3 SR = A )

M= ANETFZH=Z+—H > AREEHCHEH
J THG 4 40 % 5,431,830,0008 76 ( =& — TiL4F :
#1%54,420,271,0009 76 ) Z ¥ & 4 3% - 18 2 L

PASE ) Z A 3k (BF3E30) Z PR o

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above comprise: bSCRR R Z 3% A SRR T A AL 8
2016 2015
RN S K
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT RRC
Outside Hong Kong WA 4,420,271
] W d i : o .
Yo | :
Mo e <l £
Ly et A ‘
% % R \\ e =
1 @ 4 ) = i \ A
5 A S | Y LT e = ) =
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. Be¥Pk (8)

At 31 December 2016 REF-AETZA=Z+T—H
Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated Valuation Relationship of
statement of Fair value technique and Significant unobservable inputs to
financial position hierarchy  key inputs unobservable inputs fair value Sensitivity
RN
A4 BT 45 8L ¥ BTH AT R ERAW A BgES YR
LS 4 1LY BEsY AT B AR kg
Commercial Level 3 Income approach
investment property S =4 WA
in Qingdao
R RS E The key inputs are:
TESWS:
(i) Monthly market rent Monthly market rent of approximately The higher the monthly market ~ If the monthly market rent per square metre to

per square metre; and
() PIRTS AR
K

(ii)  Yield

(i) W

RMBI71 (Average rent of the whole property)
per square metre

55 A LA A B F IR AR 17106 (BB
W4

Yield, taking into account of yield generated
from comparable properties and adjustment
to reflect the certainty of rental income to be
received of 4%.

Wi A B e S e M
VARl » [ Wed ot TR 2 4 T AL i
Ao

rent per square metre, the higher
the fair value.

PR A R - AT
{5 o

The higher the yield, the lower
the fair value.

Wt 3 - TR

the valuation model is 1% higher/lower, while all
the other variables were held constant, the fair
value of the property would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB37 million.

A8 S B 457 J K T 55 AL T T
1% T B A7 S A B AR5 R 5 I R A1
TSR/ W #9 A B 137,000,007 -

If the higher the yield to the valuation model is

5% higher/lower (Remarks: 5% x (1+5%) or 5%

X (1-5%)), while all the other variables were held
constant, the fair value of the property would
decrease by approximately RMB178 million/
increase by approximately RMB196 million.

T A R B e as % BTt/ T s (MERE -
5% x (145%)5%5% x (1-5%) ) » T Jir A7 1 f 5
RS - B3O TR 20 A R
178,000,0007% /4 fm %5 A & ¥196,000,000
7‘: o
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. Be&EW¥E (4)

At 31 December 2016 REF-AETZHA=Z+T—H
Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated Valuation Relationship of
statement of Fair value  technique and Significant unobservable inputs to
financial position hierarchy  key inputs unobservable inputs fair value Sensitivity
ERMHERIEN
7 45 B 7 4 B ¥ RV LR TARW AWEES YR
LB S 8 TESY By AT B R BB
Commercial investment ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method
property in Chengdu M=% assuming sale in its existing
T ES 3¢k state and by making
reference to comparable sales
evidences of similar nature
properties as available in the
relevant market.
TR A b s R
BT A B2 EH
W 1 5 7 T 2 R
[EE/E AR 3 S
fil
The key inputs are:
FERUWR:
(i)  Price per square metre  Price per square metre, using market direct The higher the price per square  If the price per square metre to the valuation model

comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as

environment, building facilities, levels, etc.,
which is ranging from RMB16,500/sq.m. to
RMB30,000/sq.m

() BFIRH TEFIPRATHE - SRR 5 BT LA -
75 I 0 B T SR~ M M MR L
Aufi 3B % » AP P07k AR 16,50078
FRF Ik A RHE30,00078

metre, the higher the fair value.

PR B AP
L

is 1% higher/lower, while all the other variables
were held constant, the fair value of the property
would increase/decrease by approximately RMB2
million.

AN BRI 2 B R AR LTt R 1% >
i B 3l 2 PR 52 > I 2 A R
A,/ 4 A R2,000,0005C ©
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. Be¥PE (4)
At 31 December 2016 REF-AETZHA=Z+T—H
Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated Valuation Relationship of
statement of Fair value  technique and Significant unobservable inputs to
financial position hierarchy  key inputs unobservable inputs fair value Sensitivity
ERBERAEN
7 45 B 7 4 B ¥ RVE TR TARW AWEES YR
mk 8 TESY By AT B R BB
Investment properties Direct comparison method
under construction in HELBE
Chengdu
BB % The key inputs are:
FERUWR:
i.  Gross develop Gross develop value on completion The higher the gross If the gross development value to the valuation
value; and basis, taking into account of time, location development value, the higher ~ model is 1% higher/lower, while all the other
and individual factors such as view and size the fair value. variables were held constant, the fair value of the
between the comparable and the property of property would increase/decrease by approximately
approximately RMB1,400 million. RMBI13 million.
i HEHREM R AR RO E R G MR BRI A TR R R R T LA T 1% i
W L R MBI E R (ST e e Jii 7 H A B OREE R A - 4 A T S
RSB R BUR T Z W) 40 0 N R /Wb #1 \ Re¥13,000,0007 ©
1,400,000,0007C ©
ii.  Developer’s profit Developer’s profit, taking into account of the The higher the developer’s If the developer’s profit to the valuation model
progress of the property of 5% profit, the lower the fair value. ~ is 1% higher/lower, while all the other variables
were held constant, the fair value of the property
would decrease/increase by approximately RMB12
million
i BREEEA BRMEA - BB Z5% BT AR AP SRR RREAM LT T R1%-
%o Ji 7 S B GRHE R 43 A T

/3% N R H12,000,0007% o
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BE¥EP3%E (&)
At 31 December 2016 W -ANETH=4—H
Investment properties
held by the Group Relationship of
in the consolidated Fair value Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
statement of financial position hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs to fair value Sensitivity
ERMHERIHEN A BES Y
K BB 4 Y AT W BERLES Y EARATBESY AP B AR B
Investment properties Level 3 Direct comparison Gross development The higher the gross If the gross development value
under construction in =8 method value on completion development value, the to the valuation model is 1%
Qingdao HEEERY: basis, taking into account higher the fair value. higher/lower, while all the other
HEEERENE of time, location and variables were held constant,
The key inputs are: individual factors such the fair value of the property
LEB YR as view and size between would increase/decrease by
i. Gross development the comparable and the approximately RMB37 million.
value; and property of approximately
RMB4,137 million.
i BRI R BEROED R T ERROTEAR it sz BRI Lt/
A I ]~ i L R AT TREL% - 0 iR S AR A
(0 ST 4 L e A5 L U AL/E VSR Ve U]
BB T 2 PO ) 20 N IR N B#37,000,0007E
4,137,000,0007% ©
ii. Developer’s profit. Developer’s profit, The higher the developer’s  If the developer’s profit to
taking into account of the profit, the lower the fair the valuation model is 1%
progress of the property of value. higher/lower, while all the
2%. other variables were held
constant, the fair value of
the property would decrease/
increase by approximately
RMB37 million.
ii. BT HA o BIRWARN - FEAMEER . RERBAEE fii il (AR BRI LT/
2% AR o T REL% o T A S A R AR
% AT D /B
A JRH37,000,0007E «
: = i,
= g
Vi 1 by ! =
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. b fme e %

Trademark Licences Total
R 18 1 B Hask
Note (i) Note (ii)
L R() Bk i)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
Tt Tt T
COST BAR
At 1 January 2015 W _T—TH4F—H—H - - -
Acquired on acquisition of a WA S — i T 2 i IRy
subsidiary (Note 34) JT WO (B RE34) 206,931 - 206,931
At 31 December 2015 and H_F—HFE+H
1 January 2016 o N E ) S i 3
—H—H 206,931 - 206,931
Additions w8 - 24,482 24,482
Exchange adjustments iEE 5, 3 - (358) (358)
At 31 December 2016 RF—NETTAH
=+—H 206,931 24,124 231,055
ACCUMULATED Bl gy
AMORTISATION
At 31 December 2015 and R —HE+H
1 January 2016 Z=t—ARZER—RN
—H—H = - -
Provided for the year AR I = 4,106 4,106
Exchange adjustments [P 52, i) = (78) (78)
At 31 December 2016 R_F—NE+HH
=+—H = 4,028 4,028
CARRYING AMOUNTS YR i AL
At 31 December 2016 R_Z—NETZAH

206,931 20,096

B 20603 T e
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued)

Note:

®

(i)

Various studies including product life cycle studies, market, competitive
and environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities have
been performed by management of the Group, which supports that
the trademark has no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
trademarked products are expected to generate net cash flows for the
Group. As a result, the trademark is considered by the management of
the Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trademark will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

The above intangible asset represent trademark with indefinite useful
economic life.

The other intangible assets (other than trademarks) have finite useful
life, such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

18. b fe ) %5 At (A1)

Wi

@

(i)

A5 [ 4 B R AT 2 T 58 > 45 2
WIWFSE - 1 85 ~ 505 R BR BT 34 DL % i ol 4
JrREME BT - W TR R AR A o TR W 2 AR
AR 180 e Az B A D (D Sl 6 T T L 2 PR
i o BRI - A4S T8 L 2 s T A e L
SE B FARIY > 77 R B T S PR AR L 4
A B IE T B M FAE I T 7
FIR > 785 UL S 0 8 o T8 RS I 4 47 T A L
T 8 Y B A I G A AT Rl AE 0

Al ST Y S R WAL > AR S W B AL A
it o

Fofio R e (TR B Ah) B AT LT 42
1 > T % 24 U TE S 4 L AR T T 51 07 [ i

following periods: 8-
Licenses 2-8 years 14 FI] HE 2-84F
19. GOODWILL 19. W&
HK$’000
T#x
COST AND CARRYING AMOUNT P 7S B Y i ¥
At 1 January 2015 R_F—HFE—H—H -
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34) R WA e — D A Jo ) 2 A (B E34) 870,169
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 Ro-B—HER_F-AE+ZA=Z+—H 870,169

Impairment testing on goodwill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to

individual cash generating unit (“CGU”). The basis of the recoverable

amounts of the CGU and its major underlying assumptions is summarised

below:

B0

900 Sk T - R 2 T8 e I B
A B (T3 4 A A ¥ AL ) o B 4 A A B4
Z ) W T A R e A% L R N B A S
AE
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19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. W% (#9)

Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

On 6 June 2015, the Group entered into a share purchase and subscription
agreement with an individual third party acquiring the entire equity interest
in Nice Race Management Limited (“Nice Race Group”), resulting in a
goodwill of approximately HK$870,169,000 for the operation of high-end
restaurant chain under the brand of “Golden Jaguar (&85 %1)”.

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a value
in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a period of 5 years, and cash
flows beyond 5 years are extrapolated by assuming 3% growth rate and a
discount rate of 17.7% (2015: 18.8%) per annum. This growth rate is below
the average growth rate of the retail industry for the past 10 years. Senior
management of the Group believes that using a lower growth rate is a more
conservative and reliable choice for the purpose of this impairment testing.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects management’s estimate of the
risks specific to the CGU. In determining an appropriate discount rate for the
unit, regard has been given to the applicable borrowing rate of the industry in

the current year.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the catering
business of CGU. The basis used to determine the future earnings potential
are average historical sales and expected growth rates of the catering market
in PRC. The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development. The basic factors used to determine the
values assigned are staff costs, rental expenses and other expenses. Values
assigned to the key assumptions reflect past experience and management’s
commitment to maintain the Company’s operating expenses at an acceptable

level.

In performing the impairment testing, the directors of the Company have
also made reference to a valuation performed by an independent professional
valuer. During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, management of

the Group determined that there was no impairment of goodwill.

R P D ()

BT —HAENHNH - AGEH 5 — 4 {558
=5 T S B B 1w o WO L Nice Race
Management Limited ([ Nice RaceE [ |) Z %
TR IR A HE 25 > BRIk 2 4 B850 1 5 Wt v AR 83
A I SR T M AR 4 %5870,169,0003 7T = T 2 -

I B 4 A LA 2 BT WA DT 4 A T AR R A8 T A
FEFH S HOE o Rt B 0 18 L P it e 2
AT JH o B T A B A R TR FAE AR
ZHERETIHBE3IDHERZ17.7% (=%
— T4 18.8% ) Z M BUAR AT HE W o L3 R
RENBEHEEBETEZ YRR REH
TR 00 A L o o b R ) S PR AR 2 g
T B Ty DR 7 T v 5 o Br P 2 W B 3 % B i B
B > [ WA B S 3 4 2k AL A LB
A P REAY o B R 3% B 2 4 708 G B R
T 7% I8 B A 48 B AT 38 I 04 4 kB R o

B KE B A A VLA B P AR BT B
R T - R R S R 2R R Ty 2 i
T JEE A SF- g A v I T 3 W BT R
F o FTA B RE 43 L A% TH 55 6 ) 348 Y B8 i
Fy BAR TR L Z 00— 4R R B IR 3 A R
(S 2 P9I 28R 1= 7 DA v ) B FEUM00 i 55 %
Ji& o FEI TP e S J 4 TG L ¥ R A PR 3K H TR
A%~ R 4 B S B He At PR 52 o 43 I A T ZEAR R
AL S W 7 308 A A6 8 e 4 L o ) A A A )
B8 B ST T 4K 52K F 1 R G o

A2 ) R AT WA B R R > 7 25 5L
HEAG M Z A o R ECRANER R
—HAE T A =4 H R B > A A g
T S HBE € T AR AL
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

20. %A TALGHA B 2 i ¥

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2016 2015
TR N RN
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T¥IT
Financial assets Al R
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong (Note (i) W # s L Z AR % (M7td) ) 409,238
Equity linked note (Note (ii)) JBEA B 80 S BR (M A Gi) ) 330,000
Unlisted investment fund (Note (iii)) K B BE RS (M AEdGi)) -
739,238
Notes: Mk -

(1) The fair value of equity securities are determined based on the quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.

(i)  The fair value of the equity linked note is determined with reference to the
quoted price of the underlying listed equity investments in Hong Kong at
the end of the reporting period.

(iii)  The fair value of unlisted investment fund is established by making
reference to the redemption price quote by respective fund administrators.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not pledge any equity securities
listed in Hong Kong to secure the Group’s borrowings (2015: approximately
HK$364,778,000) (Note 30).

() AR I3 A AP RSB SO IR 2 7
Wi fe o -

(i) BEASHNA SR 2 A PE 2 BN R A
B L Tl P A 8 5 2 A o

(i) FEEWREREZAFETIRBEXESE
BN A L R

NZF—ANETZAZ+—H > A E I L
9 b T B AR S - 1 s B A 4B A K
(= — T4 £1364,778,0008 75 ) (Ft5E30)
Z ¥R o
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21.

22,

INVENTORIES 21. #8
2016 2015
—RB—NE SR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT RRC
Properties under development for sale Rk 674,065
Completed properties for sale [0 %: R LE S 3,600,924
4,274,989
Food and beverages, and other operating items R DL B 8 R SR I T s S 1Y
for catering and related service operations HimEEE 16,181
Finished goods BB 2,878
4,294,048
The Group’s properties for sale with a carrying amount of approximately R —NEFTZA=Z+—H - REE CHIT
HK$5,007,227,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: approximately M T 8 49 %55,007,227,0008 6 ( =B —H 4R ¢
HK$4,274,989,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings #%54,274,989,000% 7T ) Z t B 3 - 1 B I
(Note 30). BAGE A K (BERE30) Z #5 R o
The properties for sale are situated in the PRC and Hong Kong. 5485 0y 3 2 R o R B A o
TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. MW R

Trade receivables arising from sale of properties are due for settlement in

accordance with the terms of the related sale and purchase agreement.

Trade receivables arising from catering business are mainly due from credit
card companies and corporate customers, which are normally settled in
the following months. In view of aforementioned, there is no significant

concentration of credit risk.

PR 4 3 1 5 P s A 2 MR S MR R AL 4 A R
HH W sk ok B AS A -

K R AR B MRk s R A
JRWG 28 ) B A 3% 5 AR IH > sk SEUE R B AR
HRESE o B b2t 175 Dt > WG 8 TR K £ R 8 v L
Fﬁo
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) at the end of the reporting period:

22. MEWCR B MRk (1)

TP 3 A TR - M B R AR (1 B R BRI

0 - 30 days 0F30H
31 -60 days 31860H
61 —90 days 61290H
91 — 180 days 91&180H
Over 180 days 180H DL |k

1) 2 I B 43720 T
2016 2015
N e
HK$°000 HK$’000
T Tl
24,686
1,211
5,163
5,854
48,382
85,296

As at 31 December 2016, included in the Group’s trade receivables were
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$31,861,000
(2015: approximately HK$48,382,000) which are past due for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts were still considered
recoverable. The Group has collateral over certain these balances from sale
of properties. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired

RF—NETZHAZT—H > AREEZ K
B 5y W sk v A 55 IR T A 40 %5 31,861,000 0
(ZF— T4 #17548,382,0004 70 ) Z B
JRE WOk T > T ER R B R N TR R A B H
B8 5 AV WA AR VT W I > AR S [ ST 0 R 43 D
fEEH - ARLEE S B R E T HBRFHIK
5o BEWHE S IR AR FHE, -

YR A AR 1 B AR 2 M B 5
Wik 2 M B

Over 180 days 180H YA |

2016 2015
— —F R
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#L F#T
48,382

48,382

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired were mainly related
to a number of corporate customers for whom there were no recent history
of default. Accordingly, no provision for impairment of trade receivables is
necessary as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

R AL B K WE AN 391 A8 R AR » 2 B % i A
%P B 0 S 4 T 8 - B > R R A
FEHZHAZ B SRR MR 5 IRk
e @ (28— Tip : ) o
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

23, THAS K > 354 B I il R WOk B

2016
ZE N
HK$°000
T

Non-current assets I B B A
Long-term rental deposit RWIME %4
Current assets bR b A
Prepayments: THA FKH -

— construction contracts —ERAF

— pre-sale related taxes — T 45 A A B I
— others — Hf

Deposits Yied
Consideration receivables JRE AR

Other receivables At WK IR

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets

included in the above balances related to receivables for which there was no

recent history of default.

24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2015
e
HK$°000
T

21,045

2,019,414
5,275
76,324
972,007

157,460

3,230,480

3,251,525

b A SO ) A - WA B A AR 4
i 7 S d 0 SN 9 % 3 K i 5 1 B AR Ak

B e

2016
ZE N
HK$°000
T

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

TR AT K

Ble B &EHY

M.%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ#%/ﬂﬁ&ﬁ%%

2015
Ll
HKS$’000
TH#IT

2,371,305
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24.

2S.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Cash and bank balances of the Group comprise bank balances and cash held
and short-term bank deposits that are interest-bearing at market interest rate
and have original maturity of one year to three years. The Group’s bank
deposits carry interest rates ranging from Nil to 4.2% (2015: Nil to 4.2%) per
annum.

At 31 December 2016, approximately 11% (2015: approximately 1%) of the
Group’s bank balances and deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Nil (2015: approximately 14%) in US dollars (“USD”) and approximately
89% (2015: approximately 85%) in Renminbi (“RMB”). RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank balances and deposits of
approximately HK$72,627,000 (2015: approximately HK$67,352,000) are
solely for certain designated property development projects in the PRC, and
there are approximately HK$86,984,000 (2015: Nil) of bank balance had
been resecured for certain construction cost payable in PRC.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had pledged bank deposits with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,860,257,000 (2015: approximately
HK$2,371,305,000) to secure the Group’s borrowings in the PRC (Note 30).

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for construction costs,
suppliers and ongoing costs.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the end of the reporting
period.

24.

25.

Gk BRIT Ak e RB &%
i (4)

A ] 2 B4 T SR AT A5 B 10 6 BT R 2 SR AT &
i B B 4 D R A% 5 R BT S LR 46 5 BR 2
—4E F AR O SRATAF K o AR T SR AT AT
KZERBANPRFEA420 (B—HIE:BR
42%) °

RoB—ANEFZHA=Z+—H - AREFDHE T
FHE Z AT R R AR AE 1% (ZR—1
B1%) UL ([FEL])FHEAR (2
—HAE  H114%) - RUANRYE (T AR 5
{EHIRE89% ( ZF—FAF - #185% ) - NRW%
B SRR LW - BN 4 M th B ZE 2
BCRF B it 2 A T IR 1 B 0 R

NoZ—NE+H=Z+—H KEHEZ®
TR R AF AR H$572,627,0008 70 ( & — T
40 49 5567,352,0009 0 ) B LR I 2
HTREWEFREE  BCEH KL
86,984,0009 70 ( =& — TL4E « ) Z SRAT A5 6%
A A o 2 A B S A 2 R

N oF—ANETFZH=Z+—H > AREEH O I
M T A8 4 %5 1,860,257,0008 7C ( R — 4R :
#1752,371,305,000% JG ) Z $R 17 17 2K > 18 25 BL
5 A 4 1 B 5 A A (FERE30) Z W AR o

R Ak B0 5 YRk

JRE A S 5 M sk 356 A s 508 R A e 3% E W I
LES YW ELF Fik % N

TP 5 0K > MBS B 50 Mk Z MR MR A AT N

0 - 30 days 0%30H

31 - 60 days 31260H
61 —90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H DAk

2016 2015

ZR A ZE A
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T#L F#T
62.355

18,789

20,297

1,655,554

1,756,995
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E T —N4E T H=1T—HILEE

26. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS/ACCRUED
LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

u

26. ggﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

2016 2015
RN ZEB AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T

Deposits from customers: FRu4:
Deposits received from sales of properties & T RORGT & 982,496
Advance from customers of catering business B TH K E 507,201
Others Ho At _
1,489,697
2016 2015
RN ZRhAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L T#0
Accrued liabilities and other payables: M T £ 46 B i A kR
Non-current liabilities I3 By £ A
Deferred income ALY A 80,786
Long-term payable = 391 M A+ 3k 0 89,533
170,319
Current liabilities b URER i
Construction costs payable JE A s S R A 102,658
Other payables At A 3K OE 345,010
Accruals ESHE A 116,190
Interest payable JE AT F1) B g

I
LEEET S

=
5.

EESEEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS/RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

27. WEAS F P IBOHE 2B el 2 w) 2k

A7 Bk T 2 SR~ S B R AR R R AR -

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
Ordinary
shares of
HK$0.2 each Amount
49 ¢ i i
028762
W8 I £t !
Notes HK$’000
ik Tt
Issued and fully paid: AT R -
At 1 January 2015 W _Z—FAFE—H—H 13,778,884,046 2,755,777
Conversion of the convertible bonds Sh ] H i A5 % (a) 743,494,422 148,699
Issue of shares by way of placing 7 T B AT IR (b) 360,000,000 72,000
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 A =F—FAFE+_HA=+—HK
R —AE—H]—H 14,882,378,468 2,976,476
Issue of shares by way of placing 7R I AT IR (©) 1,995,350,000 399,070
At 31 December 2016 Z-A#+=H=+—8H 16,877,728,468 3,375,546
== ha d i . . J
4 1 :
. T ‘ £ =S &
2 ik % S \ | — =
| e | 1Y T e \\ 9 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

a)

b)

)

Conversion of convertible bonds

On each day of 2 December 2015 and 8 December 2015, convertible
bonds with outstanding principal amount of HK$100,000,000 was

converted at the conversion price of HK$0.269 per share, resulting in the
issue of 371,747,211 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each, respectively.

Issue of shares by way of placing

On 12 June 2015, the Company allotted and issued 360,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital of the Company by way of placing at
a placing price of HK$1.46 per share. The Company raised approximately
HK$518,025,000 (net of expenses).

Issue of shares by way of placing

@

(i)

(iii)

On 21 June 2016, the Company allotted and issued 725,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital of the Company
by way of placing at a placing price of HK$0.95 per share.
The Company raised approximately HK$674,472,000 (net of
expenses).

On 7 July 2016, the Company allotted and issued 440,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital of the Company
by way of placing at a placing price of HK$0.88 per share.
The Company raised approximately HK$379,260,000 (net of
expenses).

On 22 December 2016, the Company allotted and issued
830,350,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital of the
Company by way of placing at a placing price of HK$0.873 per
share. The Company raised approximately HK$702,895,000 (net
of expenses).

28. JBeA (%)

H

B

a)

b)

c)

SR B

Ao —HEFTF A AR R —fE T
HIUH » AR 3 A 4 %1100,000,0009 8 Z 7]
RS 25 BALAT 0. 26995 7T 2 3B i »
AT B B4 B8 AT371,747,21 1B I i A
0.29 70 Z % 48 Bt -

L B AT I

WoZ—FHEANATH KA T BRE
B > J T A I I 1. 4636 T L 8 K B AT
360,000,0008¢ 4% 2 5] B A 4 e 1T 40,29 70

W B o A H) B A% 49 75518,025,0009% 70
(fukgeH) o

A B AT Iy

i MZEB—-ARENAZ+—H- AR
] R - B R
0.959% JC T %% B B8 AT A 24 W) e A op
725,000,000/ 4 B 1 0.2 JC Z %
8 B o A2\ ) 15 £1674,472,000% o0
(Fups# ) -

() MIF—AELALH - AARBESR
T B - 42 T B 4 Bt I 47 0.88 ¥k T I
B S B AT A2 ] e AR 440,000,000/
BT 0. 2 T Z W B IE o A A W)
5£9379,260,000% 76 (F0BREH) -

(i) MNZFE—ANEFT+_HZ+ZH- &K
2\ ] LB - 4R B E
0.873%% 70 1L 35 M B8 47 A A 6] e A op
830,350,000/8¢ 4 % 18 160.2% G Z
B WL o AR 2 W) E 15 £1702,895,0009 I
(fBxEH) -



e A 22 I R AT PR A ) | 20164F- 3t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E T —N4ETH=1T—HILEE

29. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

29. WEHEH T Z KT

2016 2015
— e S K
HK$°000 HK$000
T# TH#T

Analysis for reporting purpose as: e A 0 43 BT
Current liabilities Vi) £ A
Non-current liabilities FEH) A R

323
681

1,004

The Group’s leased certain of its motor vehicle under finance lease. The
lease term is 5 years (2015: 5 years). Interest rates underlying the obligation
under finance lease are fixed at respective contract dates 3.57% (2015:

3.57%) per annum.

AEFEAREREMEHALA TRELT -
AW AR (B4 HAE) - fEHE
TH R Z B AR AR R 45 5 40 H € R3.57%
(ZR—HAF:3.57%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E T —N4ETH=1T—HILEE

29. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

(Continued)

Amounts payable under finance il ¥ Fil 55 JE £ 5% 0 -
leases:

Within one year —4E N

More than one year but not more  —4F D), _FH 7 & 488 i 4F-

than two years
More than two years but not

more than five years

PR DL AR A A 4

Less: future finance charges

Tl AR ik ¥ 2

Present value of lease obligation Fl & H £ Z Bi{H

Less: Amount due for settlement  J8 : 1248 H 1N 2] 1] 4% 35

within 12 months (shown FRIE (B R B
under current liabilities) FAHIET)

Amount due for settlement after 12118 H & 23] 4% B 3k JEH
12 months

The Group’s obligation under finance lease is secured by the lessor’s title to

the leased assets.

Finance lease obligation is denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

29. BRERLETHE T Z B (1)

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments

B KA Tk KA A kB
2016 2015 2016 2015
SR SRR DR ANE R LR
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
T# F#T T#T T#C

BEA REAR I PR

Al AL 5T B DA G5

2 S [ Tl L B R 2 B LN SR O

I
LEEET S

=
5.

EESEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE ~R—N4ET - H=Z1T—HILEE

30. BORROWINGS

30. fiiak

Bank borrowings, secured (Note (i) SRATAY 3 > B AT (M EEG) )
Other borrowings, secured (Note (i) oAb AE 3% - B I (M EEG) )
Senior bonds (Note (ii)) AR S (M A )

Bonds (Note (if)) &% (Mt (i)

Carrying amounts repayable: TR Z IR :

On demand or within one year FRE RGN

More than one year but not exceeding two years —4F P4 [ H AS 18 4% /i 47

More than two years but not exceeding five years

More than five years

hAEDLE

AR DA B ARS8 T 4R

Notes:

®

As at 31 December 2016, bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$4,999,854,000 (2015: approximately HK$6,601,817,000) are
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and carried at fixed interest
rates of 1.62% to 13% (2015: 1.62% to 13%) per annum. Bank and
other borrowings of approximately HK$289,094,000 (2015: Nil) are
denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”) and carried at floating
rate of London Interbank Offered Rate plus 3% per annum (2015: Nil).
Bank and other borrowings of approximately HK$1,080,250,000 (2015:
approximately HK$100,000,000) are denominated in HK$ including
HK$180,000,000 and carried at fixed rate of 9.2% per annum and
HK$900,250,000 carried at floating rate of Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered
Rate plus 1.5% per annum respectively (2015: floating rate of HSBC
prime rate plus 5% per annum).

2016
—
HK$°000
T#

2015
ZEF T4
HK$°000
TH#T

2,304,497
4,397,320
1,010,090

12,294

7,724,201

4,217,140
3,083,984
414,438
8,639

7,724,201

R-F—NEF+_H=+—H0 815
K % FE Al A 3k £04,999,854,000% 0C (&
— 4 £16,601,817,000% 70 ) DA A R
(TN B D) 56 > 36 43 1 DL B 52 48 F1) &
1.62%%13% (=% —H4E: 1.62%%13%)
Fh B o SRAT K H At 4 3K £9289,094,000% JC
(ZF—HA ) TSI ([FEIE])5F
A8 > SE DA g B €47 8 4R B3 JE (%
—HAE ) BT B A R EE B o SRAT KA
i 3K £91,080,250,000% 76 ( = F — 4 ¢
#1100,000,000% JG ) J3 DA ¥ JG 5l > B 55
180,000,000 7T DA [ & A 2R 4E 5.9 2 [ 51 . -
900,250,000%5 70 )5 DA ¥ 81147 [l SE 47 2
AEBLSEIFE BRI R (S —f4E [
M SRAT S B R R AF B A R 8 A R
B)e
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30. BORROWINGS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

The Group’s bank and other borrowings were secured by:

(a)

@

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) W B Kol (Wit ie)
Investment properties (Note 17) REWE (ML)
Properties for sale (Note 21) BBk (Mit21)
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REWE Lz

(Note 20) Joe A 25 (M iE20)
Pledged bank deposits (Note 24) CHEAT SRAT AR (M ik24)
Deposits e

(b) A personal guarantee was given by a substantial shareholder of the
Company for the Group’s certain borrowings.

(c)  Certain shares have been pledged by non-controlling interests of
the Group’s borrowings.

(ii)  Bonds payable

(a)  On 5 December 2014, the Company issued senior bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of RMB500,000,000 (“2014 Senior
Bonds”), which were matured on 4 December 2016 unless early
redeemed pursuant to the terms thereof. The 2014 Senior Bonds
bear interest from and including, 4 December 2014 at the rate of
11.5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on 4 June and
4 December in each year, commencing on 4 June 2015. The net
proceeds of 2014 Senior Bonds, after deducting the issuance costs,
amounted to approximately HK$626,938,000. The 2014 Senior
Bonds is denominated in RMB.

The Company early redeemed a principal amount of
RMB400,000,000 of the 2014 Senior Bonds with the amount
of HK$498,984,000 during the year and recognised a loss of
approximately HK$1,471,000 on early redemption on bonds to the

(i)

30. =k (49)
Mfak : (%)
(%)

A5 T AT i R B A i DA A R

(a)

2016 2015
e S 3 ZR T
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
T T
5,632,673

4,420,271

4,274,989

364,778

2,371,305

17,064,016

(b) ARAF L EEBRCRARLEEE T
KA — TEAE B AR

(©)  H BT iASEE A e R
2R o

AT B 27

(@ RI-FE—WNE+ZHHH > KAF

BEAT AR 4 BB N RH500,000,000
JCZE MBS ([T — 4 AR
1) BRZR—AETHANHEZR
B> BRI B ek R m el o —F
— AR HAE S =T — AR+
RV H G (R H ) AR R 1158
FHE AR —FENHNUA B
AERMBAEBEANANA XA
VU H 24} o R — PU4E T 4 il = =2 Pt
Pk T (I BRBAT AR ) B9 %
626,938,00095 JG ° & — Y4 & 4 &
FUNRWEFHE

A2 ] B4R N PA497,984,000% 76 12
T R AR 4 A 8 A\ R 400,000,000
JLZ BV E R K
1,471,000%5 JG Z Ji5 T8 7 A 755 i 4 e a2
o B 1 R AR 2 Z 4R o AR A W] R
F Y B AR R AR T U4 A
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30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)  Bonds payable (Continued)

(b)

(©)

(d

(e)

®

The Company issued two tranches of senior bonds on 5 January
2015 and 29 January 2015 respectively with aggregate principal
amount of HK$200,000,000 (“2015 Senior Bonds I”’), which will
mature on the date immediately following two years after the first
issue date unless early redeemed pursuant to the terms thereof.
The 2015 Senior Bonds I bear interest at the rate of 6% per annum,
accrued daily on a 365 days basis and payable annually in arrears.
The net proceeds of 2015 Senior Bonds I, after deducting the
issuance costs, amounted to approximately HK$189,974,000.

The Company issued two tranches of senior bonds on 6 February
2015 and 6 March 2015 respectively with aggregate principal
amount of HK$200,000,000 (“2015 Senior Bonds II"”'), which will
mature on the date immediately following two years after the first
issue date unless early redeemed pursuant to the terms thereof. The
2015 Senior Bonds II bear interest at the rate of 6% per annum,
accrued daily on a 365 days basis and payable annually in arrears.
The net proceeds of 2015 Senior Bonds II, after deducting the
issuance costs, amounted to approximately HK$189,974,000.

The Company issued five tranches of bonds on 19 July 2015, 24
July 2015, 10 August 2015 and 27 August 2015 respectively with
aggregate principal amount of HK$14,000,000 (*2015 Bonds”),
which will mature on the date immediately following 48 or 90
months after the dates of issue of the 2015 Bonds. The 2015
Bonds bear interest at the rate of 6% per annum, payable on 31
May each year after the issue of the 2015 Bonds. The net proceeds
of 2015 Bonds, after deducting the issuance costs, amounted to
approximately HK$11,870,000.

The Company issued senior bonds on 15 March 2016 with
aggregate principal amount of USD180,000,000 (“2016 Senior
Bonds”), which will mature on 22 March 2019 unless early
redeemed pursuant to the terms thereof. The 2016 Senior Bond
bear interest at the rate of 8% per annum and payable semi-
annually in arrears on 22 September and 22 March in each year
commencing on 22 September 2016. The net proceeds of 2016
Senior Bonds, after deducting the issuance costs, amounted to
approximately HK$1,374,774,000.

The Company issued forty-five tranches of bonds during the
period from 31 March 2016 to 29 December 2016 with aggregate
principal amount of HK$293,000,000 (“2016 Bonds”), which will
mature on the date immediately following 4 years, 5 years or 7
years after the dates of issue of the 2016 Bonds. The 2016 Bonds
bear interest at the rate of 6% per annum, payable on 30 November
each year after the issue of the 2016 Bonds. The net proceeds
of 2016 Bonds, after deducting the issuance costs, amounted to
approximately HK$254,145,000.

30. A=k (&)

Hfit - (A1)

(i)  HEAEESR (8D

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

N —HE—HAEAKR_E A
E—AZHIH s RAF R BTH
AR 4 558 £5200,000,0009 76 2 1 4%
fEH ([ ZE-HERHRESE—]) >
BV H % BEPE o HOBAT H W AR
(B I 50 W Il sk P T M Il ) - — 2
—HAR R AR — VAR RO A »
D365 H & H st 60 S4E i 4% S Ak o
R TR R AR R R ATE
SCRY B ARk B4 £5189,974,0009
7]30

ROR-HEAANIR R L
EZ AN H  ARA T 5 B BT WAL A
4 B %5200,000,0009 IG Z 18 A& 5
(=R -TFEEREF ) - HFW
H % 2 BE L EEAT H I W4E 1% (BRIE
R 42 TR [P R PR T I I ) o R — T
ST AR S DL AR R RO R > DA
365H 3% H w8l 4548 7 9 4% % A o
CR TR R A S IR AT B
S J A9 S R A 4 189,974,000
71:0

W_F—HFELATILHE - 221
EEH M AE 2 -HENH
+HRZR-HENA=TLEH
A ) o B AT WA A R
14,000,000¥ ¢ Z & % ([ ZF— L4
&) - HBHH B EE _F— A
AR 2 B AT H W48Ekoof H £ - %
— AR IR AR RO T R, » A%
FBTRBERLA=ZT—H -2
B— ARG S BN G B8 4T B S W B A
KIE R A 5 11,870,0009 G ©

M- NE=ZHATHH > KA
A7 AR 4 8% % 180,000,00035 7T 2 1 4}
G ([ —NFERBMER]) - %
W-F—-NFE=ZH =+ H3W
[53% e A 12 LAk B T i o 0N
A 15 AR AR 5 DA AT R 8 5 S 5 R
ZE-NFERAZ T HER K
JLH= F=HR=H=1=H&E}
EF A R —NERBEFEZ T
153K JE A (0 BREEAT AR ) B9 %
1,374,774,0009 JG

A werr LR = R = E) 2T — S
—ANETZH I H R ARA
BEAT U AR 4 B £5293,000,000
Wiz fiR ([ZF-ANEFEZHE]) >
A BEPE =T — NS BT H
RVUAE ~ FAF ~ B LAERIR H B - —
T — N AR AR R I AR AR R RO FL B »
BEGT - ANEMAEREFE T —
A=1THXM  ZB—AER/BH
PR TE R B (0 SR B AT AR ) B0 B
254,145,000% JC ©
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30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(i)

Notes: (Continued) Mt (%)
Bonds payable (Continued) ii) FEAT 25 (#1)
The movements of the Group’s bond payable for the years ended 31 REEBEAEFERBREZ-NER_Z
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows: —hETFZHE— HIRFEEZ BT -
2014 Senior 2015 Senior 2015 Senior 2016 Senior
Bonds Bonds I BondsIT 2015 Bonds Bond 2016 Bonds Total
CER-pE CR-f% CF-NE CR-0E CRNE DRk
WEREE  RBRE— AR BF  WEREE 5% it
Note (a) Note (b) Note (c) Note (d) Note (e) Note (f)
Wit Hit®) Wit Wita) Hite) it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T T T T T
Carrying amounts s at BRI~ A — B IR
1 January 2015 631,816 - - - - - 631,816
Net proceeds on date of issuance BT H BT 5 KR - 189,974 189,974 11,870 - - 391,818
Exchange adjustments JEE 5.3 2 (35,487 - - - - - (35,487
Interest paid BHAA (70.947) - - - - - (70.947)
Effective interest charged to ARG HBAR
profit or loss (Note §) (H7ts) 73,925 16,183 14,652 424 - - 105,184
Carrying amounts as at REB-HEFZAZT—H
31 Decernber 2015 and R=FZ-RE-R—AZ
1 January 2016 I T £ 599,307 206,157 204,626 12,204 - - 1,022,384
Net proceeds on date of issuance BT H BT 5 KR - - - - 1,374,774 254,145 1,628919
Exchange adjustments JEE 537 (5,198) - - - 646 - (4,552)
Interest paid BHAA (13,309) (12,000) (12,000) (674) (55,800) (3,050) (96,833)
Effective interest charged to ARG HBAR
profit or loss (Note §) (Hits) 29,339 17,257 17218 1,120 91,35 5,866 162,035
Repurchase J (498,984) - - - - - (498,984)
Loss on early redemption ST 1471 = = = o = 1471
Repayment of principle HRALH (112,626) = = = = = (112,626)
Carrying amounts as at REB—A4
31 December 2016 FZAZ A B2 = 211414 209,844 12,740 1,410,855 256961 2,101,814

30. M (&)

The effective interest rate of the above bonds payable ranged from 8.56%
t0 9.75% per annum (2015: 8.84% to 12.02%).

b e JRE A A 5 4 B R AT ) 2R %5 8.56 )8 %29.75
JE ( ZF— A 884 E12.02/H) o

I
L]

HH R
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EHEBLIHE

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial

position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The

following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

purposes:

TR R B I BOR DR RIIIE - & TIRIE
T T L COBEHR AR o R B A A B i

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

A AL I
A S AL I 14K

& 2 3R A BT A5 8R4 T

2016 2015

ZRNAE ZR T
HK$’000 HK$’000

T Tt
(444)

1,529,191

1,528,747

The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised and the

TFF R O 2 2 A S B A R B AR

movements thereon during the current and prior years: AP BOB RS BEZ ) -
Deductible
temporary
differences
Convertible  Revaluation of arising from
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities: bonds properties LAT provisions Tax losses Total
LI B
L2
LE T
BB (W) Akt RS ER(E/ES Wi % 7 BiR R At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2015 R_Z—HFE—~H—H 8,663 1,635,984 (10,800) = 1,633,847
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) WG A (e itz4) - = = (463) (463)
Credited to profit or loss S EEANEIDN (5,632) (10,832) (817) = (17,281)
Release upon conversion of convertible bonds .46 A 46§ i %5 IR 7 B (4.866) = = - (4,366)
Recognition of equity component of T T 0 2 7 4
convertible bonds 7,108 - - - 7,108
Exchange adjustments it i 8% - (90,248) 631 19 (89,598)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RE-B—HFEFA=ZT—HE
—2-A%—H—H 5273 1,534,904 (10,986) (444) 1,528,747
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss RN (FEA) /B (3,517) (98,366) (19,601) 435 (121,049)
Charged to revaluation reserves 7S 7 A i A T 0 B - 146,413 - - 146,413
Exchange adjustments i 56 i 5% = (101,389) 1,591 9 (99,789)
At 31 December 2016 REB-AEFZH=T—H 1,756 1,481,562 (28,996) - 1,454,322
[} (N =
£l > ‘%\ s
\

G
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 31. EREBLH (&)
Deferred tax assets: HE 9iE B8 I ¥ -
At the end of the reporting period, except for the provision of the above, IR - B Bl B Ah - AR R B
the Group has unused tax losses of approximately HK$76,009,000 (2015: FH Z F 3B s 15 40 %5 76,009,000% 76 ( —F — 11
approximately HK$487,118,000) available for offset against future profits that 4F 0 49 75487,118,000% 70 ) B Ak HE 8 R 2K %
certain amount may be carried forward indefinitely in Hong Kong and within ) o JHC vy 2 - 4 A T A v A LT 4 - A O
5 years under other jurisdiction. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in At ) 92 HE [ B A AR 2 P9 o P S 35 TR R 2R
respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. i R AR A A T e e R A I o
32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 32. WHBAE 2R
Convertible bonds at amortised costs: e B VI AR i S T B 27
The movement of liability component at amortised costs of the convertible TV AR T S R R R AR S 2 AR IR A B
bonds are as follows: W :
2011 2015
Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds I1 Total
S e 2 T3
WA WA Mt
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(K k@) (K ®)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T F# F#x
Carrying amount as at 1 January 2015~ R_F—HFE—H—HZ
I e {0 147,499 - 147,499
Liability components on initial W) Uk e w2 4 R 4
recognition - 2,138,123 2,138,123
Interest charged (Note 8) FlB X (M iEs) 23,015 96,739 119,754
Exchange adjustments [ 53, o % - (201) (201)
Conversion of convertible bonds So AR R AR 27 (170,514) - (170,514)
Carrying amount as at —Z—HEF+_HA=Z+—H
31 December 2015 K”_F—HRF—H—H
and 1 January 2016 Z MR HiAE = 2,234,661 2,234,661
Interest charged (Note 8) FlB X (M iEs) = 197,730 197,730
Interest paid T FILE (176,896) (176,896)
Exchange adjustments [T 52, it = 1,031 1,031
Carrying amount as at BN
31 December 2016 T H =4 H Z M i 2,256,526 2,256,526
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Convertible bonds at amortised costs: (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 21 December 2011, the Company issued unlisted convertible bonds
with a principal amount of HK$1,500,000,000 (“2011 Convertible
Bonds”) to the Better Joint Venture Limited (“Better Joint”) as part
of the consideration for the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Easy Linkage Development Limited. The 2011 Convertible Bonds are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have a term of 5 years.

The 2011 Convertible Bonds are convertible at the option of the holder
into ordinary shares of the Company on or before maturity at a conversion
price of HK$0.346 (the “First Conversion Price”) per share (subject
to anti-dilutive adjustment). As the Company further issue an unlisted
convertible bonds with a principal amount of HK$400,000,000 at a
conversion price of HK$0.30 per share, which had been fully converted
as of the year ended 31 December 2013. The First Conversion Price of
the 2011 Convertible Bonds was adjusted from HK$0.346 per share to
HK$0.30 (“Second Conversion Price”) per share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustment). Further the completion and issuance of shares by way of open
offer, the Second Conversion Price was adjusted from HK$0.30 per share
to HK$0.269 per share (subject to further adjustment).

The Company has the right to early redeem the 2011 Convertible Bonds
at the redemption amount before maturity. If the conversion right is not
exercised by the holder, the 2011 Convertible Bonds not converted will be
redeemed on maturity at 100% of their principal amount. On each day of
2 December 2015 and 8 December 2015, the 2011 Convertible Bonds in
an amount of HK$100,000,000 were converted into 371,747,211 ordinary
shares, respectively.

Upon the issuance of 743,494,422 ordinary shares in total, the equity
element which is presented under the heading of “convertible bonds equity
reserve” is transferred to “share premium” (note 46).

On 3 July 2015, the Company, as issuer, entered into a placing agreement
with China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch (“China
Minsheng”), as lead manager, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue, and China Minsheng has conditionally
agreed to use its best efforts to procure other investors to subscribe for the
convertible bonds(“2015 Convertible Bonds II”’) in the principal amount
of up to USD200,000,000 (or up to USD300,000,000 if the option is
exercised) at the initial conversion price of HK$1.39 per share. The 2015
Convertible Bonds II are secured, bear an 8% interest per annum and have
a term of 3 years.

32. WA 2 (41)

»

Hf

(a)

(b)

B

?ﬁ?ﬁ;ﬁ&ﬂi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁf&ﬂ%ﬁ# :

BB —FE A —H - ARAFA N
Better Joint Venture Limited ( [ Better Joint | )
BEAT AR 4 %11,500,000,000% 76 2 3k b i 7]
B (T F——4E B ])

A& %5 W Easy Linkage Development Limited
(I'Easy Linkage ] ) 2= %5 I A< # 25 2 35 43 1R
B o "R — AR TR R IR A SR - S .
T AR 5 TLAF o

TR R E SR AR R
1 H =i Z 5 DA S8 5 A 15 1503463 8 (58—
HeSEHLR ) (RIS 5
e ks A A T B E o AL W HAR DA S E
JB0.30%5 7T B 47 2K 4 #6400,000,000% 76 Z A&
bR S SRR E R Z4
+oA=Zt—H I EER Y R ——
AR AT 46 B £ 5 1 58 — Hik 56 4 P 48 800,346
WL A 0,308 00 (58 b Sa it ])
(TP IR R ) o A3 o DR BS B 58 L%
TRy 4% > 58 3 38 e £ e 45 1Bt0. 309 G o
B R 0.260% 0 (AR — %) o

A A RE I 20 300 T DA M I A M ] —
B AR B SR o M REE N AR S
Rl » RISz T —— R MRS
B R L 2R AR S R ] o A B —F
E+ZAZHBERZFE—RETZHNE
100,000,0007G 2 % ——4E ] # B i 55 4% i
e k371,747,211 B0 38 L

HA51743,494,420 B 15 3 B B AT 1% > 25
[ 46 JBE 05 5 ME 2 ok 8 | U 2 3 v 25 350
s A [ A e ] (ko) o

MRoB—-HAELA=ZH KA (fE5IT
) B ] R A SRAT e A PR A R A W 44T
(M B RE 1) (FE A2 SEASHE N ) 3T Ll B
o 6 > DR > AR W] AR R AT 0 KR
B R A A A I 0 5 T BB i A B
R AR 4 B 22 1200,000,00055 56 (B4
P47 R 4 AE - T B4 % 5 £2300,000,0003
J0) MRl BAE S ([ 2 — FAR W iRl 5
=) Wi h SRR B A 1.30%s 6 0 —
B—TAET B S AR - ER R
I J AT I oy = 4F o
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Convertible bonds at amortised costs: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

The number of shares to be issued upon exercise of the conversion right
attaching to 2015 Convertible Bonds II will be determined by translating
the principal amount of 2015 Convertible Bonds II (with the agreed
exchange rate of USD1 = HK$7.755) into Hong Kong dollars and dividing
at the conversion price.

On 14 August 2015, the Company and China Minsheng entered into a
supplemental letter to amend and supplement the terms of the placing
agreement pursuant to which it was agreed that, among others, the initial
conversion price under the terms and conditions of the 2015 Convertible
Bonds II would be amended from HK$1.39 per share to HK$1.26 per
share subject to and in accordance with the terms and conditions thereof.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company completed on issuance of the
2015 Convertible Bonds II with an aggregate amount of USD285,000,000
dividing into four series on 16 July 2015 (referring as “Series 17), 21
August 2015 (referring as “Series 27), 2 September 2015 (referring as
“Series 3”) and 9 September 2015 (referring as “Series 4”) respectively, to
several individual investors and financial institutes in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

2011 Convertible Bonds and 2015 Convertible Bonds II contained two
components, liability (together with embedded derivative for early
redemption option by the Company which is closely related to the host debt)
and equity elements. The equity elements are presented in equity under the
heading of “convertible bonds equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of
the liability component for 2011 Convertible Bonds is 16.59% per annum,
2015 Convertible Bonds II including Series 1 to 4 are ranged from 8.85% to
9.32% per annum at the date of initial recognition respectively.

32. WA 2 (41)

% B
(%)

Wi

(b)

WE A it ST Y 4B A 5

(B0
(#1)

T AR B AR S A B A T AR
BEAT W B0y 8 H S b S 2 — AR R R
AR F AR BB W0 (GRE P SR Sy
13€70 547.755¥ 70 ) 3 [ DA, 6. 46 5 i 8 5E o

R F—FAE NI HE > A2 7 B R
AT LA T AR R AE RT BNl T L S 1 =2
oW KRR (Pl Mg -2 —H
AR AT 4 A AR AR 2 0 2 A
R AR 0 LR B A B 1. 30MB S A& HT
B AR 26HE 7T

W —HETFZHZE+—H > RAF
BT R 285,000,000 62 B —HAE ]
RS = > 43 P TR 1R e s P 1R 2 A
BEEREMBEHEBT - A BN A=
F—HELA+TAH (TRAL])) - ZF—H
ENAZH—H (TFRF2])  ZF—TFER
HZH(HRIB)E_F—HFELANA
(F&7%14]) -

DR AR TR AR I B R TR T B A 2
ZALHE R Ay > R LRI A A R AR SR N
SR AR B IR B 2 B AT AR L) AR A4
25 F 4 T T 6% 2 i ok ) JEU R 2 2R Y

EV]E

S AR S Sy R AR TR

5= (B35 R B 1F4) Z A R0 H
B 2 B BRAE P R4 Bl %1659 Je 8,858 559,32 o
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 32. WA % (B1)
Convertible bonds at amortised costs: (Continued) B W AN S G v 5 B4 X
(%)
The movement of equity component of the convertible bonds is as follows: AR A S RE AR T A AR BN F -
2011 2015
Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds 11 Total
N “R— A
WA R 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T T T T
Carrying amount as at 1 January 2015 R _F—HFE—H—HZ
H T B 90,116 - 90,116
Release of deferred tax liabilities upon 5t 6 7T 46 i £ 5 I 7 [
conversion of convertible bonds T S I £ A% 4,866 - 4,866
Conversion of convertible bonds ST IR BT (94,982) - (94,982)
Equity component on initial recognition #JJ VX T 58 I 2 HE 25 3 4 - 43,078 43,078
Deferred tax liability on recognition of 7 58 BI ¢ 5 15 7 B %5 6 4
equity component of convertible bonds 2 3 %E i JH £ f# - (7,108) (7.108)
Carrying amount as at R —HAET+_H=1+—H
31 December 2015 and E_R—ANEFTZH=ZA—
31 December 2016 H 2 Jik i i - 35,970 35,970
:’,ﬁ i ) i N
& ¢ ! :)h X 13 r }“‘
w \4 £ % il \\ ew .
‘W‘*” b > ﬁ;n | * A% AN ,AA,,
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32.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

32. WRBAE S (4H)

Convertible bonds designated at fair value through 52 DA A PR A 3H A 2 W) 35
profit or loss: 7%
2015 Convertible
Bonds I
e 2 K0
W B 2 —
HK$’000
T#x
FAIR VALUE AT
At 1 January 2015 W _F—0H—H—H -
Liability components on initial recognition o W) R B AR 4 240,740
Fair value change for the year RN TEE ) 17,160
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R _F—AHFETHA=1—H R
ZE-AH—A—H 257,900
Fair value change for the year S SASR k] (12,104)
At 31 December 2016 R —NEFZ_H=+—H 245,796
2016 2015
RN R —TAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#0
Fair value change on 2015 Convertible Bonds I 5l A2 2 =& —H4F
revaluation included in profit or loss W45 B4 5 — T A A A ) 17,160
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Convertible bonds designated at fair value through
profit or loss: (Continued)

Note:

On 17 June 2015, the Company issued the exchangeable and convertible bonds
(“2015 Convertible Bonds I"’) in principal amount of HK$240,740,000 in favour
of BFT Acquisition Guernsey L.P. (“BFT”) as consideration in relation to the
acquisition of 99.99% equity interests in Nice Race Management Limited (“Nice
Race”) and its subsidiaries. The 2015 Convertible bonds I are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have a term of 3 years.

BFT are entitled to (i) convert all or part of the 2015 Convertible Bonds I into
ordinary shares of the Company from the thirtieth month of the date of issuance
to maturity or upon the consummation of a fundamental corporate transaction
during the term of the 2015 Convertible Bonds I at a conversion price of
HKS$1.55 per share or (ii) exchange all or part of the 2015 Convertible Bonds
I into a maximum of 14,250,095,000 ordinary shares of Nice Race from the
thirtieth month of the date of issuance to maturity or upon the consummation
of a fundamental corporate transaction during the term of the 2015 Convertible
Bonds I. If the conversion rights entitled are not exercised by the holder, the
2015 Convertible Bonds I not converted will be redeemed by the Company at its
principal amount on the maturity date.

On 3 July 2015, the initial conversion price of HK$1.55 per share of the 2015
Convertible Bonds I has been adjusted to HK$1.39 per share upon the entering
into the placing agreement of convertible bonds due 2018 as described in the
2015 Convertible Bonds II. On 14 August 2015, the conversion price was further
adjusted to HK$1.26 per share upon the entering into a supplemental letter to
the placing agreement of convertible bonds as described in the 2015 Convertible
Bonds II.

The conversion price was further adjusted to HK$0.95 per share upon the
issuance of shares on 21 June 2016 pursuant to the placing agreement dated 13
June 2016. The conversion price was further adjusted to HK$0.88 per share upon
the issuance of shares on 7 July 2016 pursuant to the subscription agreement
dated 29 June 2016. The conversion price was further adjusted to HK$0.873 per
share upon the issuance of shares on 22 December 2016 pursuant to the placing
agreement dated 14 December 2016.

2015 Convertible Bonds I contain liability components only, together with
embedded derivative for converting ordinary shares of Nice Race which is not
closely related to the host debt. The Group has irrevocably designate the liability
components of the 2015 Convertible Bonds I as financial liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

2. WAL S ()

P VA AP it A d 2wl 3B A
% (#)

BoEFLENHA T L HARAFUBFT
Acquisition Guernsey L.P. ([BFT |) %3 N7 4
S R5240,740,0009 70 Z 7] A2 BT UK 27 ([
F—IAEWHRBAES—1) - 1 % BBUENice Race
Management Limited ([Nice Race |) & 3t Fff & 2 5]
99.99% JBEREAR I Z ARAE] o — % — T AR W] B 55—
T JESEAT - 40 8 S AR A =

BFTH REG)H 84T HEM30MH 2R W A =&
— AR ] B S — I R SR B A FE AR 5 SR AR
VL S8 34 49 1558 e S R P s 4 B — HAE
A 40 JBe A8 5 — BE 4 K AR A W) 3% B I Bk i) B AT
H R SE30M8 A 2 H 2k =% — HAE T S 5
— I R BB A R G e AR A R R
— A T A8 S — 22 e %5 Nice Race ¥ 78 I e %2
14,250,095,0008% ° fift 22— AR W I —Fh
NN S A7 5 Fr 5 S0 RE 5 R R % AR R AR
AT EI A DA 4 ]

W —HELCHZH RE L F— ) E R
2 ] AR S A AR 0 o — AR T B
I —Z W o B A B 155 o0 B9 2 % A 1 .39
W0 (RN =% — AR R B 3 k) o R
F—HAE)\H T H > BT 3L 7T e B A5 57 1 65 177
il T PR AR o A I S0 B — 25 R R s T B 1 267
J6 (B =2 — AR W R RS 2 Akt ) o

M= ANEAAZ T —HRBHAHL Z-Z—A
EXNH = Z BB R BT AN - S —
H R F 095 - R B —ANFELH LHR
B HB R ZF—ANENH Z U H Z 58 k5
AT AR AE > S0 B M 3 — 2 3 4 28 49 30,88 ¥ T o Y
ZER-ANFETZHAZ T ZHBRBHBEZZ A
AE+TA 1Y H 2 W R AT B 1% - S
HE— 25 R 2 45 J0.873 M It o

TR -FAE W RS — A AR (B
P A A AR T H DL B S35 % Nice Race 548 it > B2 32
Bl S VIR ) o SR B O AS w4 o] i g — %
— TAR AR B 2 — Z BLGRER 4 A 3R AR EE A
Hitz &M ffEo
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33. PROVISIONS

33.

Litigation

WAk

HK$’000

T#T

At 1 January 2015 R_B—hHE—H—H -
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34) R WA e — D A Jo 2 ) 2 A (Y E34) 92,092
Additional provision for the year AR N RO A 1,186
Exchange adjustments FEE e, 3 4 (3,845)

At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R_F—DHET A=A R

ZEANE-AH 89,433
Over-provision for previous year b R A (30,782)
Exchange adjustments i i, 3 (4,409)
At 31 December 2016 REZF-AETFZH=T—H 54,242

The Group’s subsidiaries are subject to a variety of lawsuits and claims in the
ordinary course of its business. As at 31 December 2016, there were several
claims filed against the Group’s subsidiaries contesting breaches of contract
terms and non-payment of existing obligations. Management has reviewed
the circumstances and estimated that the amount of probable outflow related
to these claims should not exceed approximately HK$54,242,000 (31
December 2015: approximately HK$89,433,000). During the year, certain
claims have been finalised and a reversal of approximately HK$30,782,000
have been recognised in the profit or loss. At each reporting date the
Directors have assessed the provisions for litigation and claims and
concluded that the provisions and disclosures are adequate.

AR 4 [ i S 2 )RS B H R S R R b i 4%
FMHFERERE- R FE—ANF+ A=+ —
H > AR 45 [ fiH e A W) i 3 & % R AR i L R
BRI R AR BUA EAE - WG OHNE
B M R T AR B B A&
A #954,242,0008 70 (ZF—HE+THZH
=+ —H : 4189,433,0008 5 ) o AR FE >
TR O 5450 O 8 25 72 £930,782,000 %
JG B 0] 435 o Y45 4 H O 3 3 O RPN R
B RN Z 84 - N6 e B R
Eo
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34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 34. Wl — 181 FEJE 2 i
For the year ended 31 December 2015: RE_FZ-HETH=1—HIL
A

Acquisition of Nice Race and its subsidiaries (the “Nice Race W ¥ Nice Race % H W 85 2 7 ([Nice Race$E
Group”) Al)
On 4 August 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 99.99% equity P ZF—TAE )\ W H > A 8 56 5O Nice
interests in Nice Race Group. Goodwill arising on the acquisition was RacefE [ 299.99% i A< HE £ o P % JE WAC i
approximately HK$870,169,000. The Nice Race Group is principally A 2 T B 40 %4870,169,000%5 JC © Nice Racef
engaged in the operation of high-end restaurant chain under the brand of B A A [ 840 R g
“Golden Jaguar (& #8%7)”. i
Consideration transferred CHEAH

HK$’000

T#0

Cash paid oA B4 12,670
Convertible bonds (Note 32) A S (i aEs2) 240,740
Total st 253,410
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34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)  34. W¢I— B BB A 5] (45)

For the year ended 31 December 2015: (Continued) BE_Z A4+ -H=+—HI
SRR (B)

Acquisition of Nice Race and its subsidiaries (the “Nice Race W I Nice Race 5 M & 2 vl ([ Nice Race#

Group”) (Continued) H1) (%)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately HK$4,493,000 Wi A B R AR 4 £54,493,0009 7T 3 4 T A

have been excluded from the consideration transferred and have been AR ERERE R HE T HE—

recognised as an expense for the year ended 31 December 2015, within the LR AF B 5t 6 1R 28 B oAt 2 ThT Wi 25 36 4T 8L

“administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of profit or B % | TH H e sR 2 B 3 o

loss and other comprehensive income.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition are as AW H T R R OO R R A R
follows:
Fair value
VA
HKS$°000
T#T
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) W3k - W Bk (BfaELe) 219,720
Long-term rental deposits R %4 21,974
Other intangible assets (Note 18) H AL & B (M aE18) 206,931
Deferred tax assets (Note 31) TR SERLIE B B (M AE31) 463
Inventories & 15,741
Trade receivables JRE W B2 5 Mk 16,844
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TEATBRIE ~ #54 B H: A M WOk E 64,724
Cash and bank balances B4 R SRAT A5 B 26,338
Trade payables JREAT B2 5 MRk (198,763)
Accrued liabilities and other payables JRE R At R A Ak I (652,004)
Bank borrowings AT K (37,392)
Tax payable JRE A Bt I (27,114)
Deferred income TEFEWA (88,012)
Provisions (Note 33) B (M AE33) (92,092)
Long-term payables T 91 e A 3R (94,117)
Net liabilities HAEFH (616,759)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: B 5 i 2 2 R
Consideration transferred TR A 253,410
Less: net liabilities acquired I OO B AR (616,759)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 19)

R Wi o o A = TR (M AE19) 870,169
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34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)  34. Wi — P WHE 2 v (%)
For the year ended 31 December 2015: (Continued) w214+ -H=Z1+—HIE
SERE: (H)
Acquisition of Nice Race and its subsidiaries (the “Nice Race W Ji# Nice Race St H: W} )& 2 vl ([Nice Racef
Group”) (Continued) Bl) (#F)
Goodwill arose in the acquisition of the Nice Race Group because the BRI A O T S A AR A8 BT R b A 55 25 % IR 40 o
consideration paid for the combination effectively included amounts in [F] RIOE ~ Wt 38 1 ~ R 2 T 55 8% B Nice Race
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market 45 ) T4 [ R 52 R 2 4B U Nice RaceE
development and the assembled workforce of the Nice Race Group. These P R o R SR 25 R A B T S
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not B 2 W R > W R B ) B e R o
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to be deductible LS00 WA i o JE A B RS T IR ©
for tax purposes.
HK$’000
T#x
Net cash inflow on acquisition of the Nice Race Group: WO Nice Racefis Ml 2 B1 40 A 378
Cash consideration paid oA Bl &R (12,670)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired W OB 4 B B 4 S A 26,338
13,668

The Nice Race Group had contributed to the Group’s revenue and loss for
the year between the date of acquisition and 31 December 2015 amount
to approximately HK$248,200,000 and approximately HK$53,143,000

respectively.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015, total Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 would have been
approximately HK$1,572,970,000 and loss for the year ended 31 December
2015 would have been approximately HK$170,360,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January

2015, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

HkEHHEE —-F2—HaFE+-H=+—H
14 ¥ > Nice RacedE [H 23 1) %y A 45 [E) 5 2 g A
KB #)7#55248,200,00098 76 & £ 453,143,000
Wt o

M BEEOR —F—HE—H —H%E/k:
HIALERE_F—HETF_H=+—HIk
AR B 22 W 25 AR AR A9 %1,572,970,0009 7C > Tii
BEZ-AE+H=Z+—HILEEZE
HEH #9745 170,360,00098 T6 © 1#5% & RHAE B 358
FE 3 o R % R W A 5 T B B R = D Y
F—HAE—H— BB R 26 UL B B sk A
Z W s B A8 S A IS AR By R AR S AR T
o




Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ST R Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE ~R—N4ETF - H=Z1T—HILEE

35. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

The Group entered into a memorandum of understanding on 12 December
2016 regarding disposal of a subsidiary, Netspac Investments Limited
(“Netspac™). On 23 December 2016, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose of
the Group’s entire equity interest in Netspac for a cash consideration of
HK$350,000,000. Netspac is an investment holding company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability. It owns 26% equity
interests in a property development project in Beijing City, the PRC. The

35. A — RS 2

AELEER-F-ANET+ZATZ
— [ B} )& 4 W] Netspac Investments Limited
(I'Netspac 1) &T 37 it fiff 485 065 8 = —
TZHAZ = ARA IR E
¥ bk - DLBLAAR350,000,0009 7 Hi 5 AR
B 77 Z 2 T8 IR HE © Netspac /3 i 3¢ & b & B 55
sk M B 2 BB PR B R4 R o e B P L
T e 2 B BETH H 226 % B0 o 8 — [ Y

H Bk

FNE
JiEl L H

disposal of a subsidiary was completed on the same date. BAFZFHTRE A %K
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: T4 % e T R 2 A T £ 18 4
HK$’000
T#0
Interest in an associate T o v 2 R AR 84,197
Other payable At B A 3k T (20)
84,177
Release of translation reserve P R D fof 11,677
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary H B — T o A ) 2 Wi g 254,146
350,000
Satisfied by: B PL T I R AT
Cash consideration received and receivable W R W B 4 R 350,000
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary: HH B — P A B A ) 2 B4 YA A R
Cash consideration received cl B &R E 115,000
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36. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had following commitments
for the future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases.

At 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any commitments for the
future minimum lease income. Lease commitments become effective base on

6. WEME

AR 2y AL

TP S A 5 R AN T A AL S A
AR A S (A AL G A DL R R HE - IR 2%
—HAE T A=A H o AR AT B
R B fo AL 15 H 4 O\ 2 A if o LB R A R

fulfillment of certain capacity for the investment properties. By S B A A R AR R e
2016 2015
RN e S T S
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T#L BRI
Within one year —4EN -
In the second to fifth years inclusive AR (B ERMAE) -
Over five years 8 A T -

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease. The leases
run for an initial period of 3 to 15 years in combination of fixed rentals and
contingent rentals. Certain of these leases include contingent rentals which
are determined based on percentages of sales when incurred and do not
contain any term of minimum lease payment.

The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

AL BB M TN REYE - HEE
5 1 R FHL 4 K sl AL 4 - B0 A I3 R 154 -
Wt AR O S T
R 2 BA AL > EL M 4 5 S A A A B (K A 4
g K

A SR 1 2y R RLA

TP 3 5 9 R - A A8 AR A T 4 A0 L B 2
RS Z R AR B AR Bk E AR 2 A

2016 2015

RN e Sl k3

HK$°000 HKS$’000

T#T T#0

Within one year —4E N 142,731
In the second to fifth years inclusive AR EB AR (AR E RBWAE) 541,382
Over five years A AR 568,116
52525729

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain
offices premises and retail shops. Leases are negotiated for periods arranging
from 3 to 20 years (2015: 3 to 20 years) with fixed rentals.

R A B APk AR A SR AR B T A
T 25 Vo H A+ L 4 o AEL 95 7% DA I AL 4
& R S R AR A = A
FESEE]
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. BARYE
2016 2015
—R®—NE TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT RRC
Capital expenditure AP %
— contracted but not provided for — T A H R S 2,342,523
— capital injection —HHE 345,948
2,688,471
The above commitments include mainly: R A R A
(i) the construction related costs on development of the Group’s property, () BRERALEDE BB KEHE RED
plant and equipment, investment properties, and properties for sale in ¥ T v 120 B A S P R TR A S B 3
the PRC;
(ii)  the consideration on acquisition of the Group’s property, plant and () B AR AR TR A v Y 3 W Bk
equipment in Hong Kong. Z A -
38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 38. i JBe A it

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 31 May 2013, the Company adopted the share option

scheme (“Share Option Scheme”). The major terms of the Share Option

Scheme are summarised as follows:

(a)  The purpose was to provide incentives to eligible participants as

incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

(b)  The participants included any employee, whether full time or part
time, director of the Company, consultant, adviser or agent of any

member of the Group, subsidiary or any invested entity.

WMER R -ZFTA=T—HBIT2AAN
AR AUR SR G BBz —IH YRR > A
O VR A R O A A T B ) A 2
o ] e o Ji I E ) 2 R K A R

(a) TS PR 5E B DU 2 AR 42 48 B
Z B E A% 2 B R 5 T S [0 o

(b) ZHLF QAL - G 2 R AT T B
HHBALIRE AR ZEMER (5
i 2y 2 WS M)~ A A F o B
i NBARELA o
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(¢)  The maximum number of shares in respect of which options might
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of approval
of the Share Option Scheme and such limit might be refreshed
by shareholders in general meeting. However, the total maximum
number of shares which might be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

(d)  The maximum number of shares in respect of which options might
be granted to a participant, when aggregated with shares issued and
issuable (including exercised and outstanding options and the options
cancelled) under any option granted to the same participant under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme within any 12
month period, must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

(e)  There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the option for a certain
period before exercising the option save as determined by the board of
directors and provided in the offer of grant of option.

(f)  The exercise period should be any period fixed by the board of

directors upon grant of the option but in any event the option period
should not go beyond 10 years from the date of offer for grant.

(g)  The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be made within 21
days from the date of grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
from the grantee to the Company.

(h)  The exercise price of an option must be the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the date of grant which day
must be a trading day;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the share.

(i)  The life of the Share Option Scheme is effective for 10 years from the
date of adoption until 30 May 2023.

38. J)BcRERF I (4F)

(©

(d)

(e)

()

(g)

(h)

()

488 I M 5 ) T e 92 HE 2 T B &
Z 5% R A B E AN A9 AR A DR kv
W RE G H 2 EBATIRARZ10% »
T 3% B A A 7 e SRR b phy T SR B o
SR > AR 0 O W T ) A o L A I A
wh# O 3% AR AT A R AT 2 B
B R P AT R T B AT 2 By B v 4R
B> TR R e OB AT A Z30% o

ey RLARL 48 M i ) A o Al e
FH B IR T Al — 2 B3 AT ] SRR R
ZUBMTETTHEOZROUE (B
AT BE 2 v AR AT B B T R 8 = I e e )
ARG MM+ EA NS 2
S35 VT R 4 < D T B P 2 % = i B
P S0 R R R IR DB AT IR 2 1% ©
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(i) REEAHY (BERRZSH) RS
Z Wi fe 5

(i) PEEEZHBHHWAMERZSH K
1 Z P H Wi 18 5 K

(iii) A i E o

W RE ST B A H OB R HAERE
RoHER_=HHH=Z+Ho

183



Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E T —N4E T H=1T—HILEE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

38. i It 2 (4)

TREBREEZ-AFERFTFE D

The following table discloses movements of the share options granted under

the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2016 and

2015:

As at 31 December 2016:

H = F kA5 N0 O A B 4% T 0 D

et 4 5 ) -

RoR-ANETF A=+ —H:

Adjusted Outstandingasat ~ Granted during ~ Exercised during ~ Lapsed/cancelled ~ Outstanding as at
Grantee Date of grant exercise price Exercise periods 1 January 2016 the year theyear  during the year 31 December 2016
REZ-RE
RoZ-AE FERE-R
KB #hnH HWMEGER RN i i PEi EREN BRGRE ERRAL E H AL
Share Option Scheme:
Executive Directors and
Chief Executive Officer
R B0 - AT T R
Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric 26 May 2014 0.63 26 May 2016 to 30 May 2023 129,138 840 - - (129,138,840 -
Rk e St ZE-RERAZAAE
fAZHRH EZRTERENZTH
8 June 2015 159 8 June 2015 to 30 May 2023 137,788 840 - - (137,788,840 -
RN ZR-TEARAR
AR ECRCEELASTH
Mr. Meng Cai 10 May 2016 102 10 May 2018 to 9 May 2021 - 50,000,000 - - 50,000,000
Feptd ZEFR ZF-NELATHE
LATH “RTELALA
Employee 29 September 2014 1.264 1 October 2016 to 98,500,000 - - (938,500,000) -
30 September 2019
A e S L2 SRR
JAZFH EZRNEAAZTA
16 March 2015 137 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 40,000,000 - - (40,000,000 -
ZE-LEZATAR “ER-EEZAER
EZRTRESJTAR
6 April 2016 1078 6 April 2018 to 5 April 2021 - 30,000,000 - (30,000,000) -

ZE-NENARH

ZZ-\EHAARE
ZECENALA

7 June 2018 to 6 June 2021
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 38. JiE B HE it ()
As at 31 December 2015: R_B—HETH=1+—H:
Adjusted Outstandingasat ~ Granted during ~ Exercised during ~ Lapsed/cancelled ~ Outstanding as at
Grantee Date of grant exercise price  Exercise periods 1 January 2015 the year theyear  during the year 31 December 2015
R-F-1ik RoF-1i%
~J-n LD VA e oy B iT7 3
KB BhaH MBI AT WAL SERE LT [
Share Option Scheme:
Executive Directors and
Chief Executive Officer
o
RiTES R R
Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Fric 26 May 2014 063 26 May 201610 30 May 203 129,138,840 - - - 129,138,840
RRELE e S k2 ZE-AELNCIARE
AAZFAH CRIERELASTH
8 June 2015 159 8 June 2015 to 30 May 2023 - 137,788,840 - - 137,788,840
“E-Lik “ER-RENIARE
AN CRCEERAETA
Employee 29 September 2014 1.264 1 October 2016 to 158,500,000 - - (60,000,000) 98,500,000
30 September 2019
fi8 “F-NE “ERAETA-NE
RAZARA “E-VERAZTH
16 March 2015 137 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 - 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
ZE-REERAAH ZE-LEZRTLRE
ZRIREZAAAH
Total it 287,638,840 177,788 840 - (60,000,000) 405,427,680

s The 475,427,680 (2015: 60,000,000) share options granted under the
Share Options Scheme lapsed upon the resignation of the employees and
directors of the Group or cancelled by the employees and the Company.

2 L I 3l 92 H 475,427,680 4% (=

F—HAE £ 60,000,000)8: 4 ) ik e i i A< 4 [
8 B M 7 = B AT 1% S B s A8 AR H s AR A
W] kS
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 38. W BCHE T (%)

The exercise price in respect of any share options, shall subject to any
adjustments in the event of any alteration in the capital structure of the
Company whilst any share option remains exercisable or this scheme
remains in effect. The exercise of any share option shall be subject to the
shareholders in the general meeting approving any necessary increase in the
authorised share capital of the Company.

The fair value of options granted on 26 May 2014 (“Option 1) was
determined by using the Binomial options-pricing model at the date of grant;
no subsequent revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant
inputs into the model were closing share price of HK$0.63 at the grant date,
exercise price of HK$0.63, expected volatility of 80%, expected dividend
yield of nil, option live of 9 years, and annual risk-free rate of 1.9%

The fair value of options granted on 29 September 2014 (“Option 2”) was
determined by using the Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant;
no subsequent revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant
inputs into the model were closing share price of HK$1.16 at the grant date,
exercise price of HK$1.264, expected volatility of 70%, expected dividend
yield of nil, option live of 5 years, and annual risk-free rate of 1.51%.

The fair value of option granted on 16 March 2015 (“Option 3”) was
determined by using Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant;
no subsequent revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant
inputs into the model were closing share price of HK$1.37 at the grant date,
exercise price of HK$1.37, expected volatility of 71%, expected dividend
yield of nil, option live of 5 years, and annual risk free rate of 1.2%.

The fair value of option granted on 8 June 2015 (“Option 4”) was determined
by using Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant; no subsequent
revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant inputs into the
model were closing share price of HK$1.45 at the grant date, exercise price
of HK$1.596, expected volatility of 75%, expected dividend yield of nil,
option live of 8 years, and annual risk free rate of 1.7%.

The fair value of option granted on 6 April 2016 (“Option 6”) was
determined by using Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant;
no subsequent revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant
inputs into the model were closing share price of HK$1.06 at the grant date,
exercise price of HK$ 1.078, expected volatility of 48%, expected dividend
yield of nil, option live of 5 years, and annual risk free rate of 0.89%.

A7 B8] ] Ji B AR 4 4 o A1 A A 2 ) AR
G ) B8 B A L ZEAE A R > MEAT AT 5 T AT
A0 1 S B sl A ) A 3R A 28 o AT BATE ] B
TR 7R A8 I R B SR 48 K b e AR 4 ]
SE JBEA 11 A AT 25 3 i -

W F—PAER A N H 3T AR RE
AR (T35 — B RE ] ) 7432 th H 400925 8 4k
3 o T MY B > 3 T R AR
4 AR AR T T A6 E o BT A4 B R A B R A
B2 H A B e i 80,6385 G - 47 450.63
s TG - TH U I B R A580% » T I e B 35 R B
ﬁaﬁ&%ﬁﬁ@%%h@a@ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂ%
#1.9% ©

W ZF—WAENH ZJUH BT AR
ASFAE (38 R IR RE ] ) A4 th H 01925 8 fik
P T TR MR R - 3 T B AR
AE 4 R AR 317 A 1 o BT Y B oK A B B
IR B B i A L 16 T > AT A K
1.2643 70 > TH B B 81 R £ 70% » T8 B B Ik 25
B T > W B WE AT ST B AT - AT B S R B
PR E1.51% o

W —HAEZ A N H 2P0 R A
SEAE (TS =R B RE | ) %2 B 19 78 4
U S R AR PR - ST R AR AR
AF IR M FEBT AN A - AR Y B A OB B R 3%
HH A B W T B 137 HE T - AT AR 5 1.37
WeT > T DB R A5 71% > THII B IR KA
ﬁa%&%ﬁﬁ@%kﬁ@a@ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ%
#51.2% o

W B—HAENH I\ B 3T 00 B RE 0 A F
A (758 Y O B A | ) R 452 Hh H 39998 a8 0 ) —
E i T A AR 7R > oI JE R Y L AR A 4E
A T A o AR B T OK B OB B s Y 47
O A B W 1 4508 > AT R 1.596
W > T B B R A 75% > T B R R A
ﬁ’%&%ﬁﬁ¢%%A$>$gﬂmmﬂ$
#1.7% ©

W F N H N H 3T R R R AP
{8 (TEE75 R RHE ) 9%t B W iR i —
TR P B A S A MR 7 A > S A LA AR AR
AR T 7 A o B B T OK B OB OB S A A2
HH 1A B Wi T B 1,063 T > A7 68 %51.078
W TT - TH Y] W B R A 48% > T I B S i 28 R K
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38.

39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of option granted on 10 May 2016 (“Option 7”) was
determined by using Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant;
no subsequent revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant
inputs into the model were closing share price of HK$1.01 at the grant date,
exercise price of HK$1.022, expected volatility of 46%, expected dividend
yield of nil, option live of 5 years, and annual risk free rate of 0.94%.

The fair value of option granted on 7 June 2016 (“Option 8”) was determined
by using Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant; no subsequent
revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant inputs into the
model were closing share price of HK$1.06 at the grant date, exercise price
of HK$1.06, expected volatility of 45%, expected dividend yield of nil,
option live of 5 years, and annual risk free rate of 0.88%.

The exercise of options are subject to exercise in whole or in part at any
time during the exercise periods upon the fulfillment of certain prescribed
performance targets set to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, employee share-based payment
of net credit amount of approximately HK$65,168,000 (2015: net debit
amount of approximately HK$38,526,000) has been included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
with a corresponding debit (2015: credit) to the share options reserve.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the
PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make
the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of approximately HK$21,216,000 (2015:
approximately HK$15,231,000) represents contributions paid or payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

38. J)BcRERF I (4F)

W ZZ—ANERA T BT BRERN AP ([5
LRI PR RE | ) A% T A e P I R e A
R T 7R S > oI S T TR AR A AR R AR T A o MR
T iy o AR i 4% H A B T (E 101
W > AT 41,0229 00 > THII W B R B 46% > THM
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JE B R 550.94% o
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40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The

Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which included the
amounts due to non-controlling interests and related companies, borrowings,
obligation under finance lease and convertible bonds, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising

issued share capital, reserves and accumulated losses.
Net debt to equity ratio
The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on an ongoing basis.

As part of this review, the management considers the cost of capital and the

risks associated with each class of capital.

40. ¥ A4y 91

ACHE A BREC A > DU BR A 4 P TS T
B AR AR AT AC - 00 8 5 D A 2 45 B 2 B
ERRURFL E XL R NG E S SNEE RN L
R 0 R LA A R A S B

ACHE T 2 A AR A (L A e
25 % [ 28 20 WK ) R B AL T
Z B B AT BB AR I > N BR B R B & S
e AN w) A N HEAG BERS » L b B 46 84T IRt
A il B Rt -

£ ORI 2 L R
AR 2 A B AT B AR « A T

Z B A I 7% I A IR B S SR
AA B Z BB

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: RREHIRZ EARE LR T
2016 2015
RN ZE—HAE
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
F#L T#0
Debt (Note (i)) A& (W) 10,217,766
Cash and bank balance (Note 24) B4 T SRAT R 8% (M 7E24) (3,089,294)
Net debt A 7,128,472
Equity (Note (ii)) RESS (Mt i) 7,086,296
Net debt to equity ratio A TR A L R 101%
Notes: M FE -

(1) Debt is defined as obligation under finance lease, borrowings and
convertible bonds, as detailed in Notes 29, 30 and 32 respectively.

(ii)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

i) ARSI BEEE29 ~ 304325k =z & A
BT ZHAE - R R e B il 57

(i) HESE 3G A [ T AT B A S Gl o
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

41. ST H
(a) 4@k T H¥M

2016 2015
TR N e K
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# L T T
Financial assets A R
Loans and receivables K T BE WK IR
(including cash and cash equivalent) (BB 4 BB &%) 4,325,102
FVTPL AR AR A 739,238
Financial liabilities A £ 4%
Amortised cost B AR 12,357,685
FVTPL RAHE R AR 257,900

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank balances and
deposits, trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss, trade payables,
accrued liabilities and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
interests and related companies, borrowings, obligation under
finance lease and convertible bonds and long-term payables. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s risks exposure
relating to financial instruments or the manner in which it manages

and measures the risks.

(b) B b B 45 P H B R R

AW B E TR BESRTAR R
K~ E WS S R A~ Ak B At E Wi
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it to market risks of changes in currency
risk, price risk and interest rate risk.

There has been no significant change to Group’s exposure to market
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk over the
year.

Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s sales and operating costs are
denominated in the functional currency of the group entity making the
sales or incurring the costs. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider that the currency risk is not significant.

The Group currently does not have a formal currency hedging policy
in relation to currency risk. The directors monitor the Group’s
exposure on an ongoing basis and will consider hedging the currency
risk should the need arise.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading of
listed securities included in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the

exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted stock prices had been
10% higher or lower while all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s net profit would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$112,992,000 (2015: approximately HK$73,924,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of investments.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate
borrowings, obligation under finance lease and bonds payables.

The Group currently does not have a formal interest rate hedging
policy in relation to cash flow interest rate risk. The directors of the
Company monitor the Group’s exposure on an ongoing basis and will
consider hedging the interest rate risk should the need arise.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt and loan receivable at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and

customers.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group has concentration of
credit risk on the deposits paid for acquisition of a property project
and subsidiaries paid to counterparties which are all engaged in PRC
property development business, and are either state-owned entities
or companies with good reputation, the directors of the Company

consider that the credit risk is limited.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with good reputation established in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

41. £WTH (&)
(b) B 75 bl B 4% BI H B R SR

(#)

1 BB b5

BB —NERF—HETH
=4 H o ¥ F RGBT H LA
A A 1 58 3% S 5 4R R 2 e v A B R B T
PRI A% B 2 51K DL 2 P 81 2 A ) e
< Tl A 2 M i A

T A R B R A 1K AR 4% B A B
JE ORI B BB W
R B3 W 1ol A 9] 5 I 2 1 L o BB AR AR
5 L o S T R 4 M ) B R
T IR WA £ 78R =2 W WAL [ e R o Tl AR S T
W 1ol < AR YR 40 2 A M R - O
AAFEFRB AL ZAEREROK
KK o

I SR B o B 2 2 F 07 RE
P WA A [ i R R B R K S B A Ay
Brp 2 5 8 B

RF—ANERF—HETZH
Zob H o AR O — I 3 H A
B Pt Jg 2 ) 16 A v [ 68 g 3 R R SR
Z 3 F 07 ST T 4 i B A 4R A R R
B - T E R % T R R R
U Z W) BOAS 2 T SR AR R K
AR

F 35 - 05 3 2 T v o A O £
FLAF Z SRAT > WA B B) ¥ 4 2 AR L
WA
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

For properties under development which are subject to pre-sales
agreements, the Group generally typically provides guarantees to
banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage
loans to finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up
to 70% of the total purchase price of the property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the term of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount of the loan and any accrued interest thereon.
Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the customer’s
purchase deposit and sell the property to recover any amounts paid by
the Group to the bank. In this regard, the directors of the Company

consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table reflects the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial

liabilities are based on agreed repayment dates.

41. £WTH (&)
(b) B 75 bl B 4% BI H B R SR

(#)

1= B HBE (%)

B0 T £ B e S F B v S KSR T —
P38 T e P AR A B 1k SRAT SR PR
DR > DA 2 L 0 S i 0 S W LA
BB 2 70% o i B J5 1% 4% DRS00 P o 39
SEA 1R AR K - FE A 1R A5 B RAT AT 2R
7% 45 R K R S AN ) e AT
HEH B, o 78 % 551 DL T > A SR [ AT R
B 50 D T i R A B S DL
1] A< 4 [ 1 R AT S B A T A o Ay
) A D B MR R D A A 2 A B
J B o

i ) %5 4 MBS

7 B I - A AR D A
4 B A TR 2 Bl R Bl
R o DLy AR G5 1 VR 0 4 B
B e ) R o A I B A AR
Z A& - Sl e DR T S i 4 B

T & 7

A AR B b R AR o AR 4R I 2 O
MAESMAMZBTEABMHI - T
2[R W AR B R B AT 2 B L A
B2 EMAMZRTBIB SRR B
A A R BB E 5 DA b R R sk H 9
Hy Bt o




0 AF 2 B B IR PR A W | 201648 3

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR B
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS(Continued)

31 December 2016 REZR-ANEFDAZETR
Non-derivative financial liabilities Fei A i £ 0
Trade payables MR B 5 ek
Accrued liabilities and other payables JEGH 6 e H AR HE A 3R
Borrowings: fiik s

— Bank and other borrowings — U7 R AR R

- Bonds —fi%
Obligation under finance lease MEHE T 2 HAE
Amounts due to non-controlling interests o 34 i 2 R
Amounts due to related companies HE o A A ) R
Convertible bonds EE e
31 December 2015 S S K e
Non-derivative financial liabilities Jei A S A
Trade payables JE£ B 5 ek
Accrued liabilities and other payables JERT 055 B U Al B 1 3k
Borrowings: fhiak:

- Bank and other borrowings — S AT R A

- Bonds — %
Obligation under finance lease MEMEHT ZHIE
Amounts due to non-controlling interests o 4 i 2 R
Amounts due to related companies JE A I LA ] R

Convertible bonds

BEdres

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Weighted
average
interest rate
i
RESPIES
%

1.62-13
8.84-12.02
3.57

8.859.32

41. &R T H (4)

(b) VoA 75 e G 4 L I B e B SR

(#)

BB (4)

MH G ()

Total

Less than More than undiscounted
lyear  1to5 years Syears  cash flows
PSR

Bt RS EBIE  WERAH
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
T TiEL T T

1,756,995 =
563,858 =
4,158,569 3,360,333
690,171 431,156 11,626
353 706
60,076 =
16,890 =
176,709 2,802,982

1,756,995
563,858

7,518,902
1,132,953
1,059
60,076
16,890
2,979,691

Carrying
amount

i
HK$ 000
T

1,756,995
563,858

6,701,817
1,022,384
1,004
60,076
16,890
2,492,561
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(¢c) Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

o the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with

standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid

markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid

prices and ask prices; and

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities

41. &R T H (&)
(© AP

TR E RS RMARZ A PETIELT
B

o R BEPRR B R F B O HRER
) 7l 355 R R R
i€ J52 % ol 5 BRI/ i
LB A A P8 2 &

o R E K EBMAMZ AT

are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing 7548 4% £ 97 BLBL & i & 4 AT
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. Z IR R A A E o
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated &R WBHIR LR W2 2 A P
statement of financial position
Fair value as at
A
31 December 31 December Fair value  Valuation technique
2016 2015 hierarchy  and key input
RN P/ S K
+ZAZF—H  +ZA=E+—H AFEER METTERTEESE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T#x
Financial assets at FVTPL 3% A F-fist A2
Al
Equity securities listed T L2 A 5 274,388 409,238 Level 1 Quoted price in an active
in Hong Kong market
B i T 2 I
Equity linked note JRE A 44 840 55 % 463,000 330,000 Level 2 Underlying assets has
quoted price in an
active market
BB B 4 R T 355 2
A
Unlisted investment funds ENIIE 858 % 392,529 = Level 2 Dealing price of the fund

derived from the net asset
value of the fund

Gt A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR B
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E _F—N4ET_H=Z+—HIL4EE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

41. &R TH (5)

(¢) Fair values (Continued) (0 2A°Ph (#)
The directors of the Group consider that the carrying amounts of AR B R Ry R O AR B A
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in R AR Z 4l E R afmZ R
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values. T fE B A 5 2 A AR A o
Carrying amount Fair value
At 31 December 2016: R AET A= —H: M i AP
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT T#T
Financial liabilities: i
Convertible bonds W 4 B 5 25
Carrying amount Fair value
At 31 December 2015: RER-REHZH =+ JR T fE AFAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI T#sT
Financial liabilities: SR
Convertible bonds DE Y e 2,234,661 2,379,990

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level
3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they

occur.

'3

REREZZR-AFERZF-HFETA
Zb— HRARE - S AL A [
SRt > O\ R B A o AR
SR TP A 3 A 2 S U R R AP
1 5 A 2% A 2 [] i 4t

j/
-
y
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E T —N4ETH=1T—HILEE
42. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 42. WRABBA LR
TRANSACTIONS
(a) Transaction (a) %
2016 2015
TR LRI
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T Tt
Nature of related parties transaction: LR W O A2 S MR
Purchase of computer equipment i NG A 2,361
Note: The related company is controlled by the controlling shareholder. B SE R LA W) % e 4 I B TR o o
(b) Compensation to key management personnel of (b) AR BB B
the Group
2016 2015
RN e S K3
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#L T T
Short-term employee benefits LR B E A 16,319
Post-employment benefits ok A% A A 54
Equity settled share-based payment VAHE %5 45 B Iy 32 A 2 kI 22,521
38,894
43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. BARAR
Saved as disclosed in Note 33 regarding the provisions of probable outflow Bk Wi 5533 Fr 45 8 A A 4% T o s I R A AT BB UL
of a variety of lawsuits and claims. The Group had no other material H AR A > A S ) o At R ) =2 EE K Bk

contingent liabilities identified. R -




F AT R P IR TR ] | 20164F 3t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IRR E
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

4. R-Z—ANETFH=Z1—HA

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS AT 2wl WS A Fl Z 5wt
31 DECEMBER 2016
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Issued share ownership
establishment/ capital/paid up interests held
Name of subsidiary operations capital by the Company  Principal activities
kbR CEAT A AR O T AT B A
W B A i £ fzgi st BRIBA Pz lehl  BERH
Easy Linkage Development Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 100% (Direct)  Investment holding
(“BVI")
BB AT 15 TE 100% (E#%)  #REHER
([ ELERER])
Nice Race Management Limited BVI Ordinary 100% (Direct)  Investment holding
USD30,612,451
by Vel FEIE30,612,4513 70 100% (H#)  BeEER
Cheertex Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100% (Indirect)  Investment holding
HEREER AT i & B 109 7T 100% (M%)  #REHER
Genius Choice Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% (Indirect)  Investment holding
BEREERAF i % 98 Bt 19 7T 100% (M%) #REHER
Carnival Group (Hong Kong) Holdings Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% (Indirect) ~ Provision of management
Limited services in Hong
Kong
AR () R A A % 98 I 19 7T 100% (FI4%) A W R AL SR B
Sino Ever Investment Limited BVI Ordinary USD100 99.01% (Indirect)  Investment holding
B ARG R A BB AT E B 100378 99.01% (M%)  HEHK
Ever Lead Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 99.01% (Indirect)  Investment holding
EHEEARAF B W B 1 e 99.01% (%)  BeEHER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E_ZF—ANF+ZH=1+—HIL4EE
44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS AT

31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

4. R-Z—NETFH=Z1—HA

A A ERME A A Z i (5])

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Issued share ownership
establishment/ capital/paid up interests held
Name of subsidiary operations capital by the Company  Principal activities
WY, B TR AR vl F5 A A BE
WY J& 2 W) 44 % B R B A B2 REEH
BLEREEGFERBEEFMRAF PRC (Note (1)) Registered capital 64% (Indirect)  Property development in
RMB900,000,000 the PRC
B (M EG)) GRN - YN 64% (M)  TEPEREHRYE
900,000,000 ES7
B SR R A RA PRC (Note (i1)) Registered capital 64% (Indirect) ~ Property management in
RMB1,000,000 the PRC
B (i) ) R AR\ R 64% (M)  TEhEREmE
1,000,0007G HHEY
B R R A R PRC (Note (ii) Registered capital 64% (Indirect) ~ Commercial
RMB10,000,000 management in
the PRC
B (i) ) R AR\ R 64% (FE) 7 Hp I 4R i 28 o
10,000,0007% ES7
BHR T 75 80 B A A PRC (Note (iii)) Registered capital 99.01% (Indirect) ~ Property development in
RMB?70,600,000 the PRC
I (i) ) FEA AR\ R 99.01% (Fifk)  FErh B RE R ¥
70,600,000 ES7
LSS EaRIKEHARA A PRC (Note (iii) Registered capital 100% (Direct) ~ Catering business
USD12,500,000
A (M) ) ERIN-EN 100% (E¥e)  BIKEE
12,500,0003€ 76
LR SN B KAE A PRC (Note (iii) Registered capital 100% (Direct)  Catering business
USD2,000,000
o (M) ) ERUN-EN 100% (E¥e)  BIKEE
2,000,0003& 7¢
L0 B0 2 Bk R A A ) PRC (Note (iii)) Registered capital 100% (Direct) ~ Catering business
USD1,000,000

B ()

Rl A

100% ( EH#%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE ~R—N4ET - H=Z1T—HILEE

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

45.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS AT
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

Notes:
(1) The company is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.
(i)  The company is a limited liability company established in the PRC.

(iii)  The company is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARY THAT HAS MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group

that has material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of
Place of ownership interests and
incorporation voting rights held by
and principal non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business interests
ok 0 8% % e Fhd e b 2 45 47 A
WY B 2 il 4 B3 d-2 k1 BER: B B be i
2016 2015

TR NE DR HE

i B (FE) PRC
BRAMAT B

4. R-Z—NETFH=Z1—HA
2] LR A v 2 wE 0 (81)

ik :
() AFBLEP BRI R

I

(i) ARBIEPR WL Z A REEAF .

I

(i) AT R AR B Z A A -

45. SR B AT K B R £ 2
2 Y )R A Wil 2R

N5 i 2 B AR S T e A TR Ok B 2
F 2 5 PO 0 2 W) R

Loss allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests

Vi B :3E S P | BB B 2
2016 2015 2016 2015
TR-NE RN DR-NE DELE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
Tl T80 T SR

(107,848) 1,918,359
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45. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARY THAT HAS MATERIAL NON-

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiary that
has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised

financial information below represents amounts before intragroup

eliminations.

W LA (F ) BEA A

ey

Current assets B
Non-current assets I By A
Current liabilities B
Non-current liabilities I I B £
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NS RSN
Non-controlling interests Ik I HE 25
Revenue W s
(Loss)/profit for the year N (ER) A
Total comprehensive expenses for the year AR N 4 THI B 32 AR
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to Je¥e I HE 25 HEA 4 N
the non-controlling interests (E58) i F)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to I e L HE 25 ME A 2 I
the non-controlling interests b 32 48 A
Net cash inflow from operating activities AR 8 B A 2 F B TWA
Net cash outflow from investing activities AR A 45 B A AR B AT
Net cash outflow from financing activities AR B ARG B 2k 2 B AR
Net cash inflow/(outflow) FHERA (FHH)

2016
SR N
HK$°000
T

45. A SR BB TR b e b A 2
2 0 W 2 vl B0RE (A1)

A R M i I A W BB
FRHBEZ IR 01T o F 5B R R 2 1 4R
) . ] 3k 9 T 2 4 9 o

2015
—F R
HKS$’000
T#C

5,007,069
9,122,788
(4,743,637)
(4,057,445)
3,410,416
1,918,359

172,382
12,884
(299,578)

4,638

(107,848)

2,949,281
(1,391,010)
(1,885,031)

(326,760)
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

46. 72 v B 5 IR Db Be ik 5 e

2016 2015
RN ZE A
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
T T
Non-current assets R Ty
Investments in subsidiaries W E AR 2 ] E 3,360,891
Current assets it ) %
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss %2 FF A% Z £ Rl & & 170,835
Prepayments and other receivables LA R I e A WK T 19,342
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WA g A ) K T 4,115,176
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KBS 246,158
4,551,511
Total assets S 7,912,402
Current liabilities i B £ 4
Accrued liabilities and other payables JRE 51 4 £ 5 Al B A 3k I 4,535
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A Bt g 2 ) Sk T 46,562
Borrowings i E 699,306
750,403
Net current assets it Bl 3,801,108
Total assets less current liabilities FOB 7 W B A 7,161,999
Capital and reserves A B g A
Share capital JBE A 2,976,476
Share premium and reserves T Ay v A J% fi 1,264,611
Total equity i 25 A8 75 4,241,087
Non-current liabilities F 0 £ ¢
Borrowings 155 3K 423,078
Deferred tax liabilities A S 50 T £ 5273
Convertible bonds W] % 5 2,492,561
2,920,912
7,161,999
King Pak Fu Wang Yikun
RAF R
Director Director
#HH
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

46. 72 vl 85 IR DL B G 6 A (481)

Movement in the Company’s reserves AR 2 i) 2 Ak A 58 )
Convertible
notes Share
Share  Contributed equity options Accumulated
premium surplus reserve Reserve losses Total
R
Beprietl  MOAESR  BEARGEE  WBMERE  RSHEH At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L T#L T#L T#L T#L T#L
At 1 January 2015 BR_F—HE—H—H 4,010,669 9,404 90,116 27487 (3212259) 925,417
Loss for the year P - - - - (208,008) (208,008)
Release of deferred tax liability upon 5 R 45 ¢ A5 37 s ik
conversion of convertible bond BRI - - 4,866 - - 4,866
Conversion of convertible bonds PR TR Y e 116,797 - (94,982) - - 21,815
Recognition of equity-settled TR DARE 25 45 S 4
share-based payments X Z B - - 49,359 - 49,359
Share option lapsed during the year — 4F: 9 R4 Z Ji IR A - - - (10,833) - (10,833)
Recognition of equity component of e AT 4 it £ 7 25 0 40
convertible bonds - - 43,078 - - 43,078
Deferred tax lability on recognition 8 I 4}t G F M 25 0 40
of equity component of convertible TR A
bonds - - (7,108) - - (7,108)
Issue of shares by way of placing BB EEAT R 453,600 - - - - 453,600
Transaction costs attributable to BT AT HEA 28 5 AR
issue of shares (7.575) - - - - (7.575)
At 31 December 2015 and REF— A
1 January 2016 +ZH=+—HK
RN E—f—H 4,573,491 9,404 35,970 66,013 (3,420,267) 1,264,611
Loss for the year N EH = = = = (263,646) (263,646)
Recognition of equity-settled R R S E R 2
share-based payments HOH = = = 11,407 = 11,407
Share option lapsed/cancelled SRR RERS Z IR IR RE
during the year - - - (76.575) - (76,575)
Issue of shares by way of placing BB BT R 1,401,776 = = = = 1,401,776
Transaction costs attributable to BEAT I HE A 28 5 AR
issue of shares (44,219) - - - - (44,219)
At 31 December 2016 RN
==l 5,931,048 9,404 35970 845 (3,683,913) 2,293,354
47. BT

47. COMPARATIVE FIGURE

Certain compara

fied to conform with the current

2 T BB B T 4
LT e =
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Particulars of the Major Properties Held
U EcE - E A

Details of the Group’s major properties held as at 31 December 2016 under

development for sale, investment or own use are as follows:

(@)

(@)

(b)

(b)

()

Name of property

and location

LESA VTN

Rio Carnival,
Huangdao District,
Qingdao City,
Shandong Province,
the PRC

1

IR A

R

B

H By b g

Carnival
International
Community,
Chengdu

Hi-tech Zone,
Chengdu City,
Sichuan Province,
the PRC

o

ITES

R
A 12 T I
A 3 [ A

Shouson Project
Nos. 16A-16D,
Shouson Hill Road,
Hong Kong
wHEIEH

A

wEILE
16A-16D

Intended use

L ik

— Residential

— Commercial

-8
kS

— Residential

— Commercial

—
ik

— Residential

ki

Stage of

completion

52 1 B B

— Partially completed
— Completed

— HB A 5E AR
-BRK

— Partially completed
— Partially completed

— #8552 K
— 853 58 B

— Land under

development

L it

3 L) S S Y S e L A Y

BB AR 2 Y R

Expected
year of Approximate
completion site area
k]
Bt 58 TAE i i B
sqm
Pk
2017 348,900
in phases
“E b
3 ¥ Be5e 1K
2017 72,500
in phases
“R -t
43 B B 5E K
2020 4,600
ZERCERE

Approximate Group’s
gross floor area interest
Bi Al
RBE A% Bt v v AR BB
sqm
RWIES
765,300 64%
481,000 100%
2,100 100%
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A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated as appropriated is set out below:

RESULTS Ea i

Year ended 31 December BEFZNE4—HIAEE

Continuing operations FEEBER

Revenue g

Profit/(loss) before tax BBt (B #)

Income tax (expense)/credit FiAR8E (B3%) / Hik

Discontinued operations LA LEEEH

Profit for the year from KECKEEEEHL
discontinued operations A B

Profit/(loss) for the year RN, (BH)

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: T 31 A\ 1: HEAF 46 B

wAl/ OB#) -

Owners of the Company KA RHEHA
Non-controlling interests T b w43

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES B R L

At 31 December g i = |

Assets B

Liabilities A

Net assets B

Equity attributable to: TH AL REAHER
Owners of the Company AATHEEA
Non-controlling interests Fe b I hE i

DA 2 A 558 A d 2 0 A 4 B 2 B SR A DL I
P M B R - AT B R T 10 R B AR A

WERFEES (WEM) :
2015 2014 2013 2012
e ST ZENE ZF-=E e S 2
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt T Tt T
1,146,888 1,412,857 545087 (17,808)
95,728 138,986 (2,134,690) (384,404)
8,162 (21,163) 33,121 22,992
103,390 117,823 (1,811,569) (361,412)
- - - 9,470
103,390 117,823 (1,811,569) (351,942)
120453 5018 (1,485,874) (307,965)
(16,563) 74,805 (325,695) @3,977)
103,390 117,823 (1,811,569) (351,942)
2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-HE ZE-NE CR-ZH TR-TAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SR Tl Tl T
23,020,389 17,536,906 14,763,907 13,195,776
(15,934,093) (10923203) (9,087,136) (7,500,529)
7,086,296 6,613,703 5,676,771 5,686,247
5,192,128 4,591,399 3.491,809 3,250,655
1,894,168 2,022,304 2,184962 2435592
7,086,296 6,613,703 5,676,771 5,686,247
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